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Five Year Financial Summary

AFMBEHRE

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
BZE20078 HZE2006%F EHZE2005F HZE2004F HE2003F
12A31H 12A31H 128310 12A31H 12A31H
tEE tHFE HEE tFE LEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTEL TEL FTEL TET
Turnover EER
- Continuing operations -RBEREES 31,405 27,490 22,380 24,773 43,908
- Discontinuing operations -BRIEBREER 44,661 44,710 43,260 41,216 105,827
76,066 72,200 65,640 65,989 149,735
Result E
- Continuing operation -RHEEEEE
Loss before taxation GHAIER (45,810) (53,527) (68,063) (20,665) (6,032)
Income tax FTig#t (959) (820) (322) - -
(46,769) (54,347) (68,385) (20,665) (6,032)
- Discontinuing operation —BRIEEEER
Gain/(loss) from discontinued BRIEREER L
operations W/ (E8) (28,076) (50,703) (194,551) (38,625) 30,023
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries T E B 2 A g 66,909 - - - -
Income tax k2 - - - - (3,493)
38,833 (50,703) (194,551) (38,625) 26,530
Profit/(loss) for the year AEE (BR) e (7,936) (105,050) (262,936) (59,290) 20,498
Attributable to: ATALEE#E:
Equity shareholders ARAIREREA (7,936) (85,187) (252,841) (49,757) 14,084
Minority interests LYREER - (19,863) (10,095) (9,533) 6,414
(7,936) (105,050) (262,936) (59,290) 20,498
Earning/(loss) per share BRER/ (BE)
- Basic (HK Cents) —5EA& (B (0.19) (2.69) (8.34) (1.64) 0.46
- Diluted (HK Cents) -85 (B1) N/ATER  NATERE  NATER  NATER NATER




Five Year Financial Summary

A FMBHRE

At At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
R20074 20065 720054 20045 720034
12A31H 12A31H 12R318 12A31H 12A310
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FEL TEL FEL TEL
Assets and liabilities EEHEE
Non-current assets ERBEE 191,249 558,382 580,724 758,825 691,520
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE/ (8F)FE 69,600 (294,270) (252,539) (57,617) 78,413
Non-current liabilities EnBEE - (160,000) (192,308) (320,755) (330,189)
Net assets BEFAE 260,849 104,112 135,877 380,453 439,744
Minority interests PERRE R - - (19,099) (28,642) (38,176)
Total equity attributable to ARAREREA
equity shareholders JEfh B
of the Company 260,849 104,112 116,778 351,811 401,568

The above figures are based on the latest published financial

statements, except for the summary of results for each of four

years ended 31 December 2006 and assets and liabilities as at 31
December 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006 which have been restated

its presentation currency from Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars.

Details are set out in notes to financial statements 2(b).

TR FHERRAPHE T BERRER
EEHZE2006F 12A3MBIEMNEFESFZE
BEBEE 0 LA R 2003%F - 20044 20056 &
2006F12A31B v EERBBEHEINEE
BARBBAB T -F BN Y B ®EM

#2(b)e
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Chairman’s Statement

EEHRES

2007 was a busy but productive year for the Group. In January,
the Group entered into an agreement to acquire 100% interest
of the Grassy Trails Oil Field in Utah, United States. The oil field is
located in Emery County of Utah with a site area of 26 km?2.
Since then, the Group has used every single mean to boost

production.

Re-work of the oil wells took place in July bringing 5 old wells
online. It marked a milestone for the Group when the first delivery
of our crude oil was made to Chevron’s Utah refinery in September
26, 2007. By end of 2007, the Group took advantage of the
surging crude oil price and decided to adopt a more aggressive
approach by adding two 6.25"” horizontal well bores to Federal
Well 12-13. The horizontal drilling within the most porous four
feet of the A Zone reservoir in the Moenkopi Formation boosts

production by 8 to 10 times.

The horizontal drilling in Federal Well 12-13 was the first of its
kind in South Utah. It was complete in February 2008 with
production of upto 200 barrels of oil per day. While crude oil
price stood at high level, we intend to add another 4 horizontal

drilling for two wells in the second half of 2008.

Although we might see the US economy to shrink in 2008 which
could deteriorate oil demand, depreciation of the USD and
burgeoning Chinese consumption are expected to drive the Brent
Crude to new record highs. The Board will consider progressively

more acquisition in Utah if opportunity arises.

On the other side of the globe, we entered into a joint venture
agreement to develop the Xun Yi Oil Field in Shaanxi, the PRC in
August, 2007. The oil field is located approximately 250 km
northwesterly of Xian, where the famous Terra Cotta Warriors
and Horses was found. An experienced exploration team has been
working very hard to locate the best site for the first drilling. The
team is led by our senior engineer Mr. Ma Xinsheng who took
part in the discovery of first gas well in the Su Li Ge Basin in the
70’s. The Xun Yi Oil Field has a site area of approximately 560
km? and is estimated to have a contingent recoverable resource
of over 511 million barrels of oil equivalent. Drilling is expected

to take place in mid-2008.

2007@%1% BEEICE: EIERRE M —Fo—
P AKEERTEE R & WEEEEMN
dIIE&/EEEﬂmO%E’]%*'u/EE FH oz 74 788 fth 1
S EFIE (Emery County) {526 5 A B
Bt AEEBEHNEAZBERRESER-

BHEREACHRRETEH FROEH
EHIE-2007F9A 268 B R MEN R H
WRHBEZMMINSHERAMR ZHELRE
EEATHHNESER-2007F K AEBEH
ST 2B EARME AERAERER
#7505 M A 6.25M K HER RS B #1213
SRIF-EE BRI HE (Moenkopi Formation)
AR FhEFILIEE &SN ER N#EITK
Tt FEERIRES T8E10E

B R E B F812-135% H 607K T £ H 78 7 b )N
EMNBEN - EEMR2008F 27K A F
HEE XA E2008 M - B RAE B DR
=L T APIETBI2008F T ¥ F ¥ BINM O H 5
AR KT F o

BN 2008F BB Al e 2 A TR IR &7
BEABE R BELREMFTBRFELRNH
B KE S HBMEERAEREIFOE
EEEH-EREXH EEEKERET MMM
TG 3 1T U BB o

IR S —uh ey P B AP 2007F 8 A %5
TEEREESR RBEPERAGSHE A
BHAEENE T BHEENESENELIN
K250 R B -HPKBEENEKCES D
ﬁ&i%)ﬂﬁ%#mﬂimaoﬁﬂFﬁH@%%&IEEﬂi
BEEEEESZER 70FR G2 7T #
ERAHEERHNEIRIBE A2 HEGH
A560F HF AR A BERENERSIE
f@m - T HAfE 2008 F P R 1A SE HF -



Chairman’s Statement
FERES

The Group was awarded as the operator for E Tuo Ke Oil Field in
Inner Mongolia in early 2008. The oil field is located in the
southern border of Inner Mongolia with an area covering 1,030
km?2. The total perspective resource of the oil field is believed to
be over 197 million barrels of oil equivalent. Co-operation project
in E Tuo Ke Qil field shows a new business mode for the Group
where capital expenditure can be reduced substantially. The owner
of the field is a vigorous and reputable conglomerate who finances
all drilling expenses by itself. We expect co-operation of the two
parties will procure certain degree of synergy in the area and we

believe the co-operation will elevate in the future.

The Board also re-balanced the Group’s business portfolio by selling
its distressed asset, Xinjiang Xingmei Oil Pipeline Company Limited,
in September 2007. The move eliminated the gearing of the Group
and most importantly, the newly generated profit from the

upstream business will no longer be diluted.

For the financial year 2007, we still see a minor loss, however the
cash flow and balance sheet of the Group were resilient by the
year end. The fund raising exercise of the Group in the first
quarter received overwhelming support from institutional investors.
We believe a stronger financial position and rising Brent Crude
price would enable the Group to expand in the upstream market

progressively.

Success in year 2007 was mainly attributable to all our
hardworking and brilliant colleagues and professional external
partners. | would like to take this opportunity to extend my most
sincere thanks to all of you for all the fine work, especially to
those who accomplished the drilling in unprecedented snowstorm
during winter time in Utah. We are fully confident of having a
turnaround for financial year 2008, let us work together to achieve

this goal!

Xing Xiao Jing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 April 2008

AEEBET2008F N EZ AN E BT HEE
MEEE - FREABMELRARHEHEE
G %71,030F A R B -TEFH BB AIAKRERE
BERB1.97E MBS E - BIERBENAE
BEHLARBEAARI KERIE BR T HH
EERX - HAREER —RANBHEEEXR
TtE - MMECEEEMBENEFERNFA
X RMAEBEFESEAIUER LA ER—
ERENHRME KMBBEERETNE
EG B AT Mo

EEEH2007F9RHETTREEMEESR
ARBEEERA AT EMTFEHTEENEKA
G HEEXETEERTEENARE REE
M EHEBELENFNEETERER

BAMFLRASRAVNEERERDABRK
B R FTEEEREEGHBIREENAD
XEpeoHMEE RROMBARNTE LT
E A B8 A [ (B R S i SR B B R E MR R B

M5 e

007F KN BETHABS LR ENFHREE
W ITERNBEXENIINBEERHORNZFF K
FHEBIEEHRMRTH RN RG KA
AL L RERMMNEEFARENERASZD
ARTKEBEHOTIEABRTH RN KM
ROTE2008F RIS E KT EHRMARS
hBZEMI
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Management Discussion And Analysis

EEENWmRDN

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2007, Genesis Energy Holdings
Limited (the “Company” or “Genesis Energy”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as the “Group”) recorded an increase of total
turnover by 5.4% to HK$76.1 million (2006: HK$72.2 million),
among which, there was turnover generated from oil
transportation business, a discontinued operation during the year,
amounts HK$44.7 million (2006: HK$44.7 million). Merely taking
into account of the continuing operations, the Group recorded a
turnover of HK$31.4 million (2006: HK$27.5 million). Loss for
the year was substantially narrowed down by 92% to HK$7.9
million (2006: loss of HK$105.1 million).

2007 has been an exciting year. In September 2007, the Group
entered into a disposal agreement with the Company’s controlling
shareholder which acquired the Group’s entire interest in Xinjiang
Xingmei Oil-pipeline Co. Ltd. (that engaged in the oil
transportation business in Xinjiang). As a result of this disposal,
the Group has had the loss making business disposed of, and
made a clean break against any potential liabilities arising from

the bank loans.

More important, we have tapped the investment opportunities in
the upstream oil business. In January 2007, the Group entered
into an acquisition agreement, and pursuant to which the Group
acquired the exploitation rights of a 26km? oil field in Utah, the
United States. Further in August 2007, the Group entered into a
legally binding cooperation agreement in relation to the oil
exploration and exploitation project in Shaanxi Province, the PRC.
This transaction also signifies our first move into the upstream oil
business in the PRC. Subsequently in February 2008, the Group
has entered into another legally binding operating agreement
and the Group is commissioned to be the operator of the E Tuo
Ke Oil & Gas Field.

XKkEE

B ZE2007F12A31HLFE Al ERIERE
AR ([ARA]KTBIFER]) REWNEA
Al (BB AER]) BENEEBLASA%E
7,6108 7 7T (20064 17,2208 % T) *Hh - 3
BN A MER XSG E ETE44708%
7T (20065 14,4708 % 7T) - (B A F B X5
S EEEE EE3,1408 5 T (2006%F
2,750B B TT) AFEBBERBHRER%E
7908 % 7T (20064F : E5#E 10,5108 B 7T) °

2007 B2 AREH —F200759H K HH
NRAERRREZET —HEERZ BIERR
REFEEELHBEXZABMEBEARDA (&
EURFENARERER) WAMBERERE &
BEEERTEHEBEES M5 TRITEE
AJRET R BT -

EEEMR EENETHRE LA BRAKE
BHE-2007F 1R SEEET —HWER
BoBE B EE MM IN26F T A B A H H
RiE-HEM2007F8A SEHEET —HER
BIpR PR & fER IR A MIE B A EELR
NeE S EEEEAPE LA MBBER
¥ - TIRE2008F 2R SBEE TS A
BEZXEBORNOBE KAANTESHET M
)& E R o



Management Discussion And Analysis

EEENWR DN

The Group is encouraged by this steady and solid growth it has
achieved this year. In addition to the oil field in the United States,
our investment in the oil project in Shaanxi Province is our first
move in the region, and being an oil field operator in E Tuo Ke
Oil Field will bring a low risk opportunity for the Group to enjoy
returns from a project of great potential. The Group has now
assembled a diversified asset portfolio, combining both short term
and long term growth opportunities. Despite the subprime crisis
in the United States and the tightening of macro-economic control
measures in mainland China will have certain impacts on the
regional economy, we are still committed to build our Group into
one of the leading independent oil and gas companies in the
Greater China region with a portfolio of quality assets and to

grow the business by developing these assets efficiently.

Upstream Operation

Grassy Trails oil field, Utah, the United States

In January 2007, Genesis Petroleum US Inc., a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an agreement to acquire the exploitation
rights of Grassy Trails oil field at a total consideration of US$6.6
million (approximately HK$51.3 million). The transaction was
completed in June 2007. Grassy Trails oil field located in both
Emery County and Carbon County, Utah, with an area of
approximately 26km?. It was discovered in 1962 and it has yielded
approximately 600,000 barrels of golden-colored, light, sweet
crude oil since then. Subsequent in February 2008, we have
successful completed the first horizontal drilling on Federal 12-
13, which is expected to produce an additional 200 barrels per
day. A recent independent technical report revealed that the
proven reserve of crude oil on Grassy Trails has been revised up
to about 1.36 million barrels. With our experienced and dedicated
technical team and drilling crews, we were able to overcome the
glacial weather with fruitful results while doing the first horizontal.
Currently, our team is working on a second and third horizontal

drilling and we expect to elevate the daily production of oil.

SEXAEFERIEEREROSIE -REBEH
Bz REHREEAHMEENRETEE
RFpRrZEE MA KA HANEE
BREEEEXEEAR SRHENIREKSE-
ARl RENEEAEZLIL BRERRE
HgER#E - BEXBRRARRBEELRPERX
ENERERAESRBELBET R -—ENY
8 KENBEIREIATERBREF LKL
LENAENE BESEENEEMEA I
BBAYHAERBAEETKEGRER

LEE®
3 &7 o M 2 8 H

2007 1R AAGIHME L R — Bl AME
B ARIEEBWHE L660BET (45,1308 %
T MREBGSEHHMNARE WIBERZ S
7220074 6 A 1E = 78 5 o B 18 i B 2 7 78 fto M
NERBRRABEBELN26F AR HAR
19624 835 - B & H 49600,000fF & 2 - 8¢ & -
KB R M °2008F 2 A+ A R EBE FH 12-135%
B D3 45 B B K 3 TE ER B K38 hn A & 200
R R B hHNRAREER]IR136
ER-ARRTERKREFEEENERNE
N EMERTBEERR RIS TEEKRH
A ARBEBEERNREE -—_RE=AKTF
HOHBEE-—SHEMBES-
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Management Discussion And Analysis

BEENmE DN

Xun Yi oil field, Shaanxi, the PRC

In August 2007, the Group entered into a legally binding
cooperation agreement with a PRC partner in relation to an oil
exploration and exploitation project in Shaanxi Province, the PRC.
It covers a site area of over 500 km?. Pursuant to the cooperation
agreement, the PRC partner shall provide the use of the oil
development zone, while the Group shall carry out exploration
and exploitation works. The Group and the PRC partner shall
each share 95% and 5% respectively of profits generated from
the project. The oil field is located in Shaanxi Province and
stretches across the northern part of Xun Yi County, Zhi Tian
Town, Qiu Po Tou Town, Ma Lan Town, Qi Li Chuan in the eastern
part of Xun Yi County and Cheng Guan Town. According to a
preliminary technical report by our geologists, petroleum initially
in place is approximately 510 million barrels of crude oil. We are
currently preparing a detailed drilling plan and this project will
spearhead our oil exploration and exploitation business in the
PRC. It will become the business model to drive our further

developments in the fuel-producing Shaanxi-Gansu-Ningxia area.

o B B 7T & ] &

200758 KEEFFEBAEZETERHA
PREG SRR RNEEEARIOHE
B REEAS00F F AR -RIEAERZ T H
ERABREHERAEHE SEREED
FRAZETIE-SE(REBEFMENGSY%  RAHE
BAES% - MEAMAKREL EEa8 &%t
OB ME M EE SHE AR
B RBEE-REARMMEERE AN
BiTsRE wEFENASIVERER B AR E
RIEEEBEFANFRSE - ANBBEBERAA
EPBERERHNRAZEBOHLE KAD
AE—SLHRERA R SEORERNE
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Management Discussion And Analysis

EEENWR DN

E Tuo Ke oil and gas field, Inner Mongolia, the PRC

In February 2008, subsequent to the year end, the Group entered
into a legally binding operating agreement with another PRC
partner, pursuant to which the Group is commissioned to be the
operator of the E Tuo Ke Qil & Gas Field (A5 & SB+E 7 ) A,
Tuo Ke") . As the operator of the project, the Group will provide
related investigation, exploration and operating services for a
number of prospects in E Tuo Ke to which our PRC partner holds
the property right. The owner will fund the operating costs of
our team for E Tuo Ke. The Group will receive a 7% management
fee based on the net sales revenue of E Tuo Ke, after deducting
depreciation as well as certain direct expenses. Pursuant to the
agreement, Genesis Energy will commission a new geological study
of the E Tuo Ke block in order to draw up a detailed drilling
scheme. Genesis Energy will also take reference from a previous
geological report undertaken by a Canadian petroleum consulting
firm. With reference to this preliminary technical report, the
estimated total production of natural gas is upto 4,900 million
M3 in five years time. Our PRC partner in Inner Mongolia will
enjoy strong leverage of our experience in oil and gas exploration
and production while this agreement will open up for us a new
stream of management fee revenues. This collaboration model
will bring a low risk opportunity for the Group to enjoy returns

from a project of great potential.

Downstream Operation

Natural Gas Pipeline Network

The natural gas pipeline network is operated by our subsidiary
Lejion Gas Co. Ltd. (“Lejion Gas”), which the Group owns as to
72% of its equity interest. Last year, Lejion Gas entered into a
short term contracting agreement with the local government that
the business of sale of piped natural gas would be operated by
the local government while Lejion could focus its resources to the
business of refilling stations which supply natural gas and LPG for
vehicle use. This reallocation of resources has brought improvement

to the sales of natural gas at refilling stations.

B g 5% 2 25 #E 52 W SR H
WEEH% 2008F 28 SEHES—RPHE
BABZBRAEBRANRINKEEHBE -BER
FEERNARNE TSR AR EES-
EREBEENEER SEHRSIT AHREM
HAHDRREERE MPAEaBRAEEE
BomEMBEBARRNSIERERIEMRE
BER SBNENRFTERECEEEA
B REBERANFHERAEFTTI%NERE
BRI R Bl RAGE SBIE R R MR AT
—RHFHHME AL ARG FANERF TR
BIFTREIRIE 2 E 2 B — FT il & KA B
AEIHEMHE RE - RIB VAR M R ETE
Al ZEESFRAREE N =E49008E L
FR-AREHPFEEABZ RN D REH
RHAKREE FNEELR Mt HELER
RATRAFNERBRARBE - EEAHERRK
FEEEEZRERRE SLHRMIEE K-

NEER

ARREEH#%
AAREEBBEHAEEZMEABEIMNF R
MEARAR ([FRE]) &L REBEE XM
BRAI72% AR SR o = F - B HE 8 E 3 BT
IV T—HEGR HRBEHBALEEE
BRARHEEER MARAKEEREFR
A ERAR K TERRE A BRI
Bt RERZEMDSEEHGUMRAREE
BT E-
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Management Discussion And Analysis

BEENmE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover and Loss Attributable to Shareholders
Turnover for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007
increased by 5.4% to HK$76.1 million (2006: HK$72.2 million),
among which, there was turnover generated from oil
transportation business, a discontinued operation during the year,
amounted HK$44.7 million (2006: HK$44.7 million). Only taking
into account of the continuing operation, the Group recorded a
turnover of HK$31.4 million (2006: HK$27.5 million). Loss for
the year was substantially narrowed down by 92% to HK$7.9
million (2006: loss of HK$105.1 million)

Turnover was mainly sourced from natural gas pipeline network
that recorded a turnover of HK$31.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2007, representing a 13% increase comparing with
that of last year (2006: HK$27.5 million). The revenue of HK$0.3
million was contributed by the oil exploitation in Utah, which just

commenced operation by end of 2007.

Apart from the continued operation, the disposal of oil
transportation business during the year not only had the loss
making operation disposed of, but also registered a gain on the
disposal of HK$38.8 million.

Bt 7% 1B B8

EXBERRREMAEE
AEEHZE2007F12A831HIEFENEESE
FEAS5.4%%E7,6108 % T (20065 :7,2208 %
TO) HA O EXEEREARFEREFEL
EHRHERER FEEEFELL708 8T
(20065 :4,4708 B T) - BB HEKE X
% EE ARG & X FE3,1408 B 7T (20064
2,750B B T) B FEBBRBKRER%E
7908 B 7T (20064 : EBSE 151088 T) °

EREBTERBRA[BTBEY B E2007F
12A31BBE¥E3 08B T HEFME
Lt K 13% (20065 12,7508 % ) - B H 30
BEETHEEEREBMMNAMARER Z
XBER2007FEFRIREE-

BTHEBEREEBRIN XFEMEEZAMIE
BEBKTEMS T EBRERS BEHEHEZE
HEIUL A 3,8808 5 T



Management Discussion And Analysis

BEEENWmRE DN

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

In February 2007, the Group raised approximately HK$120 million,
net of related expenses, from issue of 374,000,000 new shares
of the Company which is intended to be used for general working
capital and possible investment in energy sector, in particular the
up stream oil business. Further, the disposal of the oil
transportation operation has also brought a positive impact to
the financial position of the Group. As at 31 December 2007, the
net assets of the Group have increased to HK$260.8 million (31
December 2006: HK$104.1 million) while its total assets were
HK$307.9 million (31 December 2006: HK$627.7 million). As at
31 December 2007, the Group's gross borrowings net of cash
and bank balances was nil as compared to HK$411.6 million as
at 31 December 2006. Gearing ratio based on total assets was
0% (31 December 2006: 65.5%). The current ratio as at balance
sheet date was 2.5 (31 December 2006: 0.19). In terms of the
gearing ratio and current ratio, the balance sheet of the Group as
at 31 December 2007 was sound and healthy, together with the
anticipating strong cash flow from the upstream operation, it will
place the Group in a strong financial position to take advantage
of new attractive oil and gas investment opportunities that may

arise.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATION
Details of the Group's exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates
and related hedges are included in Currency Risk note 30(d) to

the financial statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2007, the Group employed approximately
155 employees. The remuneration policies of the Group are based
on the prevailing remuneration level in the market and the

performance of respective companies and individual employees.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms. Xing Xiao Jing, aged 50, was appointed as Executive Director
of the Company in September 2005 and Chairman of the Company
since November 2005. Ms. Xing is also the director of Hong
Chang Group Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company.
Ms. Xing has extensive experience in consultancy business of
energy related projects and property investment in the
northeastern part of the PRC. She graduated at Jilin Industrial
University, the PRC with a bachelor degree in computer science
and application in June 1982. Ms. Xing has been running her
own consultant business with offices both in Hong Kong and
Shenzhen, the PRC since February 2001. Prior to starting her own
business, she worked for the Computer Laboratory of the Railway
Bureau of Jilin, the PRC for more than two years from January
1982 to September 1984, and the Economic Commission of Jilin
City, the PRC for more than fifteen years from October 1984 to
January 2001, where extensive connections and relations were

developed.

Mr. Kong Siu Tim, aged 42, was appointed as Non-Executive
Director of the Company in August 2005 and redesignated as
Executive Director of the Company in November 2005. In January
2008, Mr. Kong has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. Mr. Kong holds a master degree of Economics at
University of Warwick, UK. Mr. Kong had been the general
manager of the East Asia Futures Limited and director of the
private banking division of ABN AMRO BANK, Hong Kong Branch.
Mr. Kong has years of experience in banking and securities
industries and he is a member of the Hong Kong Securities

Institute.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
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Mr. Ma Ji, aged 42, was appointed as Non-Executive Director of
the Company in November 2004 and redesignated as Executive
Director of the Company in August 2005. He was appointed as
Deputy Chairman of the Company since November 2005. Mr. Ma
holds a Master of Architectural Engineering Management from
Chong Qing University. Mr. Ma is currently studying for Doctorate
of Engineering System Management in Tianjing University. He
also worked as project manager or director in charge of bidding,
claim, construction and contract management for highway, bridge
and building construction projects in United Arab Emirates,

Pakistan, Cambodia, Russia and Sri Lanka, etc..

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ni Zhenwei, aged 71, was appointed as Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in November 2005. Professor
Ni graduated at Tsinghua University in 1959, majoring in
mechanical engineering. Since then, he had been teaching and
conducting research activities at the Tsinghua University. In 1987,
Professor Ni obtained his qualification as an associate researcher
in Tsinghua University and retired in 1996. Professor Ni is an
independent non-executive director of Hong Kong listed VST
Holdings Limited. He is also a senior advisor to Korea’s POSCO
Group, China Oceanwide Group, STIG Limited, EC Guard Limited

and a number of conglomerates.

Mr. Yip Ching Shan, aged 45, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in July 2003. He graduated
from Jinan University, Guangzhou, PRC in 1988 with a bachelor
degree in Finance. He obtained his master degree in Economic
from Kobe University of Commerce, Japan in 1991. Mr. Yip also
worked for several multi-national banks and securities houses in
Japan and Hong Kong. He has over 10 years of experience in

financial field.

Mr. Wong Kwok Chuen, Peter, aged 48, was appointed as
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in April 2006.
Mr. Wong is currently a practising barrister-at-law of the High
Court of the Hong Kong SAR. Mr. Wong holds a master degree
of commerce in marketing from University of Strathclyde, UK and
a post-graduate certificate in laws from University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Wong has more than 14 years of extensive experience in

legal practice.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
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Financial Controller and Company Secretary

Mr. Wan Tze Fan Terence, aged 43, has been appointed as the
financial controller and company secretary of the Company since
April 2001. Mr. Wan holds a bachelor degree of commerce and a
master degree of business administration. He has years of
experience in accounting and financial management and has
worked for international accounting firms and listed companies
in Hong Kong. He is a Fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a Certified Practising Accountant

of CPA Australia.

Technical Team
Mr. Li Guoyu, aged 77, has

Consultant since April 2007. He is a senior engineer at the

joined the Group as Chief Technical

professor level. Mr. Li graduated from the Geological Department
of Lanzhou University. He was elected the academician of Russian
Academy of Natural Science in 1988. Mr. Li was also the Head of
Crude QOil and Gas Resource Bureau of China National Petroleum
Corporation and took part in the discovery of major oilfields in
China including Karamay, Daging, Shengli, North China and
Dagang etc.. Mr. Li was awarded the National Special Award for
Scientific-technical Progress in Pohai Oilfield. Mr. Li is the author
of thirty-five petroleum geology books including “China Atlas of
Oil and Gas Basins” and “World Atlas of Oil and Gas Basins” etc.
and has published more than 84 research papers and articles in
famous professional journals in the United States, Russia, Britain
and France. Mr. Li has launched the new school of geological
theory called “Sedimentary Basin Theory” in 1978 which was
widely recognised by fellow geologists in the following 30th
International Geologist Meeting and generally applied by the
worldwide petroleum industry in production, scientific research
and teaching. Mr. Li was also a professor of China Petroleum
University, Xian Petroleum College, Texas University in the United

States and Siberian University in Russia.
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Dr. Xie Da Jin, aged 50, has joined our Group as the deputy
general manager of Xian Hong Chang Petroleum Development
and Service Company Ltd. and the Group’s Chief Geologist since
February 2008. Dr. Xie graduated with a bachelor degree in
petroleum exploration from Chang Chun Geology Institute in 1982.
He also holds a doctoral degree in geophysics and information
technology from Jilin University. Dr. Xie has over 25 years of
extensive experience in the oil and gas industry and had been in
charge of various petroleum exploration and oilfield construction
projects. He was the Deputy Division Chief of the Exploration
Technology Department of the Northeast Oil Bureau, Sinopec (the
“Qil Bureau”) from 1999 to 2002. Prior to this, he was the head
of the exploration/technical department of the Oil Bureau from
1982 to 1987 and then the project director at the Beijing office
of the Oil Bureau until 1994.

Mr. Hou Xiu Chuan, aged 40, joined the Group as Consulting
Geologist since December 2006. Prior to this, he served as engineer
in Dagang Oilfield since 1991. He graduated from China Geology
University (Wuhan) from 1991 with Bachelor degree, majoring in
petroleum exploration and geology. During the tenure in Dagang
Qilfield, Mr. Hou had been participating into production capability
expansion and conducted various researches on well drilling
matters. In 2004 and 2005, he completed (A& i M 20045 &
FEN IR 3 B IR R A 5 B 5 REB{L EBE ) “Planning on Research
and Analysis of Progressive Exploration and Development for
Dagang Oilfields 2004" and K H 20056 8 ik F % B
Z 55 25 8% 5 B (L E6E ) “Planning on Research and Analysis
of Progressive Exploration and Development for Dagang Oilfields
2005" which were awarded National Special Award and Second
Award in “Innovative Technology Award” respectively. In addition,
he also jointly published articles with others including {X{z# 3
BIFFFE SR A®) “Evaluation on Mega-Extended-Reach Wells and
Well Logging in Hong Kong and China Developing Zones”, {#& &
MERMTEMRBEIRFABEERTR)
Relationship between Depositional Micro-facies and Well Pattern
for Injection and Production” as well as {/&£8-63 & 7B 52
fih B 78 Bl 19 452 & #F 9T ) " Comprehensive Study of Channel Sand
Prediction in GQ8-6 Well Block”.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed
to high standards of corporate governance for the purpose of
providing a framework and solid foundation for its business
operation and development. The Company considers that effective
corporate governance with probity, transparency and accountability
makes an important contribution to corporate success and to

enhancement of shareholders value.

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year
2007 except for Code Provision A.4.1 which requires that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. None of the existing non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) of the Company
is appointed for a specific term. However, as all of them are
subject to the retirement provisions of the Bye-laws of the
Company, the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance

practices are no less exacting than those in the Code.

THE BOARD

The Board is structured to ensure it is of a high calibre and has a
balance of key skills and knowledge. The Board comprises three
executive Directors, namely Ms. Xing Xiao Jing (Chairman), Mr.
Kong Siu Tim and Mr. Ma Ji and three independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs"”) required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules, namely Mr. Ni Zhenwei, Mr. Yip Ching Shan and Mr. Wong
Kwok Chuen Peter. Mr. Yip Ching Shan has appropriate
qualifications and accounting related financial expertise required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. There is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship between
the Directors. All the three INEDs are independent under these
independence criteria, and with their wide range of skills and
experience to the Group, they are capable to effectively exercise
independent judgment on issues of strategy, performance, risk
and people through their contribution at Board and committee

meetings.
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The Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as Directors in the best interests of the
Company and that the current board size is adequate for its
present operations. Each of the Directors keeps abreast of his/her
responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the conduct,

business activities and development of the Company.

The biographical details of the Directors are listed in the section
of “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” in this annual
report and that the INEDs are expressly identified in all of the
Company'’s publication such as circular, announcement or relevant
corporate communications in which the names of Directors of

the Company are disclosed.

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis and on ad hoc
basis to meet its business needs. The attendance of individual
Directors at board meetings and at two other board committees
(the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee) during

the year is set out as below.

Meetings Attended/Held during term of office in
2007
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Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Committee
Exeg EXEES FMEs =
Number of meetings rEEREBTEREA
held during the year 17 2 1
Executive Directors HITES
Xing Xiao Jing (Chairman) s (£F) 15/17 - -
Kong Siu Tim L 17/17 - -
Ma Ji 5 B 5/17 - 1/1
INEDs BYFHTES
Ni Zhenwei R 4/17 2/2 1/1
Yip Ching Shan ZHIW 4/17 2/2 1/1
Wong Kwok Chuen Peter =H2 4/17 2/2 -

Note: Mr. Ma Ji ceased to act, and Ms. Xing Xiao Jing was appointed, as a member
of the remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 1 January

2008.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are segregated
and performed by two separate individuals, Ms. Xing Xiao Jing
and Mr. Kong Siu Tim respectively, to ensure a balance of power
and authority. The Chairman of the Company provides leadership
to the Board and ensures that the Board discharges its
responsibilities effectively. Her primary roles and duties include to
formulate corporate strategies and plans in conjunction with the
Board and to ensure that Directors receive complete, accurate
and timely information and are properly briefed on issues arising
at Board meetings. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
the effective management and operation of the Company and his
primary roles and duties include to monitor and control the
operational and financial performance within the Group and to
implement the Company's strategy and policies for achieving its

objectives.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

The Company’s Bye-laws provide that each Director is required to
retire by rotation at least once every three years and that one-
third (or the number nearest to but not less than one-third) of
the Directors shall retire by rotation every year at the Company’s
annual general meeting. Retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company. In
considering the nomination of a new director, the Board will take
into account the qualification, in particular any qualification as
required in the Listing Rules, ability, working experience, leadership
and professional ethics of the candidates that, in the opinion of
the Directors, will enable them to make a positive contribution to
the performance of the Board. The Board considers that the
existing human resource policy in recruitment of new senior staff
is also applicable to nomination of a new director. As the Board
is responsible for selection and approval of candidates for
appointment as directors to the Board, the Company has not

established a nomination committee for the time being.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Apart from the fiduciary duty and statutory responsibility towards
the Company and the Group, the Board is responsible for the
management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing the Company and shareholders’ value.
Key responsibilities include formulation of the Group’s overall
strategies, setting of corporate and management targets,
monitoring of operational and financial matters, approval of major
capital expenditures, material acquisitions and disposal of assets,
corporate or financial restructuring, material borrowings and any
issuing, or buying back, of equity securities. Responsibility for
delivering Company’s objectives and running the business on a
day-to-day basis is delegated to divisional management who have

been given clear guidelines and directions as to their authority.

The Company has adopted the Model Code (the “Model Code”)
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company‘s code of conduct
and rules governing dealing by all directors in the securities of

the company.

All the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard regarding directors’ securities dealings set

out in the Model Code during the year.

SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The Company updates the Directors from time to time with
development in the laws and regulations relevant to their role as
director of the Company. Directors are also encouraged to update
their skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Group through
initial induction, ongoing participation at Board and committee

meetings.

The Company’s senior management regularly supplies the Board
and its committees with adequate information in a timely manner
to enable them to make informed decisions. All Directors have
access to Board papers and related materials that will assist them
for decision making. Any Director, wishing to do so in the
furtherance of his or her duties, may take independent professional

advice through the Company’s expense.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements
and industry practice. The Board has established a Remuneration
Committee which comprises three members with a majority of
whom are INEDs, namely Mr. Ni Zhenwei, Mr. Yip Ching Shan
and Ms. Xing Xiao Jing. The committee is chaired by an INED, Mr.
Yip Ching Shan. The Remuneration Committee meets at least
once a year. With reference to business needs and company
development, individual performance and contribution, changes
in relevant markets and general economic situation, the
Remuneration Committee reviews and recommends to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration of the
Directors and senior management. During the review process, no
individual director is involved in decisions relating to his or her
own remuneration. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is made available to the public on request and by
including the information on the Company’s website to ensure

full compliance with the code provision B.1.4 of the Code.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board is accountable for proper stewardship of the Company’s
affairs, and is responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps fair
and accurate accounting records which disclose its financial
position. The Directors also acknowledge their responsibility to
prepare the financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. This

responsibility extends to both interim and the annual reports.
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Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain
and review the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
controls to ensure that shareholders’ investments and the Group’s

assets are safeguarded.

In order to improve the level of corporate governance and
safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets, under
the guidance of the Code, the Group has performed a
comprehensive review for the internal control system systematically
annually with an aim to establish an effective and comprehensive

internal control system within the Group.

The Group and its principal subsidiaries are trying to establish a
variety of more effective and stringent regulations and
management system for corporate internal controls. As such,
subject to the requirements of the Group, all principal subsidiaries
of the Group will complete the preparation of corporate internal
control system in respect of control environment and control
procedure with reference to their respective operational and

managerial characteristics.

The internal control system of the Group covers all material control
requirements, including financial controls, operational controls,
compliance controls and risk management functions. The Board
of the Company has ongoing comprehensive review on the Group's
internal control systems and risk management which with
execution in good condition and no significant control failures or
weaknesses have been noted. The board considered that these
systems of internal controls were effective and sufficient to
guarantee the Group in achieving its operation and governance

objectives.
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The Group will constantly improve and strengthen its corporate
control with reference to changes in the operating environment
in order to enhance its corporate governance and safeguard the
interests of its shareholders. The Board will continue to carry out
regular review on the internal control system. The assessment
shall cover all material controls and the management will regularly
present particular report to the Audit Committee and report to
the Board in a timely manner. All these aim at ensuring the
efficient utilization of and adding value to the Group’s assets,
reducing corporate management risk and providing a better

protection to shareholders’ interests.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee assists the Board in discharging its
responsibilities for corporate governance, financial reporting and
corporate control. The Committee comprises three INEDs, namely
Mr. Ni Zhenwei, Mr. Yip Ching Shan and Mr. Wong Kwok Chuen
Peter, and is chaired by Mr. Yip Ching Shan. None of the Audit
Committee members are members of the former or existing
auditors of the Company. The Committee meets at least twice a
year. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review
the completeness, accuracy and fairness of the Company’s financial
statements, evaluating the Company’s auditing scope and
procedures as well as its internal control systems and to review
the interim and final financial statements before their submission
to the Board and the annual general meeting for approval. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including
independent access to and advice from external auditors. The
terms of reference which describes the authorities and duties of
the Audit Committee has been adopted with reference to “A
Guide for Effective Audit Committees” published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in accordance
with Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee is made available to the public on request
and by including the information on the Company’s website to

ensure full compliance with the code provision C.3.4 of the Code.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS
CCIF CPA Limited has been re-appointed as the Company’s external
auditor by shareholders at the 2007 Annual General Meeting

until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting.

During the year, the fees paid or payable to the external auditors
of the Company, CCIF CPA Limited were approximately
HK$660,000 for statutory audit services and HK$230,000 in total
for non-audit services (being HK$180,000 for services rendered
in connection with the major transaction relating to the acquisition
of Grassy Trails Qil Field and HK$50,000 in connection with the
major and connected transaction relating to the disposal of
Xinjiang Xingmei Oil-Pipeline Co., Ltd.) rendered (including

disbursement fees) to the Group.

The reporting responsibilities of CCIF CPA Limited, the Auditors,
are stated in the Auditors’ Report on page 37 of the Annual
Report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication
with shareholders as well as investors. Information in relation to
the Group is disseminated to shareholders and investors in a
timely manner through a number of formal channels, include
interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars. Annual
general meetings and special general meetings also provide a
useful forum for shareholders to share views with the Board.
Members of the Board (including member(s) of the Audit and
Remuneration Committees) attend shareholders’ meetings and

make themselves available to answer shareholders’ questions.

Details of poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders
to demand a poll are included in circulars for shareholders’

meetings sent to shareholders.
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The directors submit their annual report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007, which

are set out on pages 40 to 176.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group engaged during the year were
the oil and gas exploitation and operations, the oil transportation
business and the operation of a natural gas pipeline network and
refilling stations supplying natural gas and liquefied petroleum
gas for vehicle use. In October 2007, the Group ceased its oil

transportation business.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to

the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006: Nil).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$250,000.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the

year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS
Details of the Group’s borrowings at the balance sheet date are

set out in note 23 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company

during the year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group

during the year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

PLACEMENT OF NEW SHARES

On 11 February 2007, Hong Chang China Limited (“HCC"), a
wholly owned subsidiary of Hong Chang Group Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, entered into a placing
agreement and a top-up subscription agreement with placing
agents and the Company respectively. A total of 374,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were placed at a placing price
of HKO0.325 per share to not less than six placees (and not
connected persons of the Company). A total of approximately
HK$120 million, net of related expenses, (representing a net price
of approximately HK$0.32 per share) have been raised for possible
investment in energy and up-stream oil and gas projects. The
closing price of each share on 9 February 2007 (the last trading
day prior to the date on which the terms of the top-up subscription

agreement was fixed) was HK$0.365.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 4 and 5.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’'s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 61% and the largest
customer accounted for approximately 59% of the Group’s total
turnover for the year. The aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
46% and the largest supplier accounted for approximately 36%

of the Group’s total purchases for the year.
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The largest customer of the Group is the minority shareholder of
the Company'’s subsidiary. Xinjiang Xingmei Qil-Pipeline Co. Limited
(“Xinjiang Xingmei”) and the operation was discontinued during
the year. Please refer to the section “Continuing Connected

Transactions” and note 10 to the financial statements for details.

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)

had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Xing Xiao Jing (Chairman)
Mr. Kong Siu Tim

Mr. Ma Ji

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ni Zhenwei

Mr. Yip Ching Shan

Mr. Wong Kwok Chuen Peter

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-law 87(1), Ms. Xing Xiao Jing and
Mr. Ni Zhenwei will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves

for re-election. All other remaining directors continue in office.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers

all of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without

payment other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2007, the interests and short positions of the

directors (the “Directors”) and chief executive of the Company in

the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or

any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of the Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as

recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to

section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company

and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock

Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) were as

follow:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company

EERROREERO P ED

20075 12A31H ARREE ([EX]) &
THREHNARARISKEEMBHER (AFFE
HF RGO (TFHFREEKRD]) EXVERFT
BYooE) cRH HEARORESTHE
BN ARBIRBES RBERAIE3I2EFE
ZECRMAHIBE LT AR EFTETESR
S BESFA ([ZREFA]) MAMGRRF
REBBEXSMAERATE ([BA]) 2%

HRKAMT:

RALXFAROREAERO T ERZHR

Interests in shares/ Capacity/ Number of shares/
Name of Director underlying shares Nature of interest underlying shares held
EENS RERAREERG T ER B, REEkE FERe HEROGEE
Xing Xiao Jing Shares Corporate 1,720,880,650
B RE & &5 NG
Share Options Personal 42,000,000
i R &l A
Kong Siu Tim Shares Personal 10,500,000
LAt &5 &l A
Share Options Personal 47,000,000
i AR & A
Ma Ji Share Options Personal 40,000,000
55 i IR &l A
Ni Zhenwei Share Options Personal 4,000,000
152 i 12 i % & A
Yip Ching Shan Share Options Personal 4,000,000
Z25IL R &l A
Wong Kwok Chuen Peter Share Options Personal 4,000,000
=H 2 s #E &l A
Notes: (1) Particulars of directors’ interests in the share options of the Company MizE: (1) ZEFRARABREMNEZSSHRBR
are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme”. EEHE] —fpe
(2)  1,662,795,650 shares were owned by Hong Chang China Limited (2)  1,662,795,650/% 1D Th s EF B AR A A

(formerly China GeoMaxima Co., Ltd.), a company wholly owned by

Hong Chang Group Limited which in turn is wholly and beneficially

owned by Ms. Xing Xiao Jing. In addition, Hong Chang Group Limited

directly and beneficially owned 58,085,000 shares in the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, none of the
Directors nor any of their associates had any interests in the
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company on 6 March 2002. The Scheme is in full compliance
with the relevant requirements of Chapter 17 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rule”). The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to the eligible participants of the Group
in recognition of their contribution to the Group. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include any full-time employees and
executive and non-executive directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries and any suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers.
The Scheme became effective on 6 March 2002 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years

from that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval
of the limit and such limit may be refreshed by shareholders in
general meeting. However, the total maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes must not exceed 30% of the shares in

issue from time to time.
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The maximum entitlement for any eligible person (other than a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or any of their respective associates) is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of the latest grant does not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the relevant time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in general meeting. The period within which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised later
than 10 years from 6 March 2002.

The exercise price in relation to each option shall be determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion, but in any event shall not
be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date
of grant of such option; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of such option; and (iii) the nominal value of a share on the date

of grant of such option.

Some further disclosures relating to the Scheme are set out in

note 27 to the financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2007, the directors and employees of the

Group had the following personal interests in options to subscribe

for shares of the Company granted at nominal consideration under

the Scheme. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe

for one share. Details of share options held by the Directors and

employees of the Group and movements in such holdings during

the year ended 31 December 2007 are as follows:

Number of options

2007F12A31B - AEBEEEREENEE
FHEINEERERDTRBARFRG 2 BR
BAEAEAT 2 EA R - BHBRER TR
EARBIRRO 2 EF - AXEEERES
RELE2007F 12 A3 IEFEFAIFERERZ

SRR E

BREXE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Outstanding
at 1 January during during  at 31 December Exercise price
2007 the year the year 2007  Date of grant Exercise period per share
#2007% #2007
1818 128318 BRRH
i RATE RERRH RERTE WRTE RHWAH TEAR 2188
(DD.MM.YYYY) (DD.MM.YYYY) HKS$
(RH.AR5%%5%) (RHAREEFES) AL
Directors:
s
Xing Xiao Jing 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 02.11.2005 03.11.2005 - 02.11.2010 0.035
&S 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000 02.11.2006 02.11.2006 - 01.11. 2011 0.053
- 9,000,000 - 9,000,000  22.08.2007 22.08.2007 - 05.03.2012 0.375
Kong Siu Tim 15,000,000 - 10,000,000 5,000,000  02.11.2005 03.11.2005 - 02.11.2010 0.035
IO 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000  02.11.2006 02.11.2006 - 01.11.2011 0.053
- 17,000,000 - 17,000,000 22.08.2007 22.08.2007 - 05.03.2012 0.375
Ma Ji 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000 02.11.2005 03.11.2005 - 02.11.2010 0.035
5B 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000  02.11.2006 02.11.2006 - 01.11.2011 0.053
Ni Zhenwei - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000  22.08.2007 22.08.2007 - 05.03.2012 0.375
A
Yip Ching Shan - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000  22.08.2007 22.08.2007 - 05.03.2012 0.375
EEWL
Wong Kwok Chuen Peter - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 22.08.2007 22.08.2007 - 05.03.2012 0.375
BE2
Employees 32,000,000 - 25,000,000 7,000,000  02.11.2005 03.11.2005 - 02.11.2010 0.035
ks 220,000,000 - 170,000,000 50,000,000  02.11.2006 02.11.2006 - 01.11.2011 0.053
- 358,000,000 60,750,000 297,250,000 26.01.2007 26.02.2007 - 25.02.2012 0.189
- 362,000,000 - 362,000,000  22.08.2007 22.08.2007 - 05.03.2012 0.375
Notes: B 5
1. On 26 January 2007, 358,000,000 options were granted. The closing price 1. 358,000,00017 B B2 4 Ty 722007 F 1 A26 B F i o &

of the Company’s shares immediately before that date was HK$0.179 per

share.

2. On 22 August 2007, 400,000,000 options were granted. The closing price

of the Company’s shares immediately before that date was HK$0.345 per

share.

3. During the year, the weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares

immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised was

HK$0.394 per share.

REBRMNEEZBAZKRTERSTR0179E T

2. 400,000,00017 FE AR 4 Th A 2007F 8 A22 B & tH o K
RRIRM BEZAAM K™ EARETR0.345% T

3. FRARRB B EREITE B B AT B2 0
BFHUTERS0.394E T
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the sections “Directors’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Scheme”, at
no time during the year was the Company or any of its associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
of the Company or any of their spouses or children under eighteen
years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2007, the following persons, not being a
Director or chief executive of the Company, had an interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO:

Long position in shares of the Company

Name of shareholder

Capacity/Nature of interest

EEREROIEFZEFN

BRIESERERO RARERD P 2#Es | R IR
T &l PrREE N A QA S A AR AR B
B 0 AT B R R SR ] 2 BF > BUE AR
NRAIEFHWFEMEBENSTINA T T
BARRR AL E AR RHE 2 B S E 5
i 2 25 ©

FTERRz2ER
F2007F12A318 LU TALT (WIFARFE
ERTHAR) RIREBEES RIS EAIZE336
BIFE 2 BECMATERR AR R 2 RHD RAEER
HREERERIAR:

REAQXBROHPEEZHRE
Number of

shares held

BRRES B, HEMtE RO E
Hong Chang China Limited Beneficial 1,662,795,650
HEREBRAA EnMA
Hong Chang Group Limited Corporate 1,662,795,650
HEEBARAA NG
Beneficial 58,085,000
EnlER

Note: 1,662,795,650 shares were owned by Hong Chang China Limited (formerly
China GeoMaxima Co. Ltd.), a company wholly owned by Hong Chang
Group Limited which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Xing
Xiao Jing, the Chairman of the Board of the Company. In addition, Hong
Chang Group Limited directly and beneficially owned 58,085,000 shares.

Saved as disclosed above in this section, as at 31 December 2007,
the Company has not been notified of any other persons (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
any interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

BiaE: 1,662,795,650 M ThEBERBEER AR (A1
PREEXERAD)BEE - BETRAERAAHKE
EEARLARZERE MELAABESEERME
RELR2EAREHRA U BELRBEERARE
% & B 25 % %5 58,085,000/ B {7

Br EEIFTRERE SN PA2007F12A31H AR
A EEETAEMALT (TREARRIZE
FRTREH) SARBIEFESFRBEKRDE
3361 FE 2 B MR8 RN AR R KRHD kA
BROFPHEBEEDIOAR -
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Report of the Directors
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of retirement schemes operated by local authorities in the PRC.
The Group also operates a defined contribution scheme covering
full time employees in Hong Kong. Details of employee retirement

benefits are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the directors’ remuneration and highest paid
individuals’ emoluments are set out in note 8 and note 9 to the

financial statements respectively.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In November 1999, the Company's subsidiary, Xinjiang Xingmei,
entered into an agreement (the “Agreement”) with its minority
shareholder, for the provision of crude oil transportation, storage
and unloading services for a period of 20 years. On 5 December
2005, a new agreement (the “New Agreement”) was entered
into between Xinjiang Xingmei and the holding company of its
minority shareholder to replace and terminate the Agreement.
Pursuant to the New Agreement, (i) the services to be provided
by Xinjiang Xingmei under the New Agreement is identical but
the period of the services to be provided by Xinjiang Xingmei will
be expired and subject to review on 30 November 2008 instead
of 24 November 2019; (ii) both parties agreed that the Agreement
be terminated immediately and cease to have any effect on the
parties thereto; (iii) the payment terms as contemplated under
the Agreement be replaced by the terms set out in the New
Agreement; and (iv) the services to be provided by Xinjiang

Xingmei under the New Agreement are non-exclusive.

As mentioned in the circular dated 25 January 2006, the annual
cap in respect of the continuing connected transactions for the
year ending 31 December 2006 shall not exceed approximately
HK$85,000,000.

RKETE

REBN B Z KB EMEE o Bt 7 #E8
B2 BRKRGTEZKE - AKE I E M — T
BHARTE XNEBEEEZEBEE -EE
RRRE N IS E DI B T AP 526 ©

EEREEFALZHE

FREEL&ESFALZHS2HBES IR
TR TS R P FE8 R P RE9

BERERS

1999 11 A - AARIZMEB AR HEE X HE
HAOHRRET L ([&iHE])  RERHE
W R EH RS R EA204F - 7 20054F 12 A
SH - HEEXHEEVERRE CIERARGAL
— R ([FiHER])  AERE R IEZB
FoORBEHBE (VNEEEBBEFIHRRM
Rz HEFEBEXS TRERS 28R
#5020084F 11 A308 f@m Il % B#EfTIRE - M
JEM 20195118248 (i EE TR B & ik
BANKRIERTBHBEEFAGERMN:
(iR 1R 57 1 3 3R TE < TR B BRI R 37 1 o
P&l 2 R R R (iv)# 58 B R RIB I aE
TREZREILIFBK

a0 B B A&200651 B258 2@ KTt - B
REE2006E12A3IBLEEREMBER S
ZEE FRBATEBIBEL85,000,000% T
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The Group entered into a Disposal Agreement for the disposal of
Xinjiang Xingmei in September 2007 (the “Disposal”) which
constituted a major and connected transaction under the Listing
Rules. The Disposal was completed on 24 October 2007. Details
of the Disposal were disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 11 September 2007 and 18 October 2007 and the circular
of the Company dated 2 October 2007.

During the period from 1 January 2007 to 24 October 2007,
revenue from the provision of crude oil transportation, storage
and unloading services to the minority shareholder amounted to
HK$44,661,000 (2006: HK$44,710,000).

As at 31 December 2007, there was no amount due from minority
shareholder. As at 31 December 2006, the amount due form
minority shareholder is HK$7,150,000.

With respect to the above continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group, the Company will comply with the
requirements under the Rules 14A.45 to 14A.48 of the Listing
Rules for the three years ending 31 December 2008. In the opinion
of the independent non-executive directors, the continuing

connected transactions were:

(i)  conducted in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s

business;

(i)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable

than terms available to or from independent third parties;

(iii) in accordance with relevant agreement on terms that are
fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the
Company are concerned and in the interest of the Company

as a whole; and

(iv) within the relevant annual cap amounts as agreed by the

Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance subsisted at any time during the year to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had material interest, whether

directly or indirectly.

REBMR2007FIOARELERE ULEH
BEX([HEFHE]) BRELTMRAUNEKEE
FEAER S -HEEEMN2007F 108248 %
B HESEFHE ERARRBEA2007F
98118 &2007F 108 18BN AH R A AR H
HiA2007F 10 2B BKFIRE-

REEH2007F1H1BE2007F 108248
N-ZRERDERRERFBESR &7 R
SR 75 2 W 25 & 44,661,000 7T (20064 :
44,710,000/ 7T) °

HE2007F12A318 1 £BRE R DK
BWRZH-EZE20068 128310 1F B E Y D
AR R K A7,150,0058 T °

REXEAEBI V2 RERBERSMNE X
NAElB B E2008F 12A31H L =AFEE
FLEMARANE14A 4K EFE 14A 48K 2R TE
BUYBTEERR HEHEERS A:

() HAEASEEZBEER—BREBLET
(i) BMEFBERRIATERBILE=FHR

(i) BEBHRET MRS HRA AR AR
RMEDBATFAE WERE LKA
ARZH% R

vy THBBXMRAEZE8F&ES LR

BEEREAENP2ER

BB B MR I MBESN AR T EFH
AT R SH A M 2 R F AT
STz ERRMAER 2 AN EEXMER
AEMERES
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Report of the Directors
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its directors, as of the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of the shares with not less
than 25% of the total issued shares of the Company as required

under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed

securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules throughout the year except under the Code
Provision A.4.1 which requires non-executive directors be
appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. None of
the existing non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company is appointed for a specific
term. However, as all of them are subject to the retirement
provisions under the Bye-laws of the Company, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than those in the Code.

AUDITORS
The financial statements for the year have been audited by CCIF
CPA Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-appointment.
By order of the Board
Kong Siu Tim

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 April 2008

AREBRE
REARAARBHENRBEEEMA KA
BEAH ABATRERRBMARRIR
HARLR25%  FHé ETRAMBE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHEMBES

®

CCIF
CCIF CPA LIMITED

20/F Sunning Plaza
10 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay Hong Kong

Independent Auditor’'s Report to the shareholders of
Genesis Energy Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Genesis
Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 40 to
176, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Except as described in the basis for qualified opinion paragraph,
we conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

®

CCIF

RE BRI IEHABRAE

Hi 0B BEE0R
HrEAE2012

BAHERERER A
(REREHMATZERAF)
BECBIRBHREE

AAZERRD (AT RSTE [AN1T7)) BB AR
ERBERAR ([ERA])JNHRFEL0E176
ENRAEVERE WEATBRERER
2007 12A3MEMGEE RAFRIEEABRHA
HEZALFENRAREER HEERED
EEEABEERER URTESHBEHE
o E 55 BA B R o

EERVBHRRARKENER

EXZFRERBERESHAMAERMANETEY
BHREENRFERRGIIZBEERTRER
BEERAFMIRZEMEHRR - EEERRER
BRI EELRRLEE QTR
R AR A BPE S AE B B R N FE i
MR R R M B E M B A FE R R B
EREZENEHRE RERBEAFLAENS
BRCEN

BB EE
ATHEERREBANTHEZEZEVBEHRR
FHER UIREBEARE-NN—FQRDER
FMRE EREBERBEM TMEE LA
B ATIERARENAR HEMEMA
TEERERERT

BiREERNEE-BEN RTTHRE
BREGIMAERMHZEERBENETER
TE-REFERREARTETBEME WA
BEBETERZIE UEBERMBRERS
TEEEEHERRAL -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHMHEES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As detailed in our auditor’s report dated 25 April 2007 on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2006, we disclaimed our opinion because of the significance of
the possible effects of the limitation in evidence made available
to us that, in particular, we were unable to obtain sufficient and
appropriate evidence to satisfy ourselves as to (i) as detailed in
note 32(a) to the financial statements, whether the Group has an
obligation to pay the bank loans of approximately RMB240 million
alleged to have been borrowed by a subsidiary in previous years
and interest thereon of approximately RMB24 million and whether
the alleged loans and interest thereon were fairly stated in the
financial statements, and (ii) as detailed in note 20(f) to the
financial statements, whether any impairment loss is required on
the other debtors of approximately RMB1,950,000. Any
adjustments that might have been found to be necessary in respect
thereof had we obtained sufficient and appropriate evidence would
have had a consequential effect on the financial position of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2006, and the Group’s
loss for the current year and the prior year and the related
disclosures thereof in the financial statements. In respect of the
limitation of scope in prior year in the areas as described above,
we were not able to express our opinion as to whether the
balances brought forward as at 1 January 2007 and the
comparative figures for 2006 were fairly stated in the financial

statements.

ERERETERARMBEBRRNSELREE
FEHNERZBRENREF -FIEREZRFATZ
BEzHENE ERIEMBERERESFE
R BRFF S8R AR T B B B K #R AR PR A Bt
R ZERBRAEE ZHMEEEZERR
HREERTFHIHRM B RERAEHREE
B WEBEAREENEZREF BYEE
EHZERBOABEHRRRTER BRI
BREFGMERZETHRELEE EFF
HE G EFTREEE AR EMBREKE
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B
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QUALIFIED OPINION ARISING FROM
LIMITATION OF AUDIT SCOPE

In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments on the
opening balances and comparative figures, if any, as might have
been determined to be necessary had we been able to obtain
sufficient and appropriate evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the
fairness of the Group’s obligations relating to the alleged loans
and interest thereon and the fair value of other debtors as at 1
January 2007, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2007 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 April 2008

Betty P.C. Tse
Practising Certificate Number P03024

RELZEERFMELHAESR

RITRB BRWERITAILIMERS REE K
BHE BUASHRITEHN EXEURKEBER
RABBF SR E AL R E M B W AR TR 2007F
TATEO AR BEREAT WAEIEEMLE
AE(ME) BHBRVEARRLEBRRTELEY
LN R EMBRERBEE BV B RE LA
EEQATRE BEAAR BEEMR2007F
NAEMMBRAR BESEREZEZA
HFENEBEBERRESRE YREBEFERQFE
PINBREREZ SR
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 & =
(ABTEE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2007 12A31H It F &

2007 2006
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FH T T T
Continuing operations BERSEXEL
Turnover E X5 4 & 13 31,405 27,490
Direct costs BEERA (34,109) (30,090)
Gross loss B (2,704) (2,600)
Other revenue H b 25 5 4,653 237
Distribution costs SHE A (4,569) (3,481)
Administrative expenses 1T E (39,719) (15,179)
Other operating expenses Hib &2 & A (3,300) (32,777)
Loss from operations KEEE (45,639) (53,800)
Finance costs B & B AR 6(a) (171) (559)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWN B AR W 29(b) = 832
Loss before taxation BRFLATE 1B 6 (45,810) (53,527)
Income tax FTig i 7(a) (959) (820)
Loss for the year from continuing FEEEEK 2
operations KEEEE (46,769) (54,347)
Discontinued operations ERIEBEER
Gain/(loss) for the year from ERIMEEER 2 AFE
discontinued operations Wzs,/ (F518) 10 38,833 (50,703)
Loss for the year AEEEE (7,936) (105,050)
Attributable to: LTRALTREERER:
Continuing and discontinued operations #HEL LR DR IFELEK
Equity shareholders of the Company ARBIRERFE A 11, 28(a) (7,936) (85,187)
Minority interests D8RS R A 28(a)
- Continuing operations —FEKEEB — (9,722)
- Discontinued operations —ERIFEEER - (10,141)
- (19,863)
Loss for the year rEEEHR 28(a) (7,936) (105,050)




For the year ended 31 December 2007 #; £2007F 128 318 It F &
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A Tt &)

2007 2006
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FTER FHTT
(Loss)/earnings per share — Basic BER(FBE) BN -EX 12(a)
From continuing and discontinued REBBEKER
operations BRI R HK(0.19) centsi&fll  HK(2.69) cents/&fl
From continuing operations REFELEER HK(1.14) centsi&fll  HK(1.41) cents/ L
From discontinued operations KE DK IEEEETR HK0.95 cents?fll  HK(1.28) cents/& L
(Loss)/earnings per share - Diluted &M (E5i8) BF —#5F 12(b)
From continuing and discontinued MEFELE R
operations BRI E R N/AT & H N/AT &
From continuing operations REFEKCEER N/AT i F N/AT 3
From discontinued operations KE DK IEEEETE N/AT & F N/AT &
The notes on pages 47 to 176 form part of these financial FATEEE1T6EZMEB AN B HRK 2 — 2

statements.
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At 31 December 2007 # 20074 124 31H

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(A E T HE)

2007 2006

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT & FTERT FTEx FTAT FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment IEN L 14 144,275 554,265
Prepaid lease payments HEBNRIE 15 3,612 4,117
Intangible assets BREE 16 43,362 =
Goodwill [SES 17 = =

191,249 558,382
Current assets RBEE
Inventories & 19 125 982
Trade and other receivables U R E A EUWERIE 20 5,314 17,071
Cash and cash equivalents HERBELEEY 21 111,224 51,269
__116,663 99322
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables ENEFREMESTKE 22 (46,559) (60,692)
Bank loans BITER 23 = (297,900)
Other loan, secured Hip &5 B HE T 24 - (5,000)
Current taxation BN ER 7 18 25(a) (504) =
__(47,063) _(363,592)
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE,/(8F) FE 69,600 (294,270)
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERKEBEE 260,849 264,112
Non-current liabilities *kRBEE
Bank loans RITER 23 - (160,000)
NET ASSETS BERE 260,849 104,112
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E 28(a)
Share capital N 42,249 35,851
Reserves 1 218,600 68,261
Total equity attributable to equity A2 FREZFE A
shareholders of the Company P 4R = 260,849 104,112

Minority interests SHBRRES = -
TOTAL EQUITY MR 260,849 104,112

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

22 April 2008.

Xing Xiao Jing
T8 B &
Director

EF

EESMN2008FEA4R 22 EWFFAIEE H o

Kong Siu Tim

LA
Director

EF

The notes on pages 47 to 176 form part of these financial

statements.
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At 31 December 2007 # 20074F 124 31H
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A Tt &)

2007 2006

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT & TERT FTExT FTAT FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB QR ZHKE 18 28,340 28,339
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables U R H A W ERIE 20 125,076 5,507
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 21 103,063 48,053

228,139 53,560

Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables ENETREMEMNRE 22 (2,046) (3,590)
Net current assets RBEEFEE 226,093 49,970
NET ASSETS EEFE 254,433 78,309
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRREE 28(b)
Share capital &N 42,249 35,851
Reserves fF 212,184 42,458
TOTAL EQUITY BMER 254,433 78,309

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

EE2N2008F 48228 AN FFA] B -

22 April 2008.

Xing Xiao Jing Kong Siu Tim
T8 B & T
Director Director

EF EF

The notes on pages 47 to 176 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Y ELTE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #; £2007F 128 318 It F &

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA 38 7T 5t &)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KRARERTAELS
Share
Share Share Contributed option Exchange Accumulated Minority Total
capital premium surplus  reserve  reserve losses Total interests equity
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BRE SRR
BEx ROEE #HWRH e ELRE ZRiEE #iat i £ aER
THT T THT T T T TiEx T T
At 1 January 2006 1 2006F 1710 30,516 166,974 81,043 2,029 7,530  (170,764) 117,328 18,548 135,876
Shares issued under the placing & & & %1783 4,042 55,371 = = = = 59,413 = 59,413
Shares issued under share R ER A
option scheme LS 4] 1,293 4,712 - (1,390) - - 4,615 - 4,615
Equity-settled share-based A £ B LR (7
transactions 2fF2%5 - - - 3,822 - - 3,822 = 3,822
Exchange differences BEBNHEAR
on translation of HBRKZ
financial statements of EREE
overseas subsidiaries - - - - 4121 - 4121 1,315 5,436
Loss for the year rEEBE - - - - - (85,187) (85,187)  (19,863) (105,050)
At 31 December 2006 R 20065128318
and 1 January 2007 % 200717318 35,851 227,057 81,043 4,461 11,651 (255,951) 104,112 - 104,112
Shares issued under the placing 1%t & %17 {7 3,740 114,774 = = = - 118,514 - 118,514
Shares issued under share RHRE A
option scheme ESpAan] 2,658 22,558 - (3,499) - - nn7 - nn7
Equity-settled share-based BALE LR R
transactions XRZRS - - - 17,627 - - 17,627 - 17,627
Exchange differences on BREBINIBAA
translation of HBRERZ
financial statements of BRZEE
overseas subsidiaries - - - - 9,498 - 9,498 - 9,498
Release upon disposal of HERBARRD
subsidiaries - - - - (2,683) - (2,683) (2,683)
Loss for the year rEEBE - - - - - (7,936)  (7,936) - (7,936)
At 31 December 2007 R2007F12A318 42,249 364,389 81,043 18,589 18,466  (263,887) 260,849 - 260,849
The notes on pages 47 to 176 form part of these financial FATEEF1768 2 MABARMBIwE 2 —3F
statements. e



For the year ended 31 December 2007 #; £2007F 128 318 It F &

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(AE T HE)

2007 2006
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt & FER FHTT
Operating activities REEK
(Loss)/profit before taxation BELAT (B ) % F
From continuing operations REFBKEED (45,810) (53,527)
From discontinued operations REBERIEEEER 38,833 (50,703)
(6,977) (104,230)
Adjustments for: FHEIEE -
Depreciation e 6(c) 46,678 50,577
Amortisation of prepaid lease o4 AR & R S SR IR B 5
payments 6(c) 306 106
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EEH 6(c) 20 =
Impairment loss on trade receivables &Y BR F R E 18 6(c) - 9,123
Impairment loss on other receivables  H ft fE W ZX B B E & 18 6(c) = 29,950
Finance costs Bl & K AR 6(a) 28,006 34,689
Interest income FE WA 5 (4,660) (253)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEN B A E W 29 (66,909) (832)
Loss on sale of property, LEME BERKBER
plant and equipment 6(c) 71 77
Equity-settled share-based IR E AR ) 2 - 2 2 i
payment expenses 6(b) 17,627 3,822
Foreign exchange loss b 5 g8 6,370 =
Operating profit before changes EEESRBAIKSERA
in working capital 20,532 23,029
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEERL,(#) 541 (258)
Increase in trade and other receivables & Y8R 5% K E b & W 5% T8 38 N (22,965) (7,549)
Decrease in trade and other payables  F&1 B 5% & H fib & 1~ SR I8 Rk > (4,922) (4,785)
Cash (used in)/generated from mexk (FR)
operations EEXZzRE (6,814) 10,437
Tax paid E & IE
PRC tax paid B BT IE (958) (629)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RE&EE (FiA) E42
operating activities REFE (7.772) 9,808 =
Investing activities REED hi—
Payment for the purchase of property, BEA®ZE - ME & & #H1F%K S
plant and equipment (25,194) (5,445)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEYE -HENMREBHMEREA
plant and equipment 407 256
Payment for purchase of BAEBFEEENK
intangible assets (38,234) -
Decrease in pledged deposits BT RO 219 558
Net cash outflow from HEMRBARZ
disposal of subsidiaries Wem L FE 29(a) (2,223) =
Interest received 2 H B 4,520 253
Net cash used in investing activities REFHFFIA RS FHE (60,505) (4,378)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 & =
(ABTEE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2007 12A31H It F &

2007 2006
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FTER FTHET
Financing activities Al & B
Proceeds from shares issued under REEHITROMEHE
the placing 28 121,550 61,199
Issuing expenses BITER (3,036) (1,786)
Proceeds from shares issued under REE R R B EITR D
share option scheme P15 5078 28 21,717 4,615
Repayment of bank loans EBRIETER (8,247) (11,800)
Proceeds from new other loans MIEEMERERE - 5,800
Repayment of other loans EBEHEMER (5,345) (8,500)
Advance from controlling shareholder 7K /X &) #2 f% A% 3R 2 B4 3K
of the Company 32,286 2,150
Repayment to controlling shareholder B AN F4E IR IR B 3k 18
of the Company (31,050) (7,640)
Advance from a minority equity holder D8RR HERERH A Z 2K 26,239 7,027
Repayment to a minority equity holder f{Ei& D &G ARE (23,221) (5,461)
Interest paid BT E (2,595) (2,615)
Net cash generated from METBHEE RS THE
financing activities 128,298 42,989
Net increase in cash and RERBESEEYEMER
cash equivalents 60,021 48,419
Cash and cash equivalents R1A1BZR £
at 1 January REESZEY 21 51,050 2,530
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExggooE
changes 153 101
Cash and cash equivalents R12A31BZR £
at 31 December RESEEYD 21 111,224 51,050
The notes on pages 47 to 176 form part of these financial BATERFE176H 2 MFAB AR B ME 2 — 5
statements. e



Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5t &)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Genesis Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in Bermuda on 2 November 1999 under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and its shares were listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 9 February 2000. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the

annual report.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2007 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”). The Company acts as
an investment holding company. The subsidiaries are

principally engaged in the following businesses:

- operation of natural gas pipeline network and refilling
stations supplying natural gas and liquefied petroleum

gas ("LPG") for vehicle use and sale of LPG in cylinder;

- exploitation and sale of crude oil; and

- provision of crude oil transportation, storage and

unloading services which is discontinued during the

year as set out in note 10.

—REH

BIFTRERIERER AR ([AQF]) BiE
BRE-NAN—FRAFZEBFTAR) R
1999F 1M AR EBREFMA LA
MEEMRAGE] HikHX20006F2H9H
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HZE2007F12A31B L EEZREITE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2.

(AE st &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group

is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial

statements.

2.

FTESFBE

a)

EREH

KB HRRDIERABERAZEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2.

(AE Tt &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars which is the functional currency of the
Company. All financial information presented in Hong
Kong dollars is rounded to the nearest thousand unless
otherwise stated. Subsidiaries established/incorporated
in The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and the
United States of America (the “USA”) have their
functional currencies in Renminbi and United States
dollars respectively. The Group changed its presentation
currency from Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars in 2007.
During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group
acquired oil exploitation right in USA. Following the
increase in foreign operations, the directors of the
Company consider Hong Kong dollars, being an
internationally well-recognised currency, can provide
more meaningful information to the Company’s
investors and cater for the need of the Group’s global
customers. The comparative figures in these audited
financial statements are translated from Renminbi to
Hong Kong dollars using the rates that approximate
the closing rates for balance sheet items and average
rates for the year under review for income statement
items. The change in presentation currency has no
significant impact on the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2006 and 2007, or the results and
cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2006 and 2007.

2.

TESTEE #)

b)

Ot E Sy L
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B ZE2007F12A31BEFER &
SEERNEZERBSHRMAEE K
REIBERINEEBKE KRRES
RE BTEAEREZRAIZE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2.

(AE st &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
stated otherwise in the accounting policies set out

below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the

requires management to make
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustment in the next year are discussed in

note 35.

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2.

(AE Tt &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

c)

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are

exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not
owned by the Company, whether directly or indirectly
through subsidiaries, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. Minority interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Minority interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement as an allocation of the total profit
or loss for the year between minority interests and the

equity shareholders of the Company.

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2.

(R ETEE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

c)

d)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)
Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses attributable to the
minority, are charged against the Group’'s interest
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest is
allocated all such profits until the minority’s share of
losses previously absorbed by the Group has been

recovered.

Loans from holders of minority interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated

balance sheet depending on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(i)).

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates
under a contractual arrangement between the Group
or Company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the Group or Company
and one or more of the other parties share joint control

over the economic activity of the entity.

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2.

(AE Tt &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

d)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

An investment in a jointly controlled entity is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method and is initially recorded at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in
the Group’s share of the jointly controlled entity’s net
assets, unless it is classified as held for sale. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
jointly controlled entities for the year, including any
impairment loss on goodwill relating to the investment
in jointly controlled entities recognised for the year

(see notes 2(e) and (i)).

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest in the jointly
controlled entity is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled

entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly controlled entities
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the jointly controlled entity, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in income statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in
jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less

impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2.

(AE st &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

e)

f)

Goodwiill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units

and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(i)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination is recognised immediately in the income

statement.

On disposal of a cash generating unit or a jointly
controlled entity during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment
The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(i)).

- buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the
building could be measured separately from the
fair value of the leasehold land at the inception

of the lease (see note 2(h)); and

- other items of plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5t &)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

f)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing

costs (see note 2(t)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the income statement on the date of

retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method

over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of the lease and their estimated useful lives
of not more than 50 years after the date of
completion.

- Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of their estimated useful lives or the lease
term.

- Oil pipeline and ancillary facilities, and natural
gas pipeline network and ancillary facilities are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of the joint venture enterprise and their

estimated useful lives.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2.

(AE st &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
f) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
- Refilling stations 10 years
— Equipment, storage tanks 10 years
and others
- Furniture, fixtures and 5 — 7 years
office equipment
- Motor vehicles 5 - 12 years

g)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are

reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and
the intention to complete development. The
expenditure capitalised includes the costs of materials,
direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable (see
note 2(t)). Capitalised development costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see note 2(i)). Other development expenditure
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is

incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite)
and impairment losses (see note 2(i)). Expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised

as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2.

(AE Tt &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

g)

h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to income statement over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The oil exploitation rights are
amortised using the units of production method based

on the proven and probable oil reserves.

Both the period and method of amortisation are

reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that
the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is
reviewed annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful
life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for prospectively from the date of change
and in accordance with the policy for amortisation of

intangible assets with finite lives as set out above.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5T &)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
h) Leased assets (Continued)

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to income statement in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to income statement in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line

basis over the period of the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(AE Tt &)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Impairment of assets

i)

Impairment of investments in debt and

equity securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities (other
than investments in subsidiaries: see note 2(i)(ii))
and other current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following

loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that

have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5T &)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
(Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss

is determined and recognised as follows:

- For unquoted equity securities carried at

cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial
asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity

securities are not reversed.

- For trade and other current receivables and

other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the

collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5t &)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
(Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through income statement. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.

For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
directly in equity is removed from equity and
is recognised in income statement. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in income statement is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in

income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in income
statement in respect of available-for-sale
equity securities are not reversed through
income statement. Any subsequent increase
in the fair value of such assets is recognised

directly in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5T &)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
(Continued)

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in income

statement.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included
within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in income

statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(AE Tt &)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- prepaid lease payments classified as being
held under an operating lease;

- intangible assets;

- investments in subsidiaries; and

- goodwill.

f any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any

indication of impairment.

2.

FTESTTHE &)

i)

EERME (&)

(i)

Htt & ZE B E

EEE#&E R 2 EM A
FMINRZ A BRIR - ARETE T
JIBERRLBEBMENR %
(BRAEEIN) RNEERZRE
BEESMIBFEXRE KR

ks

- VE-BELIRE

- 2PHEREEEMERH
ZHEERMNKIE:

- BREE:

- RHBRARZERE: R

— e

HMERE LMRETR EE
Bt B E 2 AT Y B 8RR - it
S+ A7 B R R R (R 2
BENRARBERAEAFR
ZEVEEMS TwehH
ARENS S8 FhtHE
AJ g [o] BEE -

Al 37 BE R 1= IR B IR 2 7 » 2007 F ]

SR
w



—— pauwi] sbuipjoH Abisug sissusn e /00 1M0day [enuuy

(o)}
D

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2.

(AE st &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows

independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in income
statement whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or

value in use, if determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA T3t &)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is

not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to income
statement in the year in which the reversals

are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial

year (see notes 2(i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity
securities and unquoted equity securities carried
at cost are not reversed in a subsequent period.
This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial

year to which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2.

(AE st &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

j)

k)

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to

make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories, is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in

the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
2(i)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial.
In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2.

(AE Tt &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

m)

n)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in income statement over the period
of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees

payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,

in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow

statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(AE st &)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
o) Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.
(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in the share option
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured
at grant date using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that

the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(AE Tt &)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

o)

p)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the income
statement for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
share option reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it
is released directly to retained profits/accumulated

losses).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits itself
to terminate employment or to provide benefits
as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a
detailed formal plan which is without realistic

possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and

movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current

tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities

are recognised in income statement except to the extent

that they relate to items recognised directly in equity,

in which case they are recognised in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2.

(AE st &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

p)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is expected tax payable on taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment

to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused

tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or

credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2.

(AE Tt &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

p)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse

in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable

profit will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(AE st &)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

p)

Income tax (Continued)
Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay

the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle

the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(AE Tt &)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

q)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(R ETEE)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

r)

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will

flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if

applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in income statement as follows:

Revenue is recognised when crude oil is delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to be
the point in time when the customer has accepted
the crude oil and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or

other sales taxes and is after deduction of any

(i) Sale of crude oil
trade discounts.
(ii) Sale of natural gas

Revenue from sale of liquefied petroleum gas
("LPG") and natural gas in refilling stations is
recognised upon completion of the gas filling
transactions. Revenue excludes sales taxes and is

after deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(AE Tt &)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

r)

s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Transportation, storage and unloading
services income

Revenue from provision of crude oil
transportation, storage and unloading services is
recognised upon performance of the services.
Revenue excludes sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Rental/pipeline leasing income from
operating leases

Rental/pipeline leasing income receivable under
operating leases is recognised in income
statement in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in income statement as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as
income in the accounting period in which they

are earned.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

the effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are

translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the

transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies are translated at

the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet

date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in

income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2.

(AE st &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

s)

t)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised directly in a separate
component of equity. Goodwill arising on consolidation
of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January 2005
is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied

at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in
equity which relate to that foreign operation is included

in the calculation of the income statement on disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in income statement in
the period in which they are incurred, except to the
extent that they are capitalised as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended

use or sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(AE Tt &)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

t)

u)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure
for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or

sale are interrupted or complete.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group
and which represents a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is part of a
single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or

is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to
be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs

when the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the income

statement, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued

operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)

constituting the discontinued operation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(R ETEE)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

V)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party

is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(iii)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the

Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common

control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint

venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or
a close family member of such an individual, or
is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such

individuals; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

2.

(AE Tt &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

V)

w)

Related parties (Continued)
(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or

of any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with

the entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that

are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’'s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment information as the secondary
reporting format for the purposes of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5T &)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

w) Segment reporting (Continued)
Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
that segment. For example, segment assets may include
inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of
the consolidation process, except to the extent that
such intra-group balances and transactions are between
group entities within a single segment. Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those available to

other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used

for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings,

tax balances, corporate and financial expenses.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
and Interpretations that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group

and the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA T3t &)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

There have been no significant changes to the accounting
policies applied in these financial statements for the years
presented as a result of these developments. However, as a
result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures, and the amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements: Capital disclosures, there have been

some additional disclosures provided as follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial
statements include expanded disclosure about the
significance of the Group’s financial instruments and the
nature and extent of risks arising from those instruments,
compared with the information previously required to be
disclosed by HKAS 32, Financial instruments. Disclosure and
presentation. These disclosures are provided throughout

these financial statements, in particular in note 30.

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional disclosure
requirements to provide information about the level of capital
and the Group’s and the Company’s objectives, policies and
processes for managing capital. These new disclosures are
set out in note 28(f).

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 do not have
any material impact on the classification, recognition and
measurement of the amounts recognised in the financial

instruments.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period (see note 36).

EHBESD (o)

2R ABFEMBEREMER LS
AR YERA L EE RN HEIRERES-
R AIRMBEEBBREENETR 2
BTR: KERBRBEFERE IR (&
RIARN) IR 2MHM EAXARKE CIF
HAATE THEIMNEE:

MR RAT B HERMEEAE 75 I

EREBGHERENFLHMTA KEF

RE2FMBE ERLER M@K 2B
BHEEXN REASESMIACZEE
HRFZETAMEEZRREL REE-
A BHRENEERIELERKE FR
Ff3E30 ©

EREFERME 1R (BRIA) ARSI
BEAE BRHEABEEAKERAKE
HEARNBEREAZBR BRREFZ
B o B R W E A FE28(F)

BEMBEREENFTR R BB ST EL
SR (BITX) GEHERNERT AR
RSB 0B BRANEERER
BEAFE-

e SE - i R N RER T B S
E ez ER L RE (RHME36) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5T &)

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are provision of crude
oil transportation, storage and unloading services, operation
of (i) natural gas pipeline network and (ii) refilling stations
supplying natural gas and LPG for vehicle use and sale of
LPG in cylinder, and exploitation and sales of crude oil. The
activities relating to provision of crude oil transportation,
storage and unloading services were discontinued during

the year as a result of disposal of Bamber Group (note 10).

Turnover represents the revenue from provision of crude oil
transportation, storage and unloading services, sales of
natural gas and LPG, and sales of crude oil. The amount of
each significant category of revenue recognised in turnover

during the year is as follows:

=
AEBEZIEEBRRERBER HF
RH R AR T - 48 (VR AR B B AR R (il)
HESERRARARR/ICA MR ZFLHE
WREEREREEHR U RFEARKE
ERB-BHREEEDEE MR HFRH
B REREEREEEIEFRCRTE
MR (KBTEE10) o

EERERURBMES &7 R HHR
B HERAR BRIEAHERARRKZ
Wi -FRELXERRB cBREE S
BRlZRBEMT

—— pauwi] sbuipjoH Abisug sissusn e /00 1M0day [enuuy

(0]
N

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Continuing operations: BEKEXK:
Natural gas and LPG RAR KRB HER
— sales of natural gas and —ERGBILEERAR
LPG at refilling stations &L A AR 26,553 24,206
— sales of LPG in cylinder —HERERLELABR 3,467 3,032
— pipeline leasing income —EEHEKRA 1,091 252
Salesofcrudeoil $HE Rl 294 =
31,405 27,490
Discontinued operations: (note 10) BRIEEEEK: (ff:E10)
Provision of crude oil transportation, 124t E REH  # 1F & B R 7%
storage and unloading services 44,661 44,710
76,066 72,200




Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

5. OTHER REVENUE

(AE Tt &)

5. Hfzls

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Continuing operations: HEREXEK:
Interest income on bank deposits RITFERFEHA 4,653 237
Discontinued operations: (note 10) BRILEEER: (Ff7E10)
Interest income on bank deposits RATFERFEHA 7 16
Others Hith 179 585
186 601
4,839 838
6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6. FRBiAIEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BREIRIESIEE HkR:
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FiE T
a) Finance costs a) BERAK
Continuing operations: BERKEEK:
Interest expense on financial M RrFEFTABEZE
liabilities not at fair value ZHBaENE X
through profit or loss
— Interest on bank advances and —ERAFARNEHEE
other borrowings wholly ZRITEFK
repayable within five years REMEEFR 171 559
Discontinued operations: DRI ER:
Interest expense on financial TERATFEFGF ABRRER
liabilities not at fair value BB ENS X T
through profit or loss
— Interest on bank advances and —ERAFRE2HEER
other borrowings wholly ZIRITRFK
repayable within five years REMBEERNE 27,835 34,130
28,006 34,689
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5T &)

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6. BRBAIEIE (&)
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT F&E T
b) Staff costs (including b) EIRA(BREEHME)
directors’ remuneration)
Continuing operations: FEREXK:
Salaries, wages and other benefits He ITEREMER 9,422 12,117
Equity-settled share-based BRAGEE ARG X T2 2
payment expenses 17,627 3,822
Contributions to defined TE REHE FGR RET 8] 2 3K
contribution retirement plan 164 449
27,213 16,388
Discontinued operations: ERIEREEK:
Salaries, wages and other benefits He ITEREMER 5,577 6,844
Contributions to defined E R FERIRET S 2 7R
contribution retirement plan 358 407
5,935 7,251
33,148 23,639




Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(AE Tt &)

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6. RBIAIEE (&)
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
c¢) Other items ¢ HiEHE
Continuing operations: BERKEEK:
Cost of inventories FERA 22,405 18,055
Auditors’ remuneration % 25 60 B & 816 600
Depreciation of property, ME- -WMERZEITE
plant and equipment
— assets held for use under —REEHERIEERCEE
operating leases 11,704 3,009
— other assets —Hih&EE 4,509 12,062
Amortisation of 8
— prepaid lease payments —HEFENFKIE 283 79
— intangible assets —EREE 20 =
Operating lease charges: KERER%
minimum lease payments & K 6 & 5K
— property rentals e EX i kR 940 977
Impairment losses* VERIEN SEi=h
— other receivables — H fth g Yy 5RIE - 29,950
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE BERKHE2EE*
plant and equipment* 71 77
Net foreign exchange loss* bE N B BIF R~ 3,229 2,794
Discontinued operations: ORISR
Cost of services PR 75 B AR 38,950 46,745
Depreciation of property, ME- -WERZEITE
plant and equipment 30,465 35,506
Amortisation of prepaid T & T8 R IE 5
lease payments 23 27
Impairment losses* VERIEN TR~
— trade receivables — B AR - 9,123
* Included in “other operating expenses” as disclosed in the * AAGERARRZIEMKEER] -

consolidated income statement.

Al 37 BE R 1= IR B IR 2 7 » 2007 F ]

Q0
Ul



—— pauwi] sbuipjoH Abisug sissusn e /00 1M0day [enuuy

(0]
(0]

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(AE st &)

7.

TAXATION

a)

Continuing operations

(i)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement

represents:

7.

BiE
a) ¥4

)

V%

1=

A

REXRK
REBRmRMRIHERE:

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Current tax BN A %18

- PRC income tax —HFEFREHR

Provision for the year REFEE 885 412
Under-provision in prior years i@ F E 2 H T 2 74 408
959 820
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been H ZE 20074 & 20065F 12 A 31

made as the companies comprising the continuing
operations does not have estimated assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax during
the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006.
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the applicable rates of tax prevailing
in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretations and

practices in respect thereof during the year.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations
of the PRC, provision for PRC enterprise income
tax is calculated based on a statutory rate of 33%
of the assessment profit of the Group. During
the year, Lejion Gas Co., Ltd. (“Lejion Gas”), a
Company’s subsidiary established in the PRC, is
entitled to a preferential tax treatment that Lejion
Gas is taxed at a preferential rate of 30% (2006:

15%).

BULEFERN ARERHEL
BEBARLEABNE
BB AT ERBE N -
BB RBANSHER
H fth 3 [ 2 FE =R B0 A % 1R
AIERBFALRKBRELN
ErRZEER 2 RITER BB
KMERIZE B 2 8 A5 R 5t

st
= o
ZAr

R B RS B AR Bl RROE AR -
FRECEMSHERERAS
E 2 R N 2 AR E
3B3%FTHE-FN RNAA—
NSl v = N gl
FERRBRQE ([FER
Rl ZERBEE FIREMK
AR E BT E30% (20064 :
15%) &R 4R T8 7K o
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By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(AE Tt &)

7.

TAXATION (Continued)

a)

Continuing operations (Continued)

(i)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement

represents: (Continued)

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of
the Tenth National People’s Congress passed the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (“New Tax
Law”) which took effect on 1 January 2008, The
PRC income tax rate is unified to 25% for all

enterprises.

The enactment of the new tax law is not expected
to have any financial effect on the amounts
accrued in the consolidated balance sheet in

respect of current tax payable.

Further under the New Tax Law, from 1 January
2008,

establishment or place of business in the PRC or

non-resident enterprises without an

which have an establishment or place of business
in the PRC but whose relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment or a
place of business in the PRC, will be subject to
withholding tax at the rate of 10% (unless
reduced by treaty) on various types of passive
income such as dividends derived from sources
within the PRC. The Group has already assessed
the impact of the New Tax Law regarding this
withholding tax and considered the New Tax Law
would not have a significant impact on the results
of operations and financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2007.

R2007F3816H - F+EE
}\Eﬁ%%jt@%ﬁ;k@?
BREMCEMERE ([
%ﬁ;ﬁJ ) o ¥R AR 20084 1 A
TBER-FBLEZRBEA
B E—EFE—HB25% -

BHIHB A2 BMH L& HiER
REERBERDEMEMNK
B R ERELETMNMB

S
A

SR HE - 200851 71
B W IETE A BIAK 7 sk 7E
BIFR A 4 & B e R B
UHEFRRELL M
BHABAER EI I E
BXSL SR FE P B AR B AL B
EACZIEREE BEAHKS
ER BN A (F0RA B 2 B
B) BB EI10% (B IR KL
BE) BNEEB - AEEE
MEHRAEFHE2TE
WRBHBETEHAEER
IS HEE RN2007F12
BTEBZHMBRRAEKNEKRE

2,
=
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5T &)

7. TAXATION (Continued) 7. BIE (#)
a) Continuing operations (Continued) a) FEREX®K (&)
(i) Reconciliation between tax expense and (i) HEABMERFEZMRB A
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: EHEEYROAT:
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Loss before taxation B % A B 48 (45,810) (53,527)
Notional tax on loss before %@ A B X5 &
taxation, calculated at ZBRBABEREENIE
the applicable rates (9,998) (9,367)
Tax effect of non-deductible “RA] 2 i 2 RIS 2
expenses 15,794 11,282
Tax effect of non-taxable HRBUA 2 B 50 2
income (6,589) (1,503)
Tax effect of unused tax RERARDABKEE
losses not recognised M TE 1,678 =
Under-provision in prior years 381 F EEET 2 74 408
Actual tax expense BEREMBE 959 820




Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5t &)

7.

TAXATION (Continued) 7.

b)

Discontinued operations (note 10)

(i)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax or PRC
enterprise income tax is made by the entities
comprising the discontinued operations as these
entities either have no assessable profit during
the year or have unrelieved tax losses carried
forward which are not likely to be crystallised in

the future.

Reconciliation between tax expense and

BB (#)
b) BALEKLEXRE (FBIRK
£10)

i E2PERLEREXBZAA
YEFRFENSERAS
CEMSHREF EARARR
FRALERRAV DN KER
HERTAAFREEZHEER
IR R

(i) HERBBREFAEZRB XL

accounting loss at applicable tax rates: EEEYROAT:
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FE& T
Loss before taxation Br 75 B BT 1B (28,076) (50,703)
Notional tax on loss before IREAM Rt &
taxation, calculated at ZHBRBAIEEAERIE
the applicable rates (9,265) (16,732)
Tax effect of non-deductible A $0BR X H 2 5 7% 52 &
expenses 10,624 16,732
Tax effect of non-taxable BERBRBRAZHBETE
income (1,359) -

Actual tax expense BB N
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(R ETEE)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEM=
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 BIEEB R REHIE 16 1EHE 2 2 5B
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: caCINE
Salaries,
allowances
and  Retirement Share-based
Directors'’ benefits scheme payments 2007
fees in kind contributions Sub-total (note) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Y30
He 2ER B ZHE 20075
Ezhe ENFE STEHH i3 (H3E) ag
TER TER TER TART TART TART
Executive directors HiES
Xing Xiao Jing T & = 1,300 12 1,312 280 1,592
Ma Ji i - 910 - 910 - 910
Kong Siu Tim IOH = 1,040 12 1,052 522 1,574
- 3,250 24 3,274 802 4,076
Independent BUEHTES
non-executive directors
Yip Ching Shan EEW 129 - - 129 126 255
Ni Zhenwei & 129 - - 129 126 255
Wong Kwok Chuen B2 129 - - 129 126 255
387 - - 387 378 765
387 3,250 24 3,661 1,180 4,841




Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5t &)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEM=E (&
Salaries,
allowances
and  Retirement Share-based
Directors’ benefits scheme payments 2007
fees in kind  contributions Sub-total (note) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SARBR AR 32
He RER BRI LB 2007%
EEYOk EWila A it (Wi3E) 2%
TEL TEL TEL FEL TEL FEL
Executive directors HiEs
Xing Xiao Jing T8 & = 1,400 12 1,412 376 1,788
Ma Ji BE = 1,340 = 1,340 313 1,653
Kong Siu Tim LA = 1,100 12 1,112 313 1,425
- 3,840 24 3,864 1,002 4,866
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Yip Ching Shan £ 120 - - 120 - 120
Ni Zhenwei 193%)&@ 120 - - 120 - 120
Wong Kwok Chuen F@2 (R2006F4R4REZ(T)
(appointed on 4 April 2006) 89 - - 89 - 89
Yu En Guang FB (R2006F4A 4B BHT)
(resigned on 4 April 2006) - - - - - -
329 - - 329 - 329
329 3,840 24 4193 1,002 5,195

During the year, no emoluments (2006: nil) were paid by
the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of
office. None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2007 and
2006.

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the
directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to the Group’s accounting
policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in note 2(o)(ii)
and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse
amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity instruments

are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms
and number of options granted, are disclosed in the directors’ report

and note 27.

FAAEBVERNETANEESIHHE
(20065 : &) EREFE MA IR AR
SRR RESERBEB I EE-BE
20074 [ 2006F 12318 L F & #i &
ELZHEIREREEAH S

s MO N2 RBEREAR A BRE S
BRTEEZBREZGHEER LEBREZ
1B {8 75 48 75 S 3£ 2(0) (i) P 8% A IR 17 321 2 2
HZAKEEHHRGE MRBZBE B
P 2 (BAE Y B 45 1 70 57 I8 B8 W2 PR
BATAEBEFERMZBOESHEIBE

WEBMFRZFE (BEAROBREZ
TERARREE) EREFERE RMFE27

s
mﬂi
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest paid emoluments,
three (2006: three) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in
respect of the other two (2006: two) individuals are as

follows:

RE#HAL

5 & = A T 0 367 (20064 : 367) &
EE HMEeCEWFsHEE - H6k20T
(2006%F : 2i1) e #r A T 2 Bl & 4258 40
¢

2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T F&TT

Salaries and other emoluments FekEMME 1,690 2,782
Share-based payments ARR 9 2 ft 2 :IE 683 627
Retirement scheme contributions ROKGET B R 12 12
2,385 3,421

The emoluments of the two (2006: two) individuals with

the highest emoluments are within the following band:

B # 2 2112 (20067 20) AL 2 M2
N F T RE:

2007 2006

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AE

HK$1,000,000 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,000 7Tt — 1,500,000/% JT 2 2

During the year, no emoluments (2006: nil) were paid by
the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a

compensation for loss of office.

AEBERF AR E M ERBE (2006
FE) TR EEHFAL ERESE
A INA TR SR B 85 2 SR Bl 3 1 A B
BzrE-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5t &)

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 10. ER L REXETK
On 24 October 2007, the Group’s crude oil transportation, R2007F 108240 AEEBEHERK
storage and unloading facilities operations were discontinued WEAR (EDERBERARIRFEE
following the disposal of two subsidiaries, namely Bamber EFAMEEERLAR (ABIEDE
Resources Limited and Xinjiang Xingmei Qil-Pipeline Co., E|)) gERIEEERBER #17F7 &
Ltd. (collectively known as “Bamber Group”). S AR 3 7 o
The profit/(loss) for the year from the discontinued operations FAERIEKEEEBZHF,/ (BE) 2
is analysed as follows: DT
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHE T
Gain on disposal of Bamber Group HEZEDEE 2 W
(note 29(a)) (B &£ 29(a)) 66,909 -
Loss for the year on crude FRRMER - FETF
oil transportation, storage and N H b AR 2 B8
unloading services operations (28,076) (50,703)
38,833 (50,703)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(AE st &)

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

a)

10. CRIEBEXERK 2)

The results of the discontinued operations for the a) H2007F 18 1H 22007410824
period from 1 January 2007 to 24 October 2007 and B EIRS K& & £ 2006F 128318 1
for the year ended 31 December 2006 are as follows: FRERIEREEBZERNT:
2007 2006
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FHExT F& T
Turnover = -t 4&13 44,661 44,710
Cost of sales £ & B A (38,950) (46,745)
Gross profit/(loss) ER,(18) 5,711 (2,035)
Other revenue H {th W = 5 186 601
Administrative expenses THE A (6,138) (6,013)
Other operating expenses HEiEER - (9,126)
Loss from operations RS 1E (241) (16,573)
Finance costs Bl & pR A 6(a) (27,835) (34,130)
Loss before taxation % Bl B 18 6 (28,076) (50,703)
Income tax st 7(b) = -
Loss for the period/year BN,/ FEER (28,076) (50,703)
The cash flows of the discontinued operations for the b) BH2007F181H Z£20074F 10824

period from 1 January 2007 to 24 October 2007 and

for the year ended 31 December 2006 are as follows:

HEIR R & E20065E128318 1k
FEEBRIEBEZHEERENT:

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT Fi#E T
Net cash generated from KETBELE RS FE
operating activities 51,477 12,808
Net cash used in KRETBA R FE
investing activities (288) (1,007)
Net cash outflow used in BEEBFTA IR R L F5E
financing activities (49,713) (13,050)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BeMREeEEY
and cash equivalents #m, Ord) F5 1,476 (1,249)
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By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

10.

11.

12.

(RETEE)

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

¢)  The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of
Bamber Group at the date of disposal are disclosed in
note 29(a).

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a profit of approximately
HK$18,266,000 (2006: a loss of HK$57,189,000) which has

been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is
based on the loss attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$7,936,000 (2006:
HK$85,187,000) and the weighted average number of
4,105,506,000 ordinary shares (2006: 3,164,845,000
ordinary shares) in issue during the year, calculated as

follows:

(i) (Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity

10.

11.

12.

CRIERBEXR #)
0 HYEERLERNZAERARE
ZHEEEBERME29a) -

ARAAREFEARBGEER

AARREREABLGAERBED
R ARAMBHREZWED
18,266,000 M JT (20064 : & 18
57,189,000/ 7T ) °

BR (BB BAF

a) BREX (BB BA
FREAXN(BER) " BFZRE
AARERREREARGER
7,936,0007% 7T (20064F : 85,187,000
BT ARFAREBEITEBRZM
& 59 $24,105,506,0000% & 38 A%
(20064 : 3,164,845,0000% 3@ A% )
HE AT —

(i) FRAAEBERERSEAEML

shareholders of the Company (E5#8) B F
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FE&TT
Continuing operations BRELEER (46,769) (44,625)
Discontinued operations BRIFEEER 38,833 (40,562)
(7,936) (85,187)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA 7T 5t &)

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

a)

b)

12. 2R (EB8) BF (&)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (Continued) a) BREX(EE) BF &)
(i) Weighted average number of ordinary (i) ZERMNEFIGE
shares
2007 2006
‘000 ‘000
TR T &%
Issued ordinary shares M1AITBE&TER
at 1 January 3,585,134 3,051,584
Effect of shares issued under ZEEBITR G 2 &
the placing (note 28(c)(ii)) (B £ 28(c)(ii)) 320,718 62,838
Effect of share options BITEERECTE
exercised (note 28(c)(iii) (B 5E 28(0)(ii)) 199,654 50,423
Weighted average number 128318 2 E@EK
of ordinary shares niEFHE
at 31 December 4,105,506 3,164,845
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share b) SR#HE (FE) BA

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006 are not
presented as the Company’s outstanding options during
the years had antidilutive effect on the basic loss per

share from continuing operations.

B E2007412H31H Kk 2006% 12
AR LEFE ARARAERZF
ERARTEBREYFELERRK
ZEREABEBRREEXE
WA E 252 F RS REE (518)
S B e
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HiE S

13. SEGMENT REPORTING 13. &
73 =B

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business segments. Business segment information is chosen
as the primary reporting format because this is more relevant

to the Group’s internal financial reporting.

Business segments

The Group is currently engaged in the businesses of (i) the
operation of natural gas pipeline network and refilling
supplying natural gas and liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG")
for vehicle use and sale of LPG in cylinder operations, and

(i) exploitation and sale of crude oil:

DHERDBRAREEE S B2 AL
BEEXHOMEMMERTEZ LA
AARRERARE ZAMUBER-

AIREEATEBOHEERAR

BRBREEREARARRLRIEA
EﬁZﬁaE&%E%%ﬂMEEﬁJQ
(i) BA £R B 88 & R o

Natural gas and LPG: Operation of (i) natural gas RKAR KB KE() RARE B
pipeline network and (ii) gas ap:E=E W R (it R
refilling stations supplying BARXARRR
natural gas and LPG for ftRBR 24
vehicle use and sale of LPG uh K 84 B R R
in cylinder. {ERHR-

Oil exploitation: Exploitation and sale of crude R B F £R B 85 & RO

oil.

The Group was also involved in the operation of crude oil
transportation storage and unloading facilities investment

which were discontinued as set out in note 10.

AEETERERBES 7 RERR
IR E XL ZEEBE KL (M0
P& o

Crude oil transportation,  Provision of crude oil RmER - #1F RERDER #17
storage and unloading transportation, storage and K ) AR 75 K E) o AR 75
services: unloading facilities.

There are no sales or trading transactions between the EBHEELBLEXREERG ZES

business segment. These segments are the basis on which BN AEEEREETENEER 2 KA

the Group reports its primary segment information.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

Segment information about these businesses is set out as

follows:

(AE st &)

For the year ended 31 December 2007

BZ2007F12831B L EE

Discontinued

ERREXEB 2O MEMIIMAT:

Continuing operations operations
BAIL
BESEEY ek
Crude oil
transportation,
storage and
Natural gas 0il unloading
and LPG  exploitation Total services  Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RAEH
AARR RER
RIEAHER AR B8 AR ga
TER TER TER TER TER
Revenue from external customers RENREP 2 K& 31,11 294 31,405 44,661 76,066
Segment results PHEE (2,001) (714) (2,715) 5,711 2,996
Unallocated operating income and ~ AAEEERARER
expenses (42,924) (5,952) (48,876)
Loss from operations LEEE (45,639) (241) (45,880)
Finance costs BEMRA (1) (27,835) (28,006)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKBA AN - 66,909 66,909
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEip (&8) /5 (45,810) 38,833 (6,977)
Taxation WE (959) - (959)
(Loss)/profit after taxation Bk (BB) /57 (46,769) 38,833 (7,936)
Assets and liabilities EERER
Segment assets PHEE 130,054 63,803 193,857 - 193,857
Unallocated assets RAMEE - - 114,055 - 114,055
Total assets BRE 130,054 63,803 307,912 - 307,912
Segment liabilities AR 7,835 156 7,991 - 7,991
Unallocated liabilities APRAR - - 39,072 - 39,072
Total liabilities RERE 7,835 156 47,063 - 47,063
Other segment information AtaHER
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 15,120 1,028 16,148 30,488 46,636
Unallocated ADRER - - 368 - 368
15,120 1,028 16,516 30,488 47,004
Capital expenditure incurred FREEZEALH
during the year 2,592 63,539 66,131 300 66,431
Unallocated AAMIEE - - 2,145 - 2,145
2,592 63,539 68,276 300 68,576
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(AE Tt &)

Business segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2006

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
BRRIE
Crude oil
transportation,
storage and
Natural gas oil unloading
and LPG exploitation Total services  Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RAES:
AARK BEER
BICEER ARFER ek 08 R 75 4
TET FEL TET FERL TET
Turnover from external customers RENRRP 2 W% 27,490 = 27,490 44,710 72,200
Segment results PHEE (2,600) - (2,600) (2,035) (4,635)
Unallocated operating income and ~ AAEEERARE R
expenses (51,200) (14,538) (65,738)
Loss from operations BEESB (53,800) (16,573) (70,373)
Finance costs BERA (559) (34,130) (34,689)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERBDA AN 832 = 832
Loss before taxation RHAER (53,527) (50,703) (104,230)
Taxation BE (820) = (820)
Loss after taxation BR&ER (54,347) (50,703) (105,050)
Assets and liabilities BERER
Segment assets NHEE 132,379 - 132,379 437,180 569,559
Unallocated assets ROMEE S = 58,145 = 58,145
Total assets BEE 132,379 S 190,524 437,180 627,704
Segment liabilities PHEE 1,704 - 1,704 4,006 5,710
Unallocated liabilities KAREE - = = 517,882 517,882
Total liabilities BELEE 1,704 = 1,704 521,888 523,592
Other segment information AtaHER
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 14,938 = 14,938 35,533 50,471
Unallocated F*ORER - = 212 = 212
14,938 = 15,150 35,533 50,683
Capital expenditure incurred FREEZEAZH
during the year 4,242 - 4,242 998 5,240
Unallocated RAREH - S 205 S 205
4242 = 4,447 998 5,445
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA T3t &)

In presenting information on the basis of geographical
segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers. The Group segment assets and capital
expenditure are based on the geographical location of the

assets. The Group mainly operates in the PRC (including

Hong Kong) and the United States of America (the “USA").

For the year ended 31 December 2007

wIE D 25 ERE D BR SRR

PT7E 30 B i
HAREEZ AESRE D -

|y AEBz N BEE
N

REAX
SEEZE

7
EhE (BREFE) REXBRELER

Bfo

HZ2007F12A31B L EE

The PRC The USA Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
H xE W
FHER FET FHET
Segment revenue Pl L&
Revenue from external customers REINARP 2 W a:
attributable to:
— Continuing operations —HBEEED 31,111 294 31,405
— Discontinued operations —BERIEEEET 44,661 - 44,661
75,772 294 76,066
Segment assets DEEE
- Continuing operations —FHEREER 244,109 63,803 307,912
244,109 63,803 307,912
Segment liabilities PHEE
- Continuing operations —RELEER 46,907 156 47,063
46,907 156 47,063
Capital expenditure incurred FRAEEZEARTH
during the year
- Continuing operations —HBEEER 4,737 63,539 68,276
— Discontinued operations —ERIEEEER 300 - 300
5,037 63,539 68,576
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5t &)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Geographical segments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2006

13. 2 B®HE (#)
e s (&)
HZ2006F12A31BLLEE

The PRC The USA Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
H EE O
FAT FAT FET
Segment revenue Pl L&
Revenue from external customers REINAEP 2 W e
attributable to:
— Continuing operations —RBELEER 27,490 = 27,490
— Discontinued operations —BRIEEEED 44,710 = 44,710
72,200 = 72,200
Segment assets PHEE
— Continuing operations —RBEKEER 190,524 = 190,524
— Discontinuing operations —BERIEEER 437,180 = 437,180
627,704 = 627,704
Segment liabilities PHEE
— Continuing operations —RBEKEER 1,704 = 1,704
— Discontinuing operations —ERIEEEER 521,888 = 521,888
523,592 - 523,592
Capital expenditure incurred FRAEEZELREZH
during the year
— Continuing operations —RHEREEL 4,447 = 4,447
— Discontinued operations —BRIEEEED 998 = 998
5,445 - 5,445
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(R ETEE)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. X -BMERRE

The Group RE
Natural gas
oil pipeline
pipeline network Equipment, Furniture,
Buildings and and storage fixtures
held for  Leasehold ancillary ancillary Refilling tanks  and office Motor Construction
own use improvements facilities facilities stations  and others  equipment vehicles Sub-total in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARREE FHi-
BEER BE BER BER #E  ERZER
B NELE EERE EERE BEl REOREE WOZRG RE Mt ERIE &g
TERL TEL TAL TERL TEL TAL TEL TEL TAL TERL TEL
Cost: RE:
At 1 January 2006 200651418 20,251 127 628,703 178,321 22,526 - 2,041 3513 855,482 3,570 859,052
Exchange adjustments (B 5 3% 810 - 25,148 7133 901 - 82 140 34,214 143 34,357
Additions HE 1,629 140 1,650 = 865 - 1,161 - 5,445 - 5,445
Transfer from BRAERIR
construction
in progress - - - - 3,713 - - - 3,713 (3,7113) -
Disposals HE - (127) (217) - (20) = 22 (22) (408) = (408)
At 31 December 2006 120065 124318
and 1 January 2007 R2007%1A18 22,690 140 655,284 185,454 27,985 - 3,262 3,631 898,446 - 898,446
Exchange adjustments (B 5 8% 876 - 20,267 12,808 1,933 - 96 108 36,088 - 36,088
Additions WE 220 = 289 = 2,367 20,157 92 2,069 25,194 - 25,194
Disposals HE = = = (465) (9) = (12) (560) (1,046) = (1,046)
Disposal of subsidiaries ! &H B2 7 (18,664) - (675,840) - - - (2,462) (2,782) (699,748) = (699,748)
At 31 December 2007 72007512318 5122 140 - 197,797 32,276 20,157 976 2,466 258,934 - 258,934
Accumulated RANERAE:
depreciation and
impairment:
At 1 January 2006 200651718 5317 24 201,914 61,556 10,603 - 1,376 1,595 282,385 - 282,385
Exchange adjustments [ % 213 - 8,077 2,462 424 - 55 63 11,294 - 11,294
? Charge for the year ERZM 1,094 27 34,253 12,035 2,519 - 293 356 50,577 - 50,577
g Written back on disposals i\ & & & @l - (46) - - - - (17) (12) (75) - (75)
£y At 31 December 2006 20065 125318
g and 1 January 2007 R200751A18 6,624 5 244,244 76,053 13,546 - 1,707 2,002 344,181 - 344,181
; Exchange adjustments [ 5 % 260 - 7,554 5,664 1,035 - 47 57 14,617 - 14,617
8 Charge for the year ERZM 984 28 29,169 11,704 2,805 1,008 469 51 46,678 - 46,678
- Witten back on disposals % 5 & - - = (84) 6) - B (476) (568) - (568)
i) Disposal of subsidiaries & Mi &2 & (6,270) - (280,967) - - - (1,456) (1,556) (290,249) - (290,249)
3
E. At 31 December 2007 12007512318 1,598 33 - 93,337 17,381 1,008 764 538 114,659 - 114,659
m
a Net book value: REFE:
é At 31 December 2007 32007128318 3,524 107 - 104,460 14,895 19,149 212 1,928 144,275 - 144,275
T
% At 31 December 2006 120065 124318 16,066 135 411,040 109,401 14,439 - 1,555 1,629 554,265 - 554,265
=
2
[
3
@
a
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(AE Tt &)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

a)

The natural gas pipeline network and ancillary facilities
and refilling stations are situated in Korla of Xinjiang

Autonomous Region, the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2005, due to
continued shortage of working capital, Lejion Gas
Natural Gas Co., Ltd. (“Lejion Gas”), a Company’s
subsidiary established in the PRC, which principal
activities are operation of natural gas pipeline network
and natural gas refilling stations, has entered into a
written agreement with its PRC joint venture partner
(the "Venture Partner”), which holds 20% of the equity
interest in Lejion Gas. Pursuant to the agreement, the
operation of the natural gas pipelines network and
ancillary facilities (the “Assets”) has been transferred
to the Venture Partner for a period from 1 January
2005 to 30 June 2006 (the “Operation Period”). During
the Operation Period, Lejion Gas does not share any

income or expenses of the operation.

Upon expiry of the Operation Period, Lejion Gas and
the Venture Partner entered into another agreement
(the "Agreement”) such that the Venture Partner would
use the natural gas pipelines network and ancillary
facilities of Lejion Gas and Lejion Gas is entitled to
receive payments from the Venture Partner for a period
from 1 October 2006 to 31 March 2008. The
Agreement did not include an extension option. The
payments were calculated on the basis of 1.75% of
the gross sales generated from the use of the Assets
by the Venture Partner. Subsequent to the balance
sheet date, the Group and the Venture Partner entered
into a supplementary agreement that the period of
the use of the Assets would be extended by nine
months from 1 April 2008 to 31 December 2008 and

the other terms of the Agreement remained unchanged.

14. X -BERRE &)

a)

ARARE BB REERERELG
NP ERERAREAS M-

HZE2005F12A31HIEFE AR
EEESRHEBERR QA —HAR
Fr B A S 2 BT B A B BB N F R R
BERAR ([FERE]) BEH R
EEBH ([a8EH] BAENE
PRR20% A1) FR] S ez o MR
MEZETEEBREERAREE
MERRARBE W - RIBZBE
AAREBERRREERE ([E
El) 2EERMN2005F1A1BE
20065F 6 A 30H IEEAM ([ & & 5
MlI)BETEEEH - RNEESR
B FERRBEES GERMNEER
A o

REERBERE MRERRES
ERHSITRI LM ([ZiE]) -
MEE EBHGE R RLEFER
R ARAREEMBREER -
i A MR R B #EF 20065 10A 1H
F2008F3A31HEME RMaEE
U E R -z HE TR EEME
HEZgE - FHBAKREERHME
REEMSHEHE QR 21.75%:T
H-REERE NEBESERMY
RV —EmAGE BEEREE
2 HAf % B 2008F4 H1 B E R N (&
A Z2008F 128318 Mz E

o 650 R 5 2 <
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5T &)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME-BEREZE ©)
(Continued)

ZiE RN 2 ZHEF S REBM FE2(h) AT
definition of leases in accordance with the accounting (ZETERR 2 FHE & - 10 20074F
124318 ZBREE 494 104,460,000
77t (20064F : 109,401,000/ 7T) 2
AARREBREEREY AR E
HERAZHEEE B E2007F
12AMBIEFE #E &% H K
Z FIE 491,091,000 7T (20064 :
252,000 7T) B ARIR I FE2(r)(v)PTEL
B BEFABRERCBERER
AT

The arrangement under the Agreement meets the

policy set out in note 2(h). The natural gas pipeline
and ancillary facilities with the carrying value as at 31
December 2007 of approximately HK$104,460,000
(2006: HK$109,401,000) is classified as leased assets
being held under operating leases. The payments
received from the Venture Partner during the year
ended 31 December 2007 amounting to approximately
HK$1,091,000 (2006: HK$252,000) is included under
the pipeline leasing income in the income statement
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(r)(iv).

HEREEREEE —IGRRO70A
B @EgmnmAREARRR
BRANBUHZMERLEERE (2
R ML R Eh R ) - LA B E 8

oil tanks and loading bays to facilitate the operation fEe

b)  The oil pipeline and ancillary facilities consist of an oil b)
pipeline of approximately 70 kilometers, connecting
the Tahe Qilfield and Lun Tai Railway Station in Xinjiang

Autonomous Region and ancillary facilities including

of the oil pipeline.

R2006F 128 31H BREEED
311,000,000 7T 2 & T h B R B2
ERHECERTRT ERAEE
¥ $2191,400,0008 TRITER Z
AR (FFE23) -

¢) As at 31 December 2006, certain of the oil pipeline Q)
and ancillary facilities with an aggregate carrying value
of approximately HK$311,000,000 have been pledged
to a bank for bank loans of HK$191,400,000 granted
to the Group (note 23).

2006 128 31H - BRE B &
#74,009,0008 T2 B T RARE
Bk R At (HEE15) BRI -ER
AN £ [B) & % 5,000,000 T HMWE

d) As at 31 December 2006, certain of the natural gas d)
refilling stations and land (note 15) with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately HK$4,009,000 have
been pledged for other loan of HK$5,000,000 granted

paywi sbuipjoH ABisu3 sisauan e £00Z 340daY [ENUUY

o
SN

to the Group (note 24).

R B (M5E24) -
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15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

15. HER N FHIE

The Group AEH
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T F& T
Net book value at 1 January M1ATB 2 RmEFE 4,418 4,350
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 38 B 277 174
Disposal of subsidiaries HEK B AT (485) =
Amortisation 5 (306) (106)
Net book value at 31 December R12A31H 2 BRmFE 3,904 4,418
Current portion of prepaid lease HEFBENRIE 2 BEE 5
payments (included in trade and (FF A B W BR 3R %
other receivables (note 20)) H 4th jE W k3B (Bt aE20) ) (292) (301)
Non-current portion JEBD HR =6 & 3,612 4,117

The leasehold land is held under operating lease. The
leasehold land is held under medium-term lease and situated
in the PRC. The cost of the leasehold land is approximately
HK$6,501,000 (2006: HK$6,681,000).

eI HEREEHERF -HE T
DiZPEHER BV ANR T B -FHE i
2 XA 49 6,501,000 7T (20064 :
6,681,000 7T) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5T &)

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. B EE

The Group REE
QOil
exploitation
right
HK$'000
p:: =
B £ A
FAETT
Cost: AN :
At 1 January 2006, 31 December 2006 and 7200618 1H 20069 12831H
1 January 2007 %2007 1A 1H =
Additions NE 43,382
At 31 December 2007 720074 12A31H 43,382
Accumulated amortisation: Rt
At 1 January 2006, 31 December 2006 and 7200651 H1H 20065 128 31H
1 January 2007 20071518 -
Charge for the year FAZH 20
At 31 December 2007 20079 12A31H 20
Net book value: BREFE:
At 31 December 2007 72007 12A31H 43,362

At 31 December 2006

The oil exploitation right represents the fair value of the
right for oil exploitation in Grassy Trails Oil Field located in
Carbon County, Utah and Emery County, Utah, the United

States of America.

Amortisation of HK$20,000 (2006: Nil) was charged to “cost

of sales” in the consolidated income statement.

20065 12 H31H

++

A SR 5 R FE R 7 2K B 78 b N B9 Carbon
CountyX Emery CountyZ & 1€ & B
(Grassy Trails)Z HRHAFEE 2 A FE

20,000/ 7T (20064 &) v #HE AT
REEETRZ [HERA] Bk

A o
2N
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17. GOODWILL 17. &2
The Group NEE
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET F& T
Cost: A :
At 1 January W1A1H = 10,195
Release upon disposal of i & BT B A | B D)
a subsidiary - (10,195)
At 31 December ®12A831H - =
Accumulated impairment loss: ZtEEBA:
At 1 January R1A1H - (10,195)
Release upon disposal of & B A B R
a subsidiary - 10,195
At 31 December M12A31H - =
Carrying amount: IRMEME:
At 31 December ®12A831H - =
18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RMB AR ZRE
The Company ARQT]
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FH& T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR G  HEARAR 81,145 81,144
Less: impairment loss R E B 1 (52,805) (52,805)
28,340 28,339

| 37 E R 1= IR B IR 2 & » 2007 F R
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B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5T &)

18. AMB AR ZRE (&)
MBAR ZHBUOT REEHRMA
BN FIRERGOERN AL B

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

a) Details of subsidiaries are listed below. The class of a)

shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

EAERIL
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation/ issued and  effective Held by the Held by
Name of company operation paid up capital holding  Company subsidiary  Principal activity
MBI/ BERTRAR Z&EE BARAE HHELAR
AR BB BEwH RAFE ERSRE o] BE IEEH
Elite Ascend Holdings British Virgin Islands 690 shares of 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited ("BVI") US$1 each
(REZERERAF) RBRAEE 6900 B R 1E 7T REZER
Chuang Xin Management ~ Hong Kong 2 shares of 100% 100% - Provision of management
Services Limited HK$1 each services to group
EIFERBRBEERADA EE 2REBRIET & B A AR E IR IR
Genesis Energy Hong Kong 2 shares of 100% - 100%  Provision of administrative
(Hong Kong) Limited HK$1 each services to group
companies
EIFEER (BE)ERRR BA RERIET o & B N AR E TR
Key Well Development Hong Kong 100 share of 100% - 100%  Inactive
Limited HK$1 each
EEERBERAF BB 1008 &R 178 T TEXH
Excellent Century Limited  BVI 100 shares of 100% = 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
(BEHABERAF) ERELEE 100RBR1ET REZR
Gain All Limited Hong Kong 1 share of 100% = 100%  Inactive
HK$1 each
BE2ERLA % RERIET TEEB
Oriental Energy Limited BVI 1,000 shares of 90% - 90% Investment holding
US$1 each
(RARBRERAR) REEAES 1,0008 & 1% 7T REZR
Bamber Resources BVI 50,000 shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited * US$1 each
(BHERBERAF)! RERTES 50,0000 B MR 1€ 7T REZR
Wiseley Investments BVI 100 shares of 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited US$1 each
(BMREBRARE) RERTES 100l BRI1ZT REZR
Glory Boom BVI 100 shares of 100% 100% - Investment holding
International Ltd. US$1 each
(REBERBRARF) REEXES 100 &R 1% T REZR
Genesis Petroleum Utar, The United 10,000 shares of 90% - 90%  Exploitation and sale of

US, Inc. (note) (i £E)

US$0.01 each
10,000/%
FR0.01ETT

States of America

EE M

crude oil

B 5% T 8 R
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(RETEE)

18. RMIBRRIZRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

EAEASL
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation/ issued and  effective Held by the Held by
Name of company operation paid up capital holding Company subsidiary  Principal activity
MBI/ BETRAR Z&EE BARAE HHEAR
DR BB BEwH RAFE ERSRE o] 5B TEXH
Xinjiang Xingmei The People’s Registered capital 80% - 80%  Operation of crude oil
Qil-Pipeline Co., Ltd. * # Republic of China RMB321,000,000, transportation, storage and
(the "PRC") of which unloading facilities
RMB160,972,800
being paid up
HEEXDMER REARANE AMBRAARS RERLES BF
BRAA* ([hEl) 321,000,0007C * R Eh R i
Hih AR#
160,972,8007T
RERBKA
Lejion Gas Co., Ltd. * PRC Registered capital 72% = 80%  Operation of natural gas
RMB50,000,000 pipeline network and gas
refilling stations supplying
natural gas and liquefied
petroleum gas
EMNFEREERAR* HE FMRAARS BERAREMRMEAE
50,000,0007C BRARRRIEABE
2R vk
Genesis International BVI 100 shares of 70% 70% - Inactive
Petroleum & Chemicals US$1 each
Co., Ltd.
(BIFERARLT RERTES 100l BRI1ZT TEEB
ERAR)
# . Disposed of during the year # FRNEHE
@ . Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign 2 REFRZEZECLATINEGE
equity enterprise %
(note) Company not audited by CCIF CPA Limited. (PR &%) REREBETMEBAER

RAERZZAA
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA 7T 5t &)

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. RHB AR ZRE ()
b) Impairment on investments in subsidiaries b) RHKEBARZEKERE
The movement in the provision for impairment loss FA-REEBEBEGB2EFHOAT:

during the year is as follows:

The Company

AT
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER F#E T
At 1 January ®1HA1H 52,805 14,423
Impairment loss recognised B ERREEE - 38,382
At 31 December ®12A31H 52,805 52,805
Certain subsidiaries under natural gas and LPG segment RKARRRBRIEABRDE2ETHER
continued operating in losses. Provision for impairment Al E BB E R EEEER IR
loss was made based on directors’ annual assessment. EEEF2AEMEL -RERWE QA
The recoverable amount of the investments in Z AW EI BT E AR E B15% 2T
subsidiaries is determined using discounted cash flows WMIMBIMETE
at discount rate of 15%.
19. INVENTORIES 19. ¥ &
The Group
rEH
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHTT
Spare parts, consumables and others T4 HRE R & H 125 982
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5t &)

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. FEUWBR A% H fih fE IR FRIE
The Group The Company
KEM YN
2007 2006 2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TRER TAT TER TAT

Trade debtors JFE U BR 3R - 37,030 = =
Less: allowance for doubtful B R BR M (B EE20(b))
debts (note 20(b)) - (29,880) - -
- 7,150 - =
Consideration receivable U B (KT 7E20(d)

(note 20(d)) - 800 - -
Refund of investment deposit "EE SRR (K3E20(e))

(note 20(e)) - _ _ _
Other debtors (note 20(f)) H b 8 U BR 3 (BT E20(f)) - 1,950 = =
Interest receivables & i I 2, 219 83 219 83
Amounts due from subsidiaries &Yz Fff B 2 51 FRIB

(note 20(g)) (Bt #E20(g)) - - 124,238 -
Loans and receivables ER RN RIE 219 2,833 124,457 83
Deposit for an investment project #®&E B &4 (Kt3E20(h))

(note 20(h)) - 5,148 - 5,148
Deposit for an oil exploitation HMRRAREEES

project (note 20(i)) (B 3E20()) 2,084 = = =
Deposit for acquisition of BEAEES

motor vehicles 106 = - =
Utility and other deposits KERHMES

(note 20())) (Ft #E20() 1,541 6 7 =
Prepayments 3B 4 8 928 1,201 612 276
Prepaid lease payments (note 15) 78 38 208 (K5E15) 292 301 = =
Others Hit 144 432 - -

5,095 7,088 619 5,424
5,314 17,071 125,076 5,507
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5T &)

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
All of the trade and other receivables including amounts
due from subsidiaries are expected to be recovered or

recognised as expense within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade
debtors (net of allowance for doubtful debts of nil
(2006: HK$29,880,000)) with the following ageing

analysis as of the balance sheet date:

20.

WS R HMERRIE (&)
TEETFT A IR R E W 5k TE (B8
FE YL B 8 A RIFRIR) AT A — G AU B Sk R
REFR -

(a) R D #T
JRE L2 B 5K e L i R L2 5k T /B 4 FE LK
BEFX (F0% Z (20064 : 29,880,000
ABT) REEEH) REZERA KRR
DITAT :

The Group
rEE
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TET

Current or within 6 months BN HAsk 618 B A

Debts are generally due within 90 days from the date
of billing. The Group may, on a case by case basis and
after evaluation of the business relationship and
creditworthiness of the customers, extend the credit
period upon customers’ requests. Further details on

the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 30(a).

= 7,150

BB —RRFAERRIORAIH - KEE
ARERNER EFEEBBEREPE
B REPEREREER -AKEE
BEBR 2 — T BHEHNHEE30() °
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which cases the impairment loss is written off against

trade debtors directly (see note 2(i)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year, including both specific and collective

loss components, is as follows:

20. FE Uk BRI E il B W =R ()
(b) FEWAR R E
FE I BR 3R 2 L (B S R 152 PR 2 16
R A EEERRRERE 2
AR ME MBI ERERT B
FR B M R e 40 (A5 4B B
20)0)) °

FARKEEREY (BREFENRE
BERID) T

The Group
rEH

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
At 1 January MW1HA1H 29,880 19,959
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 38 B 924 798
Impairment loss recognised BRERBRERE - 9,123
Through disposal of subsidiaries % i@ £ & W B A &) (30,804) =
At 31 December ®12A31H - 29,880

At 31 December 2006, the Group’s trade debtors of
HK$29,880,000 were individually determined to be
impaired. Consequently, specific allowances for
doubtful debts of HK$29,880,000 were recognised. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

M 2006F 128318 « A~ & B JE W AR 3K
29,880,000 7T B 1 5l 4 & 7 1§ & R fE
it - #E5229,880,000/% 7T 2 45 E R Bk %
o NSRBI MBI F AR R A

[}
an °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(AE st &)

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Trade debtors that are not impaired
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a customer for whom there was no recent

history of default.

At 31 December 2007, the amounts of trade debtors
that are neither individually nor collectively considered
to be impaired are nil (2006: Nil).

Consideration receivable

In 2006, the Group disposed of a subsidiary for a
consideration of HK$800,000. The amount is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on or before
May 2007. The amount was received by Group in May
2007.

Refund of investment deposit

An investment deposit of HK$55,900,000 was paid to
an independent entity in November 2002. A sino-
foreign equity joint venture would be established and
the Group would own 15% equity interest. During the
year ended 31 December 2004, the Group decided to
withdraw from the investment. Up to 31 December
2006, this entity refunded to the Group a sum of
HK$25,950,000. As at 31 December 2006, the
remaining balance of HK$29,950,000 was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on or before 31 July 2006.
However, the balance was still outstanding as at 31
December 2006 and, subsequent to lack of response
to our debt collection notices, the directors re-assessed
the situation and concluded that the recoverability of
the amount was remote and an impairment of
HK$29,950,000 was made in 2006. The impairment
was included in “other operating expenses” in the
consolidated income statement for that year. In 2007,
in light of the fact that the refund of investment deposit
had been long overdue, the directors concluded that it
is appropriate to write it off against the allowance

account.

20. BRI KR E b FE W IE ()

(c)

(d)

(e)

ARBE Z B AR X
RBEI AR RME 2 FE W kIR T BT
HEBRCERCEFBER-

MR2007F 12 318 @ I £ fE L BR =X
& Bl sk 2 82 -4 R A5 R E (2006
FME) o

WK E

2006%F - N £ [E DA {E800,000/% 7T
HE—RWBAR -ZERBERE
IR B RAR2007F5 Ak 2 Al
BiE - ANE BB RK2007F5 A K E%
EXRIE-

REZREERN
REBMPR2002F 1M AR —RBULE
B2 3 (4% & #£ £ 55,900,000/ JT °
— RPN EERERERTL K&
E A HE15%MKHE - NE E2004F
12A31BILFERN  AEBIRE R
EBBIRE-E E2006F 127 31
H ZERBOAEERE
25,950,000/ JT 2 5/ I8 ° 7R 20065
12 8318  #%829,950,000% 7T &
mER - 2 B KA 200657 H 31
HkzRIEE- AT BEKER
2006F 12 A31BHARBE N
WHBRMEITMEEEET EEE
H BTG & R AW E B @RIE 2 A
BE I N K - W R 20064 ET IR
29,950,000 T2 HE® -4
MESETAZFERABRERZ
[HEhaLe s R ]| omR2007F &
RETREZRERSBANEE
HBHEA EERARBARER
BEERRPREEHE-
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(f)

Other debtors

During the year ended 31 December 2006, incidental
to a civil action brought up by one of the banks
mentioned in note 32(a) to the financial statements
against Xinjiang Xingmei, a judgment was served by
the Supreme People’s Court of Gansu Province, the
PRC, on Xinjiang Xingmei demanding the latter to pay
approximately HK$49 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB49 million) as repayment for the
alleged loan, HK$366,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB366,000) as repayment for overdue loan interest
and an unspecified amount of default interest thereon.
The total amount paid thereunder amounted to
approximately HK$1,950,000
approximately RMB1,950,000). The directors were

(equivalent to

subsequently advised by a legal counsellor to PRC law
that the civil judgment served on Xinjiang Xingmei
was not legally effective in the circumstance as the
criminal proceedings in respect of the alleged loan have
not been finalized and that the amount of
RMB 1,950,000 should be paid back by the bank. The
amount already paid to the bank is classified under
“other debtors” in the consolidated balance sheet at
31 December 2006. The balance was included in the
computation of gain on disposal of subsidiaries upon
the disposal of Xinjiang Xingmei by the Group in
October 2007 as set out in note 29(a).

20. FEW AR E b FE WK IE (48)

(f)

H 1t F& I BR X
HZ=2006F12A318 EFE
HEAEaARZRAFEE XX
ERFHRE PRUBHBERMT
R@F Ay —RIBITIREZRE
TR -ZRTBERFBEERIER
B S X 5 4949,000,000% 7T (X918
M AR #49,000,0007T) A
7B 3R 8 X 14366,000% 7T (4948
EM ARY366,0000T) R F—%
RIETRBZRAMNB -BRAMNK
2 S EH A1,950,000 7T (4948
EM AR 1,950,0000T) EEE
MR EEEBRRGE - PEAER
R RBAMNBEErEIREH
REEZR EBEN BAZRMT
HIEMZERZHEEEZEFER
HR-MIRITEEBZEARY
1,950,000 2 € FH o 5% £ B T IR1T
IR 2006F 128318 24 A
BEEBEXRANIIETE M EKEK
P EE29(a)FF 8 AEBE R
2007F10A L EFEBE SR M Z X
HEFALERB AR KEF -
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(g) Amounts due from subsidiaries

An analysis of the amounts due from subsidiaries is

20 EWWERF R HMEWRIE (&)
(9) FEWIHKIE A =2\
KB ARZRIES ST

listed below:
The Company
AATF

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FE T
Due from subsidiaries FEUR BT B~ 5] FRIB 258,908 176,868
Less: allowance for doubtful debts Ji : & BR*E 5 (134,670) (176,868)
124,238 -

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

KB AR REREER 2B
EIERS
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(RETEE)

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Amounts due from subsidiaries (Continued)
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

during the year is as follows:

20. FEW AR E b FE WK IE (48)

(9)

FE W B B8 x B R IE ()
FARKEHRBZESHWOT:

The Company

AR T
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET F&E T
At 1 January ®R1A1H 176,868 171,198
Impairment loss recognised B ERREEE - 5,670
Reversal of impairment loss VRIEN Rk A (42,198) =
At 31 December »W12H1H8 134,670 176,868

The provision for impairment of amounts due from
subsidiaries was made based on an assessment of the
future cash flow of the subsidiaries, after taking into
consideration of the forecast of the performance and

business development of the subsidiaries.

Deposit for an investment project

In 2006, the Group paid approximately HK$5,148,000
as deposit for acquisition of the exploitation rights
together with the ownership title in certain oil fields

in the USA. The transaction was completed in 2007.

Deposit for an oil exploitation project

In 2007, the Group paid a deposit of approximately
HK$2,084,000 (2006: Nil) for an oil exploitation project
in the PRC. The amount was unsecured, interest-free
and refundable under certain conditions. The operation
of the project has not yet been commenced as at the

date of issue of these financial statements.

(h)

(i)

& 5 Bt I8 2 R) 2 BB 4 T AR SR P
BARARKAEGREZHERER
A B ARAREBERMEREZ
BRI 4 i o

REEERSE

2006%F AN & B 3 1149 5,148,0007%
TEREXBIWMBEREREER —5#
HACEBEER RS - HIEAR
5 B R 2007F 5B/ °

HMREREBERZRS

20074 - NRE B R AL B A — (&
HMAERRKKEBREBEXNES
#92,084,000%% 7T (20064 : f&) ° 7%
EREREREF RERRETE
AT FARE-ZEB R AT
BETBEZBERMABEE-
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(j) Utility and other deposits

Included in utility and other deposits as at 31 December

2007 was approximately HK$1,053,000 (2006: Nil),

representing the safety deposit paid to the government

of the USA for exploitation of crude oil in the USA by

the Group. The amount was interest-free and

refundable under certain conditions.

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

20. EUYBR R K H fth B W IR ()
() XERHEMEZRS

720074 12318 Z/KE R H b
ReBFEHAEERNEBERER
HAEBEBRAXNZRZE2EEL
1,053,000/ 7T (20064 : #£) <325
FEAREER 2EERETER
T FRRE

21. BERREESEY

The Group The Company
r& AN
2007 2006 2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TRER TAT TER TAT

Cash and bank balances, AT EBFEZ RS

denominated in KR 1T 4 8

- Hong Kong dollars and —BRTRET

United States dollars 103,864 48,718 103,063 48,053

— Renminbi - AR% 7,360 2,551 - =
Cash and cash equivalents REEBEEX

in the balance sheets ZHEERBACERBY 111,224 51,269 103,063 48,053
Less: Pledged deposits BB EER = (219)
Cash and cash equivalents REEERERER

in consolidated ZRERBREEED

cash flow statement 111,224 51,050

Cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$7,360,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB6,884,000) (2006:
HK$2,551,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB2,551,000))
are denominated in Renminbi. Renminbi is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC

government.

#47,360,0008 T2 e RIREEEYD
(#948 & M AR ¥6,884,0007T) (2006
% :2,551,0008 T (WHEERAR
#2,551,0007T) ) MAREE B AR
WHEBRAREE HPEELESEAR
H B R AT 2 S B BR i) BT AR BR o
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21.

22.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 21. RERREEFEY ()
At 31 December 2006, the Group owed to a bank a principal R2006F 128318 AEB X & —[EiR
of approximately HK$457,900,000 and approximately interest T— 2 58 AR®457,900,0007T 2 K
thereon of HK$43,846,000. This bank has the right to set H REKEZFE AR 43,846,000
off the bank deposits of approximately HK$219,000 placed T EAEEEAAZRITEEEGER
by the Group against any indebtedness owing by the Group BRT ZRITERRAEET RN ZIR
to the bank in situation when the Group defaults to repay 172 AR #49219,0007T $R17 77 ;R HBR
its indebtedness to the bank. The balance was included in REAZBRITZEMER -ZHRBEREE
the computation of gain on disposal of subsidiaries upon HEEXEBAALENB AR EF —
the disposal of Xinjiang Xingmei by the Group in October (Bt EE29(a)) °
2007 as set out in note 29(a).
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. B BRI E b FE {4 FRE
The Group The Company
rEE b N
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TER FET
Accrued charges BREAR
and other creditors H it FE A R X 3,620 12,597 2,046 3,590
Interest payables ANEEC) - 43,846 - -
Amount due to a minority equity fER — KM B A &l
holder of a subsidiary DERERB ARIE
(note 22(a)) (B3 22(a)) 6,591 3,573 - -
Amount due to controlling & 1 42 B AR 3R 3RIE
shareholder (note 22(b)) (M 3E22(b)) 36,348 676 - -
Financial liabilities measured B8 AR B
at amortised cost 2B AaE 46,559 60,692 2,046 3,590

All of the trade and other payables (including amounts due
to related parties) are expected to be settled within one

year or are repayable on demand.

BB A R R A 50R (B
FENBREALTHIR) BN —FRBFERIEZ
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA 7T 5t &)

22.

23.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(@) Amount due to a minority equity holder of a
subsidiary
The amount due to E TR 2 Al is unsecured,

interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

(b) Amount due to controlling shareholder
The amount due to Hong Chang Group Limited, which
is controlled by Ms. Xing Xiao Jing, a director of the
Company, is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed

terms of repayment.

BANK LOANS

At 31 December 2007, the bank loans were carried at

amortised cost and payable as follow:

22. BERERAREAMESFIE (®)
(a) BR—SHELARAIBRERS
B AEE
FER BB S TR A A B IE A I
BB REETERS-

(b) BENEZERRKRRMRE
BNBESREERAR (XAAQF
EEMEEA LT EH) AR ER
A REREETEERR-

23. SRITER
MR2007F 128318 SRITER T IR &
RARERATFESEBROT:

The Group
rEH
2007 2006
Within 1 year or on demand RIFRHEERKER = 297,900
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F & E26FR - 110,000
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F & {B5F R - 50,000
- 160,000
- 457,900
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23. BANK LOANS (Continued) 23. SRITEM (#)
At 31 December 2007, the bank loans of the Group were MR2007F12831H RAEBRITER
secured as follows: ER 2 BT
The Group
rEE
2007 2006
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Bank loans secured by LTERERZBITER
— guarantees put up by —BUE=ZERHEZER
independent third parties - 146,500
— guarantees put up by companies — R EEMES AR REZER
controlled by an ex-director - 120,000
— property, plant and equipment ot JEN G - 191,400
- 457,900
(a) Bank loans secured by property, plant and () UWIE -BERREEREKR
equipment ZERITER
At 31 December 2006, the banking facilities of the MR2006F12A318  AEE ZR1T
Group were secured by charges over the oil pipeline B & Ty A48 AR TE (B 49311,000,000
and ancillary facilities with an aggregate carrying value BLZHERREREIEREIR
of approximately HK$311,000,000. At 31 December R2006F12A31B ESHEZ@E
2006, the extent of utilised facilities amounted to ¥ E /B 191,400,000% 7t
HK$191,400,000 (note 14(c)). (B 5 14(0)) °
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23. BANK LOANS (Continued) 23. SR1TEFR (&)

—
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(b) Breach of covenants
Details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are
set out in note 30(b). As at 31 December 2006, the
Group had defaulted repayment of bank loans
amounting to approximately HK$257,900,000 with
accrued interests of HK$25,000,000. The bank loans
overdue bore interest at 6.39% to 9.32% per annum.
In 2007, the Group repaid approximately HK$8,247,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB8,000,000). The
remaining balance was included in the computation of
gain on disposal of subsidiaries upon the disposal of
Xinjiang Xingmei by the Group in October 2007 as set

out in note 29(a).

24. OTHER LOAN, SECURED

At the balance sheet date, the other loan was carried at

amortised cost and repayable as follows:

(b) ZEREXN
REEBZEERDE SRR ZFFI1E
B A T 7E30(b) © 720064 12 A 31
H AEBEREIZAFRITERLDY
257,900,000/ T & 2 7 # &
25,000,000/ Jt © R 17 B 3 1%
6.39%%9.32% 2 FF| L& B R
20074 RN B (B8 478,247,000/%8
7T (KB E R #) AR #8,000,000) °
BRFEE AT AREE A 2007F10A H
EMBEXR I HEMBRRKE
ZETE FHBEEARHE29G) °

4. EER FiEH

RER HERRBERATHRRA
TEEBRMOT:

The Group
REE
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET

Within 1 year R1ER

In December 2006, a subsidiary obtained a six-month term
loan of HK$5,000,000 from J& B8 £ /1 4 m1 {= A #£ . The loan
carried interest at 0.837% per month and was secured by
(i) certain of natural gas refilling stations and land with an
aggregate carrying value at 31 December 2006 of
approximately HK$4,009,000 (note 14(d)) and (ii) corporate
guarantee put up by ERE MM K A A, the PRC joint
venture partner of the Lejion Gas and a minority equity
holder of a subsidiary. The loan was repaid by the Group in
2007.

- 5,000

2006512 A - — M B A 7l W E R &)
9 T {5 R 4+ BX 4§ — 225,000,000 7T &
HARNEAZER - ZEEHRME0.837%
2B AME W H)2006F 12831842
FR A {E 494,009,000/ T2 & F RXARH
5t R+ b AR (B 3E14(d)) R (i) e F1
BMRRAZFFEaEBHEFR —RMNBE R A
ZOEREREAERYTRA DA
ER - AEECR2007FEBEZER



Notes to the Financial Statements

By % ¥ R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A 7 jT 5t &)

25. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

a)

b)

Current taxation in the balance sheet:
Current taxation in the balance sheet represents

provision for PRC enterprise income tax.

Deferred taxation not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(p), the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
approximately HK$4,793,000 (2006: nil) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses will expire in
twenty years from the year in which they were incurred

under current tax legislation.

The Group had no significant deferred taxation not
provided for during the year and at the balance sheet

date.

26. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

a)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the plan vest

immediately.

25. REERBERZABH

a) REESGERZHHBHEA:
REERBRZANMBAEHEL

EMBEHER-

b) RERZIELEHIE:

BREBEENT2(0) 2 GETEER K&
I & 5t B B 49 4,793,000% 7T
(2006%F : &) v Rt IEEEHER
ELEHBEEE FREALABRBEAR
BRIEERRERBE T A LR
ERT & M A AEEEZEHE-
RIBREZ RBEN ZEHRIEE
BREHELEZFERH - +F1#&

& i o

REARBER AEBAIEEX

REFELER IR

26. EERIKER

a) AEERBEARGMELEESE
GOl RREEEEEGRIZEZ
BEZRTRFMEABSE ([#E
©ETEl]) - BELFTEIEBIE
FEAEEZ ERETRKGE R
BrEesE EXREEESH
AIEEBZBBKA Z5%EL #
;R A AW ALL20,0000% 7T
7 EBR e [mEHEI1EH 2 45K ENR

BEMA-
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26. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(Continued)

b)  Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC, the Group participates in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the relevant local government
authorities, whereby the Group is required to make
contributions to the Schemes at a rate ranging from
18% to 22% of the eligible employees’ salaries. The
local government authorities are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to retired employees
which are calculated based on a certain percentage of

the basic payroll.

27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 6 March 2002 for a period of ten years commencing
from 6 March 2002 whereby the directors of the Company
are authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of
the Group, including directors of any company in the Group,
to take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company.
The terms and conditions of the grant are determined by
the Board at the time of grant. In any event, the exercisable
period of an option must not exceed a period of ten years
commencing on 6 March 2002. The options give the holder
the right to subscribe for ordinary share in the Company. A
nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable by the grantee
upon acceptance of an option. Options are forfeited if the

employee leaves the Group.

26. EER

27. RAREHE

R INED

b) RETEBELEEHRAK 5£%ﬂ'$
SE2EMBAEHRTHEE
ZTE BB FRKE N JrilJ(fEZEer

) B AEEARSERE

BFHENF18%E22%[AZZ5tE

TR 3R B R AT B8 78 S R A

BRRERZZHEREAEETER

ZERREIRBEAF S 2K E

Bl HE-

BEUROXNZRS

RN FEIFR2002F 3860 R4 — HEE AR
T8l 520026 3A6HEAH10F &
I RAAREZERERNBERALNSEES
(BREAEEEMKERRZES) K
BERRE - ARIB AR R RIIR M o B H 2 K
REMBHEZGRR L RRE - EEMAIE
AT EREZ AT TITE 820024634
R TSEATF BREETRE
AEFRERABEBR - BRERE L
ATREABRER BXNREARE
BT fiE SRR ANEE BREGE SR
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27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
The terms and conditions of the grants that existed a) WUTAEZ2007F12A318 &

a)

during the years ended 31 December 2007 and 31

December 2006 are as follows and all options are

settled by physical delivery of shares:

27. B ﬁ%""Lj{H"ﬁfiﬁZ“

fw

2006F 12A31H IEFEFEBER
%Zﬂ*?x&ﬂ%# B BRELE
ERINBRHES:

Contractual
Exercise Number of Life of

Date of grant Vesting conditions Exercise period price Options  options
B iR

REAH 5B 1 TRHR 1B BREHRE SHEH

Options granted to directors:

RTEszBERE:
- on 2 November 2005 Immediately 3 November 2005 to 2 November 2010 HK$0.035 33,000,000 5 years
— #2005 11428 BPEE 2005411 A3BE2010511A2A 0.035 7T 3
- on 2 November 2006 Immediately 2 November 2006 to 1 November 2011 HK$0.053 80,000,000 5 years
—R2006F 11428 B0 B 2006F 11 A28 E2011F 1118 0.053% 7T 55
- on 22 August 2007 Immediately 22 August 2007 to 5 March 2012 HK$0.375 38,000,000 4.5 years
—M200748H 221 IS 20075 8A 228 E201243A5H 03754 7T 45%

Option granted to employees:

BTESz2BRE:
- on 2 November 2005 Immediately 3 November 2005 to 2 November 2010 HK$0.035 157,000,000 5 years
—R2005F 117828 B0 B 2005F 11 A3B E2010F11A2AR 0.035% 7T 55
- on 2 November 2006 Immediately 2 November 2006 to 1 November 2011 HK$0.053 225,000,000 5 years
— 12006511428 B 20065 11 A28 Z2011F 11418 0.053% 7T 54
- on 26 January 2007 Immediately 26 February 2007 to 25 February 2012 HK$0.189 358,000,000 5 years
— #2007 17268 PP 200742A268%201262A25R 0.1893& 7T &
- on 22 August 2007 Immediately 22 August 2007 to 5 March 2012 HK$0.375 362,000,000 4.5 years
—R200758A228 IS

Total share options

BRERH

200748 A22H£201263A5H 0.375%8 T 4.5%

1,253,000,000

Al 37 BE R 1= IR B IR 2 7 » 2007 F ]
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27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 27. BRAEEUROD T 2R S

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

b)

I

pi

The number and weighted exercise prices of share b)

options are as follow:

\
)

BREZEBB RMETEEDT:

2007 2006
Weighted Weighted

average Number average Number

exercise of share exercise of share

price options price options

EFEH iR R miETH BB

fTEE 2B 1T E #EH

HK$ '000 HK$ ‘000

BT TR BT Fir

Outstanding at 1 January R1A1BE®ARITE 0.050 365,000 0.035 190,000
Granted during the year FARE 0.287 758,000 0.053 305,000
Exercised during the year FRITE 0.082 (265,750) 0.036 (129,300)
Forfeited during the year FRRIK N/ATE A — 0.035 (700)
Outstanding at 31 December R12A31H W RTTE 0.250 857,250 0.050 365,000
Exercisable at 31 December MW12A31B A F171E 0.250 857,250 0.050 365,000

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise of the shares options during the year was
HK$0.419 (2006: HK$0.105).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2007 had
exercise prices of HK$0.035, HK$0.053, HK$0.189 or
HK$0.375 (2006: HK$0.035 or HK$0.053) respectively
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of
4.1 years (2006: 4.7 years).

FRNBITEEREETFEERZ
INHE BB A0.4195% 7T (2006
£:0.10587T) °

2007128318 M ARITEER
2 TEMED R /00358
J£~0.053% 70+ 0.189% /£ 5 0.375
75 7T (20064F : 0.035/8 708 0.053/%
L) MMEFHBRT G L FH
B4 (2006%F 1 4.76F) o
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27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

c)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted are measured with reference to the
fair value of share options granted. The estimate of
the fair values of the services received is measured

based on the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Life

of the option is incorporated into the model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Date of grant

i B

Fair value at measurement date
REtEBHZATE
Share price
Exercise price
1TE(E
Expected volatility
T8 HA R 18
Option life
B F
Expected dividends
TEEA AR B
Risk-free interest rate (based on the yields
to maturity of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note)
ERRANE(REBIIEESERIHAKRSEAH)

27. RAGEURB X 2R S

(A=)

0 BREZATFERRE
BERREBRERESREZ AT
BEN2EMELBREZ A FER
E-MESRBEZAFEDIRESR
HEREERA G -BREL

FHEFAZRR-

BREZ N TEREKR
22 August 26 January 2 November
2007 2007 2006
20074 20074 20064
8H22H 1H26H 11A2H
HK$0.035 HK$0.011 HK$0.013
0.035%& 7T 0.011%& 7T 0.013%& T
HK$0.375 HK$0.189 HK$0.053
0.375% 7T 0.189% 7T 0.053% 7T
HK$0.375 HK$0.189 HK$0.053
0.375%8 7T 0.189/% 7T 0.053% 7T
56% 33.7% 85.73%
0.17 year 0.16 year 0.75 year
0.17% 0.16% 0.75%
0% 0% 0%
4% 3.725% 3.6%

| 37 E R 1= IR B IR 2 & » 2007 F R
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27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

)

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions

could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition.
This condition has not been taken into account in the
grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated

with the share option grants.

27. RAGEURB X 2X 5

/

(75 )

c)

BREZAFERRBRR ()

TE 50 1 Y A R S R0 R O (3R
B INETE RS F R E) -
WRRARAEE R 2 EER K
B8 B B R RS 04
B8 AkE TEESR S

e A FEGHBREALE-

R IR R IR IR TS R AR 3R M - SR TR AR
WARFFAFMESRENE LB Z
AR o B R AR A B A R )
LG
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28. EX K f#E

rEE

28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
a) The Group a)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RARREREARL
Share
Share Share Contributed option  Exchange Accumulated Minority Total
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
PBRR
REx  ROEE L@EHR BRERE EXRf RHER ag B ags
Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik TER THER T T FAL FAL TEL TET THER
At 1 January 2006 ®2006%5 1718 30,516 166,974 81,043 2,029 7,530 (170,764) 117,328 18,548 135,876
Shares issued under BREEETRM
the placing 28(c)(ii) 4,042 55,371 - - - - 59,413 - 59,413
Shares issued under R R E 2
share option scheme BARHG 28(c)(iii) 1,293 4712 = (1,390) = - 4,615 = 4,615
Equity settled share-based K4 & b B 3
transactions xftz2% - - - 3,822 - - 3,822 - 3,822
Exchange differences BEFHNHBAR
on translation of BRE
financial statements of ERER
overseas subsidiaries - - - - 4121 - 421 1,315 5,436
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - (85,187) (85,187) (19,863)  (105,050)
At 31 December 2006 #2006 124318
and 1 January 2007 R2007F1A1H 35,851 227,057 81,043 4,461 11,651 (255,951) 104,112 - 104,112
Shares issued under REERTRN
the placing 28(c)(ii) 3,740 114,774 - - - - 118,514 - 118,514
Shares issued under RERET BB
share option scheme B fp 28(c)(iii) 2,658 22,558 - (3,499) - - 21,717 = 21,717
Equity settled share-based R A& B AR 17
transactions xfz%5 - - - 17,627 - - 17,627 - 17,627
Exchange differences REBNHBARR
on translation of BBRE
financial statements of ERZR
overseas subsidiaries - - - - 9,498 - 9,498 - 9,498
Release upon disposal of  HEH BA AL
subsidiaries - - - - (2,683) - (2,683) - (2,683)
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - (7,936) (7,936) - (7,936)
At 31 December 2007 ®2007%12A318 42,249 364,389 81,043 18,589 18,466 (263,887) 260,849 260,849

Al 37 BE R 1= IR B IR 2 7 » 2007 F ]
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28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

b)

The Company

28. EXR @ (

b) A2F

%)

M=

Share Share Contributed Share option Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve losses Total
TN RAEE BwEs BRERE 2HER A
Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W FERL T T T T T
At 1 January 2006 R2006F 1718 30,516 166,974 81,043 2,029 (212,914) 67,648
Shares issued under REERTRM
the placing 28(c)(ii) 4,042 55,371 - - - 59,413
Shares issued under R R BB
share option schemes 40 28(c) i) 1,293 4,712 - (1,390) - 4,615
Equity settled share-based  f& % & B LA B 5 37
transactions X5 - = = 3,822 = 3,822
Loss for the year AEEER - - = = (57,189) (57,189)
At 31 December 2006 R20065 124318
and 1 January 2007 % 2007F 17818 35,851 227,057 81,043 4,461 (270,103) 78,309
Shares issued under REEETRR
the placing 28(c)(ii) 3,740 114,774 - - - 118,514
Shares issued under RERE B BT
share option schemes ) 28(c) i) 2,658 22,558 - (3,499) - 21,717
Equity settled share-based  f& 7% & B LA B 5 37
transactions ZR5 - - - 17,627 = 17,627
Profit for the year AEERF = = = = 18,266 18,266
At 31 December 2007 ®2007512831R 42,249 364,389 81,043 18,589 (251,837) 254,433
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28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued) 28. EXx Rk (&)
¢) Share capital 0 R=
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEREBTRA
The Group and the Company
FEERAXAR
2007 2006
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RHHE &8 k&g Gk
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR TET T FHET
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of BREE0.01ATT
HK$0.01 each i ik 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000

Ordinary shares, issued ERTR

and fully paid: BEEBER:
At 1 January W1A1H 3,585,134 35,851 3,051,584 30,516
Shares issued under BEEEETRG

the placing 374,000 3,740 404,250 4,042
Shares issued under R R AT 2

share option scheme BT 265,750 2,658 129,300 1,293
At 31 December w12A318 4,224,884 42,249 3,585,134 35,851
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to TRRFEAGRUDRIAREIR RS
receive dividends as declared from time to time WEARRAARE LBRAIE-—ZRERE-
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings FrELBlRE AR ZBTITEEZAR
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally Lo

regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Q— A3 A2 IR IR B R 4 3 « 2007 & 8
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28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

<)

Share capital (Continued)
(ii) Shares issued through the placing

During the year ended 31 December 2007

On 11 February 2007, Hong Chang China Limited
("HCC") (formerly known as China GeoMaxima
Co., Limited), a controlling shareholder and a
company wholly owned by Hong Chang Group
Limited which is owned by Ms. Xing Xiao Jing, a
director of the Company, entered into a placing
agreement and a subscription agreement with
placing agents and the Company respectively in
relation to (i) the placing by HCC at a price of
HK$0.325 per share of an aggregate of
374,000,000 then existing shares of the Company
held by HCC to the placees through the placing
agents and (ii) the subscription by HCC at a price
of HK$0.325 per share of an aggregate of
374,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each to be issued by the Company after the
placing was completed. The net proceeds from
the subscription of
HK$118,514,000 were to be utilised for general

working capital and/or future investments in

approximately

energy sector and up-steam oil and gas projects

of the Group.

28. EX Rk (&)

c)

A (&)

(i) BEEZTRG
HZ2007F12H31HILFEZE
A

R2007F 2R 11H BEFEH
BRAA ([HCCL) (RIFEHR
BREEERDA) (BIERRK
REBBEEEER AR (H
AAREEMERZTHS)
2BHEAZRR)) DRIHEREE
RERARB AT EEET
N—MEEHER —HRE
B () HCCE BEL E R B IR
T R%0.325/8 0 2 B & M AR
AL E & £374,000,0000% &
FAHCCHRAEZARRIRA
B9 R (i)HCCIA & 1% 0.325
BTz BERRES H
374,000,000 A< x &) # A B
EXKERT2EREMAE
0.01B T EMR - REFTZ
FIBFREA /118,514,000
TTRARAERZ —REEBE
SRR RRERITER
EHBRER ZRE-



(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA T3t &)

(ii) Shares issued through the placing

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2006

On 29 August 2006, HCC entered into a placing
agreement and a subscription agreement with a
placing agent and the Company respectively in
relation to (i) the placing by HCC at a price of
HK$0.04 per share of an aggregate of
100,000,000 then existing shares of the Company
held by HCC to the placees through the placing
agent and (ii) the subscription by HCC at a price
of HK$0.04 per share of an aggregate of
100,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each to be issued by Company after the placing
was completed. The net proceeds from the
subscription of approximately HK$3,880,000 were
to be utilised for general working capital and/or

future investments of the Group.

On 20 November 2006, HCC entered into a
placing agreement and a subscription agreement
with a placing agent and the Company
respectively in relation to (i) the placing by HCC
at a price of HK$0.188 per share of an aggregate
of 304,250,000 then existing shares of the
Company held by HCC to the placees through
the placing agent and (ii) the subscription by HCC
at a price of HK$0.188 per share of an aggregate
of 304,250,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each to be issued by the Company after the
placing being completed. The net proceeds from
the subscription of approximately HK$55,533,000
were to be utilised for future investments and/or

general working capital of the Group.

(i) BEERTKRGE (&)

B E2006 1231 A ILF/Z
2006588298 ' HCCH 7
B—ZRERBRARARM
UTEHEIL—HEREHZE
R—hREwE: (JHCCE B
it & R I2 A B AR 0.04% 7T 2
BRRAAKREARLSESH®
100,000,000/ & FF F§ HCCHF
BZARRABBRS  Ri)
HCCUAERR0.04% 7T 2 (B &R
884 $£100,000,0000% & 2 7]
BREETKEETZER
E{HO0.01B T E MR - R B
FT 155X 1B JF 88 4V 7% 3,880,000
BT ARAEBRZ —REE
Be R/ HKRKKE-

720065 118208 'HCCH 5
B-ZRERBRARRRM
WTEEIIL —HREH=E
R —HRERZ: () HCCE 1B
FRERIELAGR0.188B T2
BRRAFXKEARLES &
304,250,000% & B (R HCCHF
BzAXRRAEIRBRG K
HCCUABR%0.188 B L 2 B 1%
REE S $£304,250,000f A~ A
AIEREETKEETZE
BREEC.OVETLF LA R
BABEREEFELDAR
55,533,000 7T AR A& E
CARREBERH—REE

2007 £ R
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28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

<)

Share capital (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Shares issued through the placing (Continued)
All ordinary shares issued during the years rank
pari passu with the existing ordinary shares of

the Company in all aspects.

Shares issued under share option scheme

During 2007, options were exercised to subscribe
for 265,750,000 (2006: 129,300,000) ordinary
shares in the Company at a consideration of
HK$21,717,000 (2006:
HK$4,615,000) of which approximately
HK$2,658,000 (2006: HK$1,293,000) was
credited to share capital and the balance of
approximately HK$19,059,000 (2006:
HK$3,322,000) was credited to the share premium
account. Approximately HK$3,499,000 (2006:
HK$1,390,000) has been transferred from the

share option reserve to the share premium

approximately

account in accordance with policy set out in
note 2(o)(ii).

28. EAXRK R (&)

c)

B (%)
(i) BEERGTRE (5)
FRET AL BRES

(iii)

FEEAAAREERRE
SEELEY

HEBRETERITRG
20074 - B TR B R ERIE
A A 7] 265,750,0008% (2006
£ :129,300,0008% ) & i@ A% -
KB #H A21,717,000% T
(20064 :4,615,000/ L) ' H
# 492,658,000/ 7T (20064
1,293,000% 7T.) 5F ABR AR - &
T #919,059,000/% 7t (2006
% :3,322,000%7T) T ARG
i B AR o AR 4R B 5 2(0)(il) BT &
Z PSR+ #93,499,0005% T
(20064 : 1,390,000/ 7T.) &
BEERERGEERERD R
Bk
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28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
c¢) Share capital (Continued)

(iv) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share

28. EAXK it (45)
o BX(#)
(iv) BAEHEFEHRFTEM

options at balance sheet date REZFEH
Exercise 2007 2006
price Number Number
Exercise period TEH TEE HE HE
3 November 2005 to 2005F 11 H3B & HK$0.035 30,000,000 65,000,000
2 November 2010 20106114 2H 0.035/ 7T
2 November 2006 to 2006F 11 A28 & HK$0.053 130,000,000 300,000,000
1 November 2011 2011511 H1H 0.053% 7T
26 February 2007 to 2007 2H26B & HK$0.189 297,250,000 =
25 February 2012 20124 2A25H 0.189% 7T
22 August 2007 to 2007%F8H22B & HK$0.375 400,000,000 -
5 March 2012 201243 H5H 0.375% 7T
857,250,000 365,000,000

The options give the holder the right to subscribe
for ordinary shares in the Company. Further
details of these options are set out in note 27 to

the financial statements.

BEREOETRHREAAURBAQAR

i

B2 R % FREE 2 — FHBER
RS EmARMEE27

Al 37 BE R 1= IR B IR 2 7 » 2007 F ]
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28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Bermuda

Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arose
when the Company issued shares in exchange
for the shares of subsidiaries being acquired, and
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued and the
value of net assets of the subsidiaries acquired.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus is available for
distribution to shareholders. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or

make distributions out of contributed surplus if:

- it is, or would after the payment be, unable

to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of its assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and

share premium accounts.

28. EX R (&)
d HEHERAR

(i)

(i)

RGHE
BHOBEBEREZARSHER
— NN\ —F R alEF 401§

o

yg
pE
BE
oo

BB e
RRFZHHBRREEAR
A B 1T R 19 IA X #R AT B A B
BAR D ZBHREER
ARRIEBHTRMHEEER
BAMBAREEFEZM
ZEB-BREARE- NN\
FREDE (RIEFT) BB
A DR T AR - 2R 1 i 3
ETINER  ARRTAAEIR
R T ALE B BB ERIE
H ok :

- R EEERS A L E
AEEIBRAE:

- BREEZANERMEE
ERBE BEHTHEAN
K Bein s BRR 2 #8%8-
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28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

d)

e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represent the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the
Company recognised in accordance with
accounting policy adopted for share based

payments in note 2(o)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of operations outside
Hong Kong which are dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note
2(s).

Distributability of reserve

At 31 December 2007, the aggregate amount of reserve

available for distribution to equity shareholders of the

Company was nil (2006: nil).

28. EX R (&)
EEER AR

d)

e)

(iii)

(iv)

BIRERE
BREFRESCRAARAE
BRBZHARITERBREZ
ERSEA BB 2AFE B
R T 2(0)(i) B B AR 7 32
NZHRBEZEFRRERA
AR o

B % f#
ELFGHERRRETE N
INRIS 2 AR P ol e 2
ZHBIINEZR THTERR
MY EE2(s)PT 80 2 & 5t R R B2
Ee

2k % &

2007F 128318 ANAG W EA
DIEKTRERBEAZHELS
(2006%F : #&) °
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28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (cContinued)

f)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes

in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the capital structure
of the Group consists of net debt, which includes the
borrowings disclosed in notes 23 and 24 if any, net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company, comprising issued

share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure regularly. As
part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issue as well as the

issue of new debt or the repayment of existing debt.

28. EAXRK R (&)

f)

EXEHE
AEBEREAZHEZREDRE
AEBRARBERBHBEREREE
AR T B B R B K AE
ZERERBEEBAREREEK
AZBME BBEBHBBRRAEDRR
[A) KL At LR 45 B A 7 2R R &R

AEBBER N ERHERRERRE
B RER AERSBRERE
ATARHFEZEEEKTER
W2 BARRRERZ il RARE Z
BEE o YEAEEERRZE
TEHERRBIEHAER

EERTEBOAZBERT A&E
MEARBREFEL HBaE
HRRERBESEYRARAR
BEAEAEGER (BEEETR
AR GHE) ER (RMsE23%24
#®EE) (mE) -

E=THHEARBETRS B
AN TEZ R EEHEARAN
FEREANHARRETER
REEFZEH AKEREBRX
TR AL BT BATHIE B X
EERBEL FEREARBR
R e
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28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued) 28. EX K f#EfE (&)
Capital management (Continued) fy EXERE (&)
The net debt-to-equity ratio at 31 December 2007 and 720074 200656 128318 2 &
2006 was as follows: HEESERL RN T
The Group The Company
rEM RAT
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt & FTExT FET TERT FHET
Current liabilities: mBAE:
Trade and other payables JE A BR R R
H A & T BOIE 22 46,559 60,692 2,046 3,590
Bank loans RITER 23 - 297,900 - =
Other loan, secured Hih &5 BIEA 24 = 5,000 = =
46,559 363,592 2,046 3,590
Non-current liabilities: ERBEaRE:
Bank loans RITER 23 - 160,000 - -
Total debt BEAH 46,559 523,592 2,046 3,590
Less: Cash and cash BEe KB
equivalents ZEM 21 (111,224)  (51,269) (103,063)  (48,053)
(Excess of cash and (ReRBEeEEY
cash equivalents BHEEEEZE)
over debt)/net debt BEFE (64,665) 472,323 (101,017) (44,463)
Equity s 28 260,849 104,112 254,433 78,309
Net debt-to-equity BEFEY
ratio =R (25%) 454% (40%) (57%)

Al 37 BE R 1= IR B IR 2 7 » 2007 F ]
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28. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

f)

Capital management (Continued)

The decrease in gearing ratio at 31 December 2007
was due to reduction in bank loans after disposal of
subsidiaries as disclosed in note 29(a) and increase in
cash and cash equivalents derived from the net
proceeds of approximately HK$140,231,000 (2006:
HK$64,028,000) received from the issue of shares

under the placing and exercise of options.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

29. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

a)

Disposal of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2007

On 11 September 2007, the Group and Surplus Way
Investments Limited (“SWI") entered into an agreement
under which the Group would dispose of two
subsidiaries, namely Bamber Resources Limited
("Bamber”) and Xinjiang Xingmei Oil-Pipeline Co., Ltd.
(collectively “Bamber Group”), which were engaged in
the operations of crude oil transportation, storage and
unloading facilities to SWI for a cash consideration of
HK$1. The transaction was completed on 24 October
2007. The disposal was classified as discontinued
operations set out in note 10. SWI is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hong Chang Group Limited, which is a
controlling shareholder of the Company and a company
controlled by Ms. Xing Xiao Jing, a director of the
Company. At disposal, Bamber waived the obligation
of the Group to repay an amount of approximately
HK$7,762,000 due from the Group to Bamber.

28. EAXRK R (&)

f)

EXRER (&)

F2007F 12A31H A B R T B
THRRITERXREHEMB R FE
> (IM EE29(a)FT R BB ) RiIR AR
ERBREZITERITROMER
I8 7 %A #9 140,231,000/ 7T (2006
:64,028,000% L) 2HE& RRE
EEYIE AT

AR TR EALATHE A RAL AR
MEWZERNREMRR -

29. FERERMERMTE

a)

B Z2007F12A31HLLEE
A E K E L F
2007698 118 » 2N 5 B 81 2
BREARAA ([BEEKE]) I
—iHE BLEAEEEARER
BUETRARKIKE LS MK
RE-ANEDEREBERAAF ([E
D) ERHEBEERHREEBRAR
(EBIEDEE]) ZMRAFR
FRBEH FTF R AREES-
B HM2007F 108248 /K °
HEWRSEAMFI0MHEZELLE
BRARIZEZ2EAMBAR BERK
RAIZERBRRER B —KBART
EEMER L TESZAF R H
ER EDHREAEEEEREE
FETE I FRIEL7,762,0008 T 2
Bffe
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29. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

(RETEE)

STATEMENT (Continued)

29. ZERERERME (&)

a)

Disposal of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2007 (Continued)

Details of cash flow and the net liabilities of subsidiaries

a) BE2007F12A31BLFE
AHENBLF (&)
PAHEMBARI R RERAR

disposed of are as follows:

FEEEMT

2007
HK$'000
FTET
Property, plant and equipment ER Y& 409,499
Prepaid lease payments HETENR A 485
Inventories rE 368
Trade and other receivables JE 5 B R K% EL Ath JE M R IR 30,376
Amount due from the Group JE W AR & B FR0E 38,812
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERS 2,223
Trade and other payables JE 1<F B 7R K% EL At JE < R IE (74,413)
Bank loans RITER (463,814)
Net liabilities disposed of FFHEEERE (56,464)
Release of exchange reserve B 5 i (2,683)
(59,147)
Gain on disposal of Bamber Group (note 10) HEEDEE 2 Wm (FE10) 66,909
Waiver of amount due from the Group A FE U AN 5 B FO0E (7,762)
Total consideration BB =
Satisfied by: XfHR:
Cash consideration received ERERE = G
i
Net cash outflow in respect of ERLHERBRARZ %
the disposal of subsidiaries: e FEE: “LH
Cash consideration ReRE - S
Less: Cash at banks and on hand of BFTEENRB AR 2 Tﬁ
subsidiaries disposed of ROTEFERS (2,223) E—E
(2,223) 3%%
&
®
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29. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)

a)

b)

Disposal of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2007 (Continued)

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year contributed
approximately HK$44,661,000 (2006: HK$44,710,000)
to the Group’s turnover and a loss of approximately
HK$28,076,000 (2006: HK$50,703,000) to the loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company.

The impact of Bamber Group on the Group’s results

and cash flows is disclosed in note 10.

Disposal of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2006

In December 2006, the Group disposed of a subsidiary,
namely Ordifen Limited, which was engaged in the
business of investment holding, to an independent third
party for a consideration of approximately HK$800,000
payable by cash on or before May 2007.

29. REBERERME (&)

a)

b)

B Z2007F12A831HLLFE
RNEENRBAR (&)
FARMBHEMRBRARARNERE X
B EE4944,661,000% 7T (20064
44,710,000 7T ) R 9 1E XA
AREREARGEREZEER
#9 28,076,000 JT ( 20064 :
50,703,000/ T ) °

EDEBUAEFLERRERE
ZRHERWE10HE-

B Z£2006F12A831HLLFE

AHEMRBE AR

2006 12A  REBURELD

soo,oooiﬁﬁrﬂ—%ﬁzéﬁiﬁﬁ
E—RMBRABMESERA

ZATNEREERER 1&?‘5#

20075 5A S 2RI AR & X e
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29. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 29. ZERERERME (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)
b) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year b) #Z20065F12A31HLLFE
ended 31 December 2006 (Continued) REERBLR (&)
The cash flow and net liabilities disposed of are FrHEZRERERBETEET
provided below: R
2006
HK$'000
FHTT
Prepayments T8 RIE 4
Accruals and other payables TERE A R E M RN KIE (36)
(32)
Goodwill on acquisition WHELEZHE =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary LEWBAR 2 W 832
Total consideration BRE 800
Less: Cash consideration to be received BB ZE 2 RE (800)
Net cash flow in respect of FHALEWBEARZ
the disposal of subsidiaries RenEFHE =
There was no contribution from the subsidiary disposed 20065 FRE HEHE AT E
of during that year to the Group’s turnover in 2006. AEEBZEX¥EERAT -BED
The subsidiary disposed of during that year had a loss EAH - FARHENBAR 2K
from operations of HK$36,000 up to the date of 2 &5 18 536,000 T
disposal.

| 5 BE IR 2 IR B PR 2 & * 2007 F 3
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29. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)

b)

Disposal of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2006 (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group’s

share of profit or loss of a jointly controlled entity

owned by the subsidiary being disposed of is nil.

Details of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled

entity before the Group ceased to have joint control

over the jointly controlled entity is as follows:

29. MEBRERE

RMPEE (&)

b) #EZE2006F12A3181LFE
AEHENRBLF (&)

HZE2006F12831B IEFERN K
SEEGHREEE 2B A G

Bz HAREERAERAIZERR

;Eo

RARERIEHAREZERAE QT
ZHREGIE 2 ARER KR

ZREEERA ZEEAFIBOAT:

Proportion of ownership interest

BEEEBOL
Place of Particulars of Group's
Name of incorporation issued and  effective Held by the Held by a
joint venture and operation paid up capital interest  Company subsidiary  Principal activity
AR BETRAR AEE HALAR HHEAR
EEAREE BEwY RAFEE BRER 55 BE TEXH
Ningxia Meining Pipeline PRC Registered capital 51% - 51%  Operation and management
Co., Ltd. * RMB 160,000,000 of natural gas pipelines and
ancillary business but
activity has been
temporarily suspended
EEXEEERRRA  HH A AR AR BEREBRAREBR
AR #160,000,0007 EERBER (BXBLE
BE)
* Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign equity 3 BEFEEEETLAPINEGERLE-

joint venture.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks

arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. These

risks are limited by the Group’s financial management policies

and practices described below.

a)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a

customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails

to meet its contractual obligations, and arises primarily

from the Group’s trade and other receivables and

deposits with banks.

(i)

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these

credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 90 days
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers. The
impairment losses on bad and doubtful accounts

are within management'’s expectation.

30. €@ T A
FE RBAS MERIMEABRERA
ST ANEBBRPEL - RERRD
BEBARBZABERRRRER (RT
) 13 AR # o

a)

EEER
EERBREMEFHIEMITARS
A TEETANAEEMERAEE
MBEBEZER BREERERR
B A B 2 1 W B R B b B R
B RRITER e

(i)

FE W R 5% R B it B 5K TR

AEEZEERREERA
JRE MR B R % L At R KR - B
BEEMEZEFERR A€
REERMAIZZEEE

JE\ Bz o

P8 U B TR R H At 8 W SRR
MmE - FAAEEREHBBET
FEEERIXPHARXME
AEERHE L FFEE R
HEPBEINHRMRZC
B RREZNREES A E B
EPZEMNEHEEFPES
X ZRZEBRREZER
& 2 B SR A 7 B BE B AR &1 90
BRZH-AEE—RTER
BEEUWEE o REMR 2R
BEEREEREERAIGEZ
B
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

a)

(i)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At
31 December 2007, the Group does not have
significant concentration of credit risk as there
were no outstanding amounts due from the
Group’s customers. At 31 December 2006, the
Group has a certain concentration of credit risk
as 41% of the total trade and other receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer within
the crude oil transportation, storage and

unloading services segment.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset, in the balance sheet after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group
does not provide any guarantees which would

expose the Group to credit risk.

30. €@ T A (&)
=ERE (£)

a)

(i)

FE W BR 7 R B b JE W 5% H
(%&)
AEEFEHBZEERR *
EXEEP 2 @RI
B RPREEBEZITE
RERzZEZRAORRITEZ1E
ERR HEFERERL R
2007F 128318 ARAEE
I 8 K #e ] FE A BB - AR
SRV ESREFEERR-
72006F 128318 B ER
JRomiE s - #17 REH RS 5
BAZAEBZREL, 2K
TH (b 18 U BR 3R B E At 8 R
THBEE 24 % AR SEFER
ETEESETRERR-

RAEERBRVAEERE
R EZHBEERE TR
BEGRZEREEIIR -AE
B3 08 B 1 R AT HE R BUE
AEBEAZEERR-
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade

and other receivables are set out in note 20.

a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)
(ii) Deposits with bank

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by
placing deposits with financial institutions that
meet the established credit rating or other criteria.
Given these high credit ratings, management does
not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its

obligations.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 71% (2006: 91%)
of total cash and cash equivalents were deposited
at one financial institution in Hong Kong with

high credit ratings.

30. £ T A (&)
EERE (&)

a)

(i)

(i)

FE W BR 7 R B b JE W 5 H
(%&)
A BEEY B EKERR
REMEKRRBEELEZEE
Rz —F2HEEEEHER
Bt3E20°

RITFH
AEBEEFERRENBHEHRE
PURUEAS & Rl - 7% 55 /1 15 4%
BEZEIXRBAEEFRAK
HiRE - ERZENBERE
EREENEER BEER
WY E|EMRH T NEETT
HEfE-

M2007F 128318 A&EEE
ETEESTHRAR BR71%
(2006 :91%) 2R & RIE
CEBVREHNETERRES
—REBRGEETRZUB
Mg A o
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure,
as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the

Group’s reputation.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

30. €@ T A (&)

b)

REBESERE

ME)E & ER T AR B R BE R B 75
BRI ETERAEEZAR-
AEBEERBESZ T EAREE
EREAGBERNRDESENIIHE

ERENBEXE-

AEBEBETENEEERATAR
ReER BRAESABRZENR
EREENBARMRSFL M
HEECRBRRLEE ZRER
BRAKEARESFSHE-AE
BeBRREHNERERPESSH
KREERETREERZY UHERF
Hgis R 2 RS [ R BER ] 2
RBBEBESF URETERHHE
BZEERERHENEEHEE
HRPpEEHFE-
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

30. £ T A (&)

b) Liquidity risk (Continued) b) RBELERMR (&)
The following table details the remaining contractual TR AREERARTFEITEYS
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s BEBERTAMBEE (REAAE
and the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities MHRBAEREFE BREEEOF
and derivative financial liabilities, which are based on R ZHHNE (REEBERZF
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest R)HEZENFB)REER 2
payments computed using contractual rates or, if BENFER ARAEERAK
floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet AEIAHERER KRB ZF
date) and the earliest date the Group and the Company 1B
can be required to pay:
The Group AEH
2007 2006
Weighted More than  Weighted More than
average Total More than 2 years average Total More than 2 years
effective contractual ~ Within 1 1 year but but less effective contractual ~ Within 11 year but but less
interest  Carrying undiscounted  yearoron less than than interest Carrying undiscounted  year or on Jess than than
rate amount  cash flow demand 2 years 5 years rate amount  cash flow demand 2 years 5 years
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'00  HKS'000 HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKS00D  HKS'000  HKS'000
ELES Ll
mEEH fRRS -Fh BB-F  RBRE METH mERe -5N  BB-F RERE
ERA% BEE REZE GRER EREME EFRRIE  ERAE BEE RESE  FRER ETERE [@FRLE
TEn TEn TEn TEn TER T#x T#x T#x T#x ThRL
Bank loans ghER - - - - - - 63%WE 457900 (480904)  (10680)  (118520)  (51,704)
9.32%
Other loans EER - - - - - - 10.04 5,000 (5167)  (5167) - -
Trade and other ERERR
payables At ERFA

- 46,559 (46,559)  (46,559) =

46,559 (46,559)  (46,559) ©

= 60,692 (60,692)  (60.692) - -

523592 (546,763)  (376,539)  (118520)  (51,704)

| 37 E R 1= IR B IR 2 & » 2007 F R
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(R ETEE)

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. €M T A (&
Liquidity risk (Continued) b) RBELEMR (&)
The Company AT
2007 2006
More than More than
Weighted Total More than 2years  Weighted Total More than 2 years
average contractual ~ Within 1 1 year but but less average contractual ~ Within 11 year but but less
interest  Carrying undiscounted  yearoron less than than interest Carrying undiscounted ~ yearoron less than than
rate amount  cash flow  demand 2 years 5 years rate amount  cash flow demand 2 years 5 years
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BHE alE
mETH VB -Ep  BB-F  EBRE METH gk —Fh BB-F HBERE
LLEES REE HREAE JREX EBFRREE EFRIE  ERAE REE RELR  AREX BTRRAF ETRIE
TER TER TER TER TER TR TR TR TR ThAR
Trade and other ERER
payables At ERHE - 2,046 (2,046) (2,046) - - 3,590 (3,590) (3.590) - -
Interest rate risk o FEREMR

<)

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the
Group’'s bank deposits, other loan and bank loans.
Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and
fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group does
not account for any fixed rate financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, and the Group does
not use financial derivatives to hedge against the
interest rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rate are insensitive
to any change in market rates. A change in interest
rates at the balance sheet date would not affect profit
or loss. The Group's interest rate profile as monitored

by management is set out in (i) below.

AEEZMERBRFEREAEE
ZROTER EMERRRITER
VAR S B I & LA E AR AL 2
BELSAEEDRARRERERN
KRR AFEMNERR NEE
WA ERE A FEFABZEZE
EFEHBABEAR BAEET
TMEASBMOTAETAH A ERR
BoEEMEZEENLNEEME
GREEBHER-NEEB 2 FI X
R TEHERERTYE-BE
BERZASEMNXFEREANTX
(i) »
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate profile

30. &Rt T H (&

The following table details the interest rate profile

of the Group’s and the Company’s net borrowings

(being interest-bearing financial liabilities less

o FEEE (;

=
%5/

(i) FEEX
TRFNAKEERARA Z
fEEFR G RMBRERR
TEH) REEB ZHEIBER

bank deposits) at the balance sheet date. A=
The Group KEE
The Group The Company
rEE LN
2007 2006 2007 2006
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate rate rate rate
kS ERF= EBAI= ERAx
% HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000
TR THAT TER FET
Fixed rate borrowings: BERERE:
Other loan EEHR - - 10.04% 5,000 - - = =
- 5,000 - -
Variable rate borrowings/ TERREE/ (BX):
(deposits):
Bank loans RITER - - 6.39% toZ 457,900 = = = =
9.32%
Less: Cash at banks o BIRe 0.25% toZ  (111,207) 0.25% toZ (51,157) 0.25% toE  (103,063) 0.25% to% (48,053)
3.7% 3.8% 3.7% 3.8%
(111,207) 406,743 (103,063) (48,053)
Net (deposits)/borrowings R/ EEEE (111,207) 411,743 (103,063) (48,053)
Net fixed rate borrowings BEMXEEFE
as a percentage of hREEFEAAH
total net borrowings 0% 1.2% 0% 0%
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

30.$EKIE(@@

<)

d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2007, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s loss
after tax and accumulated losses by approximately
HK$1,112,000 (2006:

HK$4,067,000).

increase/decrease

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
the non-derivative financial instruments in
existence at that date. The 100 basis point
increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2006.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. At 31 December 2007, no related hedges

were made by the Group.

In respect of trade and other receivables and payables
held in currencies other than the functional currency
of the operations to which they relate, the Group
ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level, by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot

rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

c)

d)

\

MERER (4
(ii) ﬂﬁgﬁ/ﬁf
20079128318 BEF R
Tim R 10018 2
ﬁﬁﬁ@‘}fﬁ@blﬁﬁuﬁfﬁh
NS AEEREER
&%Eﬂéﬂaﬁy/i m A
1,112,000/ 7T (20064 : 45 AN
/.4 4,067,00058 7T) °

,m]m

iﬁzzgﬁir‘ AT B R 2% F
REZEBBFREEMETE -
maﬁmﬁﬁ% BEEZILT
EemT AEMMEARZFERE
B o 382 hn sk % 2> 1001 & 2 75
EEEFGEERET —@EF
ERHREB ISP RZ &8
A RE B &) o DT TH IR EA20064F

be

MRz EELET

B E
AEBAZZEERBREZIRE A
EREB 2B NI BT
B EBERSREHREEREA
B 2007 12A318 - REE I
EAEL B -

BAE R 2 B E AN 2 K
W 2 BB R R
EEEN B RDHESERNE
BARRR IS S8R 216 + DAt AR L R
ERTEEKTF
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

30. €T A (&)

d) Currency risk (Continued) d E¥EmR (&)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) FRSZEXRR
The following table details the Group’s and the TREVNAEERRARFR
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date to HFEHAMRBRUEHAERZ
currency risk arising from recognised assets or e BB NNz BT EZ
liabilities denominated in a currency other than BEXABEMARZ ZEKE
the functional currency of the entity to which B EE g o
they relate.
The Group A& E
2007 2006
United United
States States
Dollars Renminbi Dollars Renminbi
En AR% = AR
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000
T Tr T T
Trade and other receivables  FEUEE FX &%
H At W 5K0R - - 690 600
Cash and cash equivalents BE&MBEEEY - 4,359 2 1
Trade and other payables JETBR T R
H A e 3008 2 - - 186
Overall net exposure EERERIE 2 4,359 692 787
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

30. €T A (&)

d) Currency risk (Continued) d E¥EE (&)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) FFERSZE%ERE (&)
The Company P /N
2007 2006
United United
States States
Dollars Renminbi Dollars Renminbi
En AR e AR
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000
Fr Tr T T
Trade and other receivables & BE 3 &
H At e 4 5K 0E - - 690 -
Cash and cash equivalents HE&RHEEEY - - = =
Trade and other payables BRERESRR
H Al e 3R - - - 42
Overall net exposure HERRFE - - 690 42
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(AE Tt &)

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d)

Currency risk (Continued)

30. £ T A (&)
d &E%EK (&)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (ii) BBEDH
The following table indicates the approximate TRETREERBHAEH
change in the Group's loss after tax (and B E KR B 2 90 E E =]
accumulated losses) and other components of B2 BEEiEKAEER
consolidated equity in response to reasonably MeEE (REFEBE) UKk
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates AR EMARBY 2
to which the Group has significant exposure at HEEo
the balance sheet date.
The Group AEE
2007 2006
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) loss after Effect on (decrease) loss after Effect on
in foreign tax and other in foreign tax and other
exchange accumulated components exchange accumulated  components
rates losses of equity rates losses of equity
HRRAES HEH HRBEE g
HEERLA BREHE  HtAR SMEERLA BREHE  EtAR
/ (TR) Beye Haeyg /(TR BeyE Boreye
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT THL THL
Renminbi ARE 5% 163 - 5% 28 -
(5%) (163) - (5%) (28) -
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. @@ T A (&)

—

Ul — paywi] sbuipjoH Abisu3 sissusn e £00Z 340day [enuuy

d) Currency risk (Continued) d E¥ER (&)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i) BEDIH (&)
The Group (Continued) KEM (&)
The sensitivity analysis has been determined BRKE £ T T R 28 5 [
assuming that the change in foreign exchange ZEBREERERERE
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and HXREEETIEBERZ

had been applied to each of the Group entities’
exposure to currency risk for the non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date,
and that all other variables, in particular interest

rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management'’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the
next annual balance sheet date. In this respect, it
is assumed that the pegged rate between the
Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar
would be materially unaffected by any changes
in movement in value of the United States dollar
against other currencies. Results of the analysis
as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities” loss after tax and equity measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the balance sheet date for presentation
purposes. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2006.

A B2 FITESRIAR
B Rz EHER T A
SH (LERHE) RETE-

Ptz 2B EEEEHESE
T—FEAEHLEHBEZIH
EEXA e S IR 2 B8 27
fEomitms REETRE
TZBMBEERTERIET
RpEMER 2 EFERE
BNEATE  ERIRZS
MEREHAKEETEE
BEENEEEAELIRE
BRAZATEXRRERETT
U2 2B 2BRHEER
RS EBBB-%DNTI
RE2006F MR 2 EFEHETT
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

e)

f)

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in petroleum-related activities.
The oil market is affected by global and regional
demands and supplies. Prices of onshore crude oil are
determined with reference to the prices of crude oil
on the international markets. A decline in the prices
of crude oil and refined products could adversely affect
the Group’s financial position. The Group historically
has not used commodity derivative instruments to
hedge against potential price fluctuations of crude oil
as the Group's exposure to fluctuation in crude oil

price is insignificant in 2007.

Fair values
The fair values of all financial assets and liabilities are

not materially different from their carrying amounts.

Fair value has been determined either by reference to
the market value at the balance sheet date or by
discounting the relevant cash flows using current

interest rates for similar instruments.

30. €@ T A (&)

e)

f)

7 m (B 45 B
AEBEEEEAMERMZ XM
R I5 R 2 B [ SRR R
B-EFRBEBRD2RBRERTS
Z R (B A& W TE © R M K A5 BREE dm
B8 TR Al BE B AR B 5 A I i
M & FRAREER 20074
PR 2 Rom BRIRE L N EE
HMAEBBEYRKAERITEL
AR EREEBRKE-

AT E
AN AERA A ATERE
FREECHALREERAER-

ARFERAREBLEGEAZT
B HEARUTAZERANXY
HEREREETHREZ IAE

Eo
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

31. COMMITMENTS

(R ETEE)

a)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2007

not provided for in the financial statements of the

Group were as follows:

31. F&iE

a)

M2007F 128318 WAREREE
PSR ANIRBEEBZ KRB BPER
AENR

The Group
rEH
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHE T
Contracted for A4
Continuing operations FECE T
— acquisition of —BEAE
motor vehicles 576 -
- capital contribution — Bz
in a subsidiary ) 5,078 =
5,654 —
Discontinued operations ERIEKEEET
— capital contribution -WB ARz
in a subsidiary RAEE - 113,027
5,654 113,027
Authorised but not contracted for EREBRKRETH
Continuing operations RFEKEEB
— acquisition of the oil — Y B h R R R A
exploitation rights & —3h R H
and oil field - 51,480
— operation of an ol — Y B h R R R A
exploitation project HH 126,149 -
126,149 51,480
Total FERE 131,803 164,507
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31. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

b)

At 31 December 2007, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

payable as follows:

1. &iE (52)

b) 20079128318 TAIHHEK S
HEZHEXERBEESERBERRED
T:

The Group
A%EE
2007 2006
Within 1 year 15 2,666 172
After 1 year but within 5 years 1F & E5F R 1,941 639
4,607 811

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to two years
without an extension option. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

AEERBELLEHERFLEMEL
EBA-—RME ZEHEZNFHE
NFIE2F UEEHEEE-EHEE
MERRXAES-
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

a)

Alleged bank loans and interest thereon
On 31 December 2006, the Group had contingent
liabilities in respect of alleged bank loans and interest

thereon as follows:

32. B AE

a) EBRBITERRHERES
M2006F 128310 AEEREIER
RITEREHERNB ZFFE: —

2007 2006

HK$ million HK$ million

BEAETR BEATL

Alleged bank loans EBRITER - 240
Alleged interest =g =R UPS) = 24

Based on the information available to the Group,
original proceedings were brought against a former
director of the Company for the alleged forgeries in
relation to two bank loans amounting to approximately
RMB240 million (equivalent to approximately HK$240
million) (the “Alleged Loans”), and interest thereon,
borrowed under the name of Xinjiang Xingmei Qil-
Pipeline Co., Ltd. (“Xinjiang Xingmei”), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company until 24 October
2007. Calculated up to 31 December 2006, the interest
on the Alleged Loans amounted to approximately
RMB24 million (equivalent to approximately HK$24

million).

- 264

BASEMAM NAG—ZAESHEMN
SEEXABEBERAR ([#FEER
%] 2007F10A24B 2RI BA R R Z3E
2EMBRF) 2 BEAMBZMERITE
R (THEBER]) RMER S 2 BB
TREBIREFR ZMEERNARE
240,000,0007T (4948 & 72 240,000,000
J0) 4 HEE2006F 12 A310 - FEBE K
ZH B4 A ARK24,000,0007T (HHEE
#224,000,000/& JT) °
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

a)

Alleged bank loans and interest thereon
(Continued)

In addition, the Group disposed of its entire interest in
Xinjiang Xingmei on 24 October 2007 (the “Disposal
Date”). Calculated up to the Disposal Date, the interest
on the Alleged Loans amounted to approximately
RMB40 million (equivalent to approximately HK$42
million), of what approximately RMB16 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$18 million) arose
during the period from 1 January 2007 to the Disposal
Date, and approximately RMB24 million (equivalent to

approximately HK$24 million) arose in prior years.

As stated in the Group’s PRC legal opinion, the Group's
PRC legal counsellor reviewed the copies of the above-
mentioned loan agreements, interviewed the lawyers
of the defendant and obtained advice from the PRC
police department. The Company was advised that the
former director of the Company has entered into two
loan agreements with banks under the name of Xinjiang
Xingmei in 2003 by forgery of documents. The loan
amounts have never gone to the subsidiary. This case
has been tentatively regarded as an individual criminal
act by the PRC police department and the suspect has
been arrested. In light of the above information
obtained, the Group’s PRC legal counsellor is of the
opinion that, with reference to the relevant PRC laws,
Xinjiang Xingmei, its immediate holding company and
any member within the Group will not have any legal
and financial obligations relating to these alleged bank
loans and alleged interest thereon. The legal opinion
obtained by the Group on Hong Kong law was in line

with this view.

32. B EE (&)
a) HEBBRITERRMHERLS

2= )

gb SN - R E B R 20074 104 248
(TEEBH]) HEANHEESR
ZEHER-LEELEAH ER
ERZAEL R AR40,000,000
7 (#4948 & $2 42,000,000 70) * H
R4 AR #16,000,0007T (498 E
718,000,000/ 7T ) T3 7 20074 1
AIBEHEHHBEES ROA
R # 24,000,000 (4 # & »
24,000,000/ 7T) RBEFEESE-

BERAEEzHBEEEER A&
B BEAEEME RN BRI
FEIARWEERWEEM L AR
BESROER RNAREEA K
REZEMESERBEXH R
2003F AT BR EREERITAI L
W IE B K 15 o i BT B 2 B4 R BR
SZEER-HEEFNFTRAUL
RUEBEAFRT YEHMFERIL -2
R EXFTE R REB R BAR
BRER R BREEEPEEE K&
EERZZERA G REMKE QG
ZEEBBITERRERA S &
EAEERMBET - NEBAE
S BB EEE R I E I H B8
[@ o
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

a)

b)

Alleged bank loans and interest thereon
(Continued)

As of the date of issue of these financial statements,
the directors of the opinion that none of the operation
or business of any company within the Group has been
affected in any material way and adverse way or has
any existing director or management personnel been
arrested or detained by the police of the PRC or any

other place.

The directors are of the opinion that, upon disposal of
Xinjiang Xingmei, the Group no longer had the
contingent liabilities in respect of the alleged bank
loans and interest thereon. This view was in line with
legal opinion issued by the Group’s legal counsellor to
PRC law.

Environmental liabilities

The Group has oil exploitation operation in the United
States of America (the “USA"). The USA has adopted
environmental laws and regulations that affect the
operation of the oil industry. The outcome of
environmental liabilities under proposed or future
environmental legislation cannot reasonably be
estimated at present, and could be material. Under
existing legislation, however, management believes that
there are no probable liabilities that will have a material

adverse effect on the financial position of the Group.

32. REE@E (&)

a)

b)

ERRITERRHERNE

(48)

RAMGHRENEZB EFRS
AEBEERAR EERXEBHE
REFMEARIMNZZE THE
AEEFHAEREABRLMESRF
B E iy 2 ERME-

E=ZRA ELEFBEXR A&
B TERERRITEREM®HNE
FREBAB - AREERBERBM
REBEMGE T OEREBRE b
B2

TFERRZER
AEERZERLEMRFBRER-
XBEEETRRERRER ZF
RRERERTEINOABR IR ZE
BoEBPHRKZIRRIDEFS
BHZBEBRRZABBEBRRHEES
B st BrRIEEELERTE-
AM REBERELE EERERS
I N7 FE AR A7) 7] BE 3 AN £% [ B 75k
NELERAEFZEZAE
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

33. EXEHEALRS

During the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006, the

directors consider that the following are related parties of

the Group.

Name of party
BEALTER

#HZE2007F12831H K% 2006912 A 31
AEFERN EERE A5E2BEA
g /(1R N

Relationship with the Group
BEAKEZBER

Hong Chang Group Limited
(“Hong Chang Group”)
BEESEAERAR ([BEKEH])

Hong Chang China Limited (“HCC")
BERBEABRAF ([HCC])

China National Star Petroleum
Corporation (“CNSP") (Note)

TEFEAHMEREERA
(I EHFL]) (M)

China Petroleum and Chemical
Corporation (“CPCC") (Note)

AR TS ER AT
(I EAaf]) (M&)

Surplus Way Investments Limited
("SWI")
BEREBRAR ([BREEKE])

Note: CNSP and CPCC ceased to be related parties of the Group upon the
disposal of Xinjiang Xingmei Oil-Pipeline Co., Ltd. (“Xinjiang Xingmei”)

on 24 October 2007.

Controlling shareholder of the Company, which is a company
controlled by Ms. Xing Xiao Jing, a director of the Company
AARZ ERIRR BAR G E S MY & L5

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Chang Group
BEKBEZ2ENBAR

Minority equity holder of a subsidiary
—KWNBRARZVBRERE A

Minority equity holder of a subsidiary

—RKMBARZ L EBERAA

Holding company of CNSP

FEMEZERAT

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Chang Group.
BEEEZ2ENME QT

MiaE: EAREER2007F10A248 HEFHBEFER
HEBERAR ([FEBEX]) B REHME
ErBACTBAAEBZBEAL
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a) Recurring transactions

(i)

(ii)

Provision of crude oil transportation service
There existed an agreement dated 5 December
2005 entered into between Xinjiang Xingmei and
CPCC ("Transportation Agreement”) for the
provision of crude oil transportation services for
a period of three years commencing from 1
December 2005 to 30 November 2008.

During the year, revenue from the provision of
crude oil transportation service to the CPCC
HK$44,661,000 (2006:
HK$44,710,000). The balance due from CPCC as
at 31 December 2007 and included in trade
debtors in note 20 was nil (2006: HK$7,150,000),
of which gross trade receivables and allowance
doubtful debts (2006:
HK$37,030,000) and nil (2006: HK$29,880,000)

respectively.

amounted to

for were nil

Pipeline leasing income

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Group leased out the natural gas pipeline under
operating leases to EREI MM R A 7, from
which the Group received pipeline leasing income
of approximately HK$1,091,000 (2006:
HK$252,000) from /& &8 $) i A S| 2 7).

3. EXRBAEBAERS (&)

(a)

REERS
(i) BHREBEHRE

(i)

R 2005 12850 FEL
i E AL HE ([E#
ekl ) - AR 6t FR Uk & & AR
% B2005F 12 A1 BHBE
2008 11 A 30H It - A 83
ﬁo

FR- P EA(CREFRE
) R %5 < WA % 44,661,000
7 7T (200674F : 44,710,0007%5
JL) °H2007F 12 A31H 2 /&
KR BEALERRT (2006
:7,150,000% 70) ' JhEt A
B 202 FEURBR SR A H AP fE
WEFBBERREERESD
Al &< (20064 : 37,030,000
L) KZE (2006%F :
29,880,000 7T) °

EEHEZUA

HZE2007F12A318LFE
N AEERBELCERE &
RAAREEBERTERS MM
RAF AEEEERHHMN
RAFRMBMEEHEEAK
A#71,091,000/% 7T (20064 :
252,0007% JT) °
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Recurring transactions (Continued)

(b)

(iii) Utility expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Group paid utility expenses of approximately
HK$1,926,000 (2006: HK$1,843,000) to CPCC
whereas CPCC paid utility expenses of
approximately HK$124,000 (2006: HK$426,000)
to the Group.

The directors are of the opinion that the above related

party transactions, excluding item (ii) above, were

conducted on normal commercial terms and in the

ordinary course of business.

Non-recurring transactions

(i)

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 11 September 2007, the Group entered into
an agreement to dispose of its 100% equity
interest in Bamber Resources Limited (“Bamber”)
to SWI for a consideration of HK$1. Further details
are set out in note 29(a). The disposal was
completed on 24 October 2007.

3. ERBEAXTRS (&)

(a) REMRZ (&)

(iii)

kEEH
HZE2007F12A31HIEFE
A - 755 B A R B A b 32 K
B E A % 1,926,000% T
(20064 : 1,843,000/ 7T) *
FEACAAREESFKE
£ F#9124,000% 7T (20064
426,000/ 7T) °

EERA LABEANLR SR
SMORAREFBRETREREE

>

fERFRAETT

(b) HEEMHRES

(i)

HENE R
MR2007F9R11B AEEE
BipZE BT ZREBHER
REDERBERAR ([E
D) 2MREAER TRRK
BoE— BN 29
(@) HERHMR2007F 108
24H5ERK
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

33. EXREEA

(b) Non-recurring transactions (Continued)

(i)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

At completion of this disposal, Elite Ascend
Holdings Limited (“Elite Ascend”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Bamber entered
into a deed of waiver whereby Bamber waived
the obligation of Elite Ascend to repay an amount
of approximately HK$7,762,000, representing
20% of the approximately
HK$38,812,000 due to Bamber by Elite Ascend

immediately before the waiver. The net amount

amount

payable, HK$31,050,000 was unsecured, interest-

free and repayable as follows:—

- 50% of the said amount (approximately
HK$15,525,000) payable within one year
from 24 October 2007; and

= remaining 50% of the said amount
(approximately HK$15,525,000) payable
within one year after the first anniversary
date of 24 October 2007;

Elite Ascend may make early partial/full settlement

of the said amount at its discretion.

In case the repayment would have an adverse
impact on the working capital of Elite Ascend,
the said amount was agreed not to be repaid
until Elite Ascend was financially capable of doing

SO.

On the balance sheet date Bamber assigned the
said amount due by Elite Ascend to Hong Chang
Group. The amount due to Hong Chang Group
was unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed

terms of repayment.

X% (%&)

(b) EREMRS (&)
(i) HEHBARA (&)

REERZ TR E KA

LN =NGIE ] e Hﬁﬁlﬁ

al (Mak]) BEPTZ—18

HeRE Bt ZEPHReR
P& 2 47,762,000 T (15

EHERRAIGRENEDK

18 #938,812,000/ 7T 2 20%)

2 B fF 5% F 5 H 31,050,000

BTREER 22 RIUATS

FRER:

- BB EXRZ50%(H
15,525,000% ot ) B
2007 10 A 248 #& &t 1
FRER R

- BHAERHBTZ50%
(#915,525,000/87C) B
2007 10H24B 1R F
BIFNER:

R A EIREEBEMNDREILZHIE

HEMBE LR EFIEREHIRRRE B
WEBEESR BHRERETABEL
BEFREERREV B LBEERNEER
e

REE B - ZDERRAROFIAERET
EERE - BNBEEEIRNEA/SER
%8 MR B E R R
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Non-recurring transactions (Continued)
(ii) Disposal of property, plant and equipment
During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Group disposed of some property, plant and
equipment to E@E MM A A T at their then
carrying amounts of approximately HK$252,000.

There is no gain or loss on disposal.

(iii) Placing of shares

During the year ended 31 December 2007, HCC
entered into a placing agreement and a
subscription agreement with placing agents and
the Company respectively in relation to (i) the
placing by HCC an aggregate of 374,000,000
(2006: 404,250,000) then existing shares of the
Company held by HCC to the placees through
the placing agents and (ii) the subscription by
HCC an aggregate of 374,000,000 (2006:
404,250,000) new ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each to be issued by the Company after the
placing being completed pursuant to the placing
and subscription agreement. The gross proceeds
from the subscription were approximately
HK$121,550,000 (2006: HK$61,199,000). Further

details are set out in note 28(c)(ii).

3. EXNAEBAERS (&)

(b) HREMRS (&)

(i)

(iii)

HEY¥ BERZE

HZE2007F12A31HIEFE
N AREERERZEEBELD
252,000 THEE TWE-
BERZETERHTRE
AR HEE W EEMIBE-

B & &R 17

B E2007F 128318 LFE
A HCCH Rl B A & I8 R A
YNCIEIRVE WS & 8
FOABRTDERARBES KR
BinaE (HCCRBR &R
mABR ABRSHCCHEE Z
4 #£374,000,000 (20064 :
404,250,000) R AR 7] € B
WA RD : R(HNHCCRR & 7
X 1% 38 & $£374,000,0008%
(20064 :404,250,000/%) A
RARETZEREEO.O
BTz HERR - REFEZ
BT 18 X I 8 8 O A
121,550,000 7t (20064 :
61,199,0007T ) ° & B #H R
Bt EE28(c)(ii) °
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Non-recurring transactions (Continued)

(iv) Guarantee

(v)

During the years ended 31 December 2007 and
2006, EEE#H T A A A issued a guarantee to
secure other loan borrowed by a subsidiary of
approximately HK$5,345,000. The guarantee was
released in June 2007 upon repayment of the

loan.

Indemnity

Ms. Xing Xiao Jing, a controlling shareholder and
a director of the Company, has given
undertakings to indemnify to the Group in
connection with all losses the Group may incur
relating to, as set out in note 32(a) to the financial
statements, the Alleged Loans and alleged interest

thereon for whatever reasons.

The directors are of the opinion that the above non-

recurring related party transactions, excluding items

(iv) and (v) above, were conducted on normal

commercial terms and in the ordinary course of

business.

33. EXBAEAL

(b) 3'5 £:<«
(iv)

(v)

EERR

(ExX&E({v&

X% (%&)

EMRS (&)
ER
B E 20074 K 2006F 12 A 31

HEFERN ERBTHRAL
AR —RWNBLARZEME
75,345,000/ JT {E H #E1R
ZERER2007F6AEEE
RIERR -

HE R E
RQFEERERREME
mEZTRAMBRE 2 K=

32(a) 2 IETBE R R M & F 8
¥T$%lﬁﬁm5}52ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ%
R IRE R E-

FREREFUEBEALRS
(V)IEFRIN) IR AR E

BRRREFAREIET
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(AE Tt &)

33.

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the

Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s

directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the

highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as

follows:

ERBEALRS (&)

() FEEBAEMS
AEETEERAEMHE (BN
A8 EBE ZERAARAEEN
ZHRBERMEIFIRECERET
REFREEXMNZHE) MT:

2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FTET

Short-term employee benefits HHIEERA 4,940 5,574
Post-employment benefits B 5 12 48 A 36 36
Equity compensation benefits e a5t B A 1,485 2,130
6,461 7,740

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see

note 6(b)).

(d) Financing arrangements

Amounts due to

related parties

Me@BEBDHDAATEIRA]F (R
B E6(b))

(d) mEZH
Related interest

(expenses)/increase

RBEALRE FRAE (X)) /#m
As at 31 December Year ended 31 December
R12A31H BZE12A31BLEE
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TERT FHET
Amount due to a minority FE — KT E A A
equity holder of a subsidiary LERERE A
Z IR 6,591 3,573 - -
Amount due to JERTHEAR IR B
controlling shareholder KIE 36,348 676 - =
42,939 4,249 = _
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(d) Financing arrangements (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The outstanding balances with these related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
The amounts due to related parties are included in “trade and

other payables” (note 22).

(ii) Details of new advances and repayments during the period are

disclosed in the consolidated cash flow statement.

34. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been restated and

reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

As a result of adopting HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, and the amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation
of financial statements: Capital disclosures, certain
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with
changes in disclosures in the current year and show
separately comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed
for the first time in 2007. Further details of these

developments are disclosed in note 3.

In addition, as a result of the changes in presentation
currency for the preparation of its financial statements and
the presentation format of the income statement, the
comparative information has been reclassified to conform

to the current year's presentation.

33.

34.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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35. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting

policies which are described in note 2, management

has made certain key assumptions concerning the

future and other key sources of estimated uncertainty

at the balance sheet date, that may have a significant

risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year, as discussed below.

(i)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and pre-paid lease payments

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset, which requires
significant judgement relating to level of revenue
and amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
the recoverable amount, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of revenue and operating costs.
Changes in these estimates could have a
significant impact on the carrying value of the
assets and could result in additional impairment

charge or reversal of impairment in future periods.

3 15 5 R

a)

M THAREZETEEE
RERBASEESAEBRX (R
fizE2) v BiRF EREEHEH
Bitat THEERE 2 AR K EME
g%?ﬁf?ﬂi S TEERR ARR
AR BB T EM B E Y
ﬁﬁ&fﬁfﬁz,ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬁg
ZERRER T XA e

%

() V¥ BERREREER
14 5% 26 B {6
BEZAKECHBSEEE
BREABEZRSE EF
R EER R BATITR
RghAtzc ARBE S REN
RERE BT BHBAKE
RiEERASBEHERA
B - DA IR BRI B T 35 P AT A 2
TREHEREEEMRA
ZRBR-RNEENBAAERE
ﬁ’ﬁ#%ﬁﬂ”ﬁz@é%ﬁ{’ﬁ/—\ﬁﬁ

BREEMAXFHZBR
DA&HSU\&%“%EFHZTE
Bt ER S AEHEE
ZEEEEREATE LA
RE B B R R HI R AT R B A
BB 32 3 1R Hh R (E B ] -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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35. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of receivables

The Group maintains impairment allowance for
doubtful accounts based upon evaluation of the
recoverability of the accounts receivable and other
receivables, where applicable, at each balance
sheet date. The estimates are based on the ageing
of the accounts receivable and other receivables
balances and the historical write-off experience,
net of recoveries. If the financial condition of the
additional

debtors were to deteriorate,

impairment allowance may be required.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in few
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is

made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and tax in the

periods in which such estimate is changed.

35. St fhst RHE (&)

a) A THMREZEZETEEE

j2= )

\m8 /

(VN 2. ¢ ¢:=p-3]

(iii)

REZFER NEEREREK
AR B & E Al e MR TR 2 A
B 1% 2 b5t B REREE
e (@A) - B R A TIRE
JE W BR B R E A B WK TR 4R
2 Bk e I R S MEH AT 8RN
B AT e @ BrRE A B o e BT A
Z BTSN B - R BEZR AR
BN ELE o

PR3 8 REE B TR

AEEBYHETRIEER
ZHTEH - BEMSNRERE
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NEtBR ZEBRREEKBRE
REATEERARBIH - AEE
mIRe B HRBEINEABIA
2 fhEt A B A RE R TR R
BECZEEMEEZEBE W
REEEZREBBHRE
BIEER2EBITR ZFE
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35. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(iv) Contingencies

Periodically, the Group assesses potential liabilities
related to any lawsuits or claims brought against
the Group or any asserted claims. Although it is
typically very difficult to determine the timing and
ultimate outcome of such actions, the Group uses
its best judgement to determine if it is probable
that it will incur an expense related to the
settlement or final adjudication of such matters
and whether a reasonable estimation of such
probable loss, if any, can be made. In accordance
with HKAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets, the Group accrues a
liability when it believes a loss is probable and
the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated.
Due to the inherent uncertainties related to the
eventual outcome of litigation, although the
Group believes that the estimates and judgements
are reasonable, it is possible that certain matters
may be resolved for amounts materially difference
from any estimated provisions or previous

disclosures.

35. @t At R HE (4F)

a)

RIS Erdet 328

/=

( 4

(A

=)

(iv)] ZEER

AEETE R G EAEBR
AEBRBEZHFBIARZ
BERE-BE RSN
BEZETEEZHHEHEREK
R RSB L & EHE
HETE & A A M B iR AL HDR
ZEFEMESR AR
Bz FrEEE (WE)F
HEBME-REFEGE
AIE37RER HBERERK
BEE AKEREMBEAR
RELBREEY A & BB
BeBEBELRR -ARFR
BRRERANEZTRERER
&E AN EAE G KA
BEE DAkEEHRETEE
BRRSBEMGFTEERL
AEEELRERER
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35. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(v)

Oil reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s oil reserves
are inherently imprecise and represent only
approximate amounts because of the subjective
judgements involved in developing such
information. There are authoritative guidelines
regarding the engineering criteria that have to
be met before estimated oil reserves can be
designated as ‘proved’ and ‘probable’. Proved and
probable oil reserve estimates are updated on
regular intervals taking into account recent
production and technical information about each
oil field. In addition, as prices and cost levels
change from year to year, the estimate of proved
and probable oil reserves also changes. This
change is considered a change in estimate for
accounting purposes and is reflected on a

prospective basis in related depreciation rates.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these
engineering estimates, these estimates are used
in determining amortisation expenses and
impairment losses. The capitalised costs of oil
exploitation rights are amortised over the
estimated useful lives. The useful lives are
reviewed annually in accordance with the
production plans of the Group and the proven

and probable reserves of the oil.
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35. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

b)

Critical accounting judgement in applying
the Group’s accounting policies

In determining the carrying amounts of some assets
and liabilities, the Group makes assumptions for the
effects of uncertain future events on those assets and
liabilities at the balance sheet date. These estimates
involve assumptions about such items as cash flows
and discount rates used. The Group’s estimates and
assumptions are based on historical experience and
expectations of future events and are reviewed
periodically. In addition to assumptions and estimations
of future events, judgements are also made during the

process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Recognition of share-based compensation
expenses

The Company has granted share options to employees.
Management has used valuation model to determine
the total fair value of the options granted, which is to
be expensed over the vesting period. Significant
judgement, such as risk free rate, dividend yield and
expected volatility and expectations of early exercise,
is required to be made by management as the
parameters for applying the valuation model.
Accordingly, any changes to the variables adopted may
materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an

option.

35. @t At R HE (4F)

b)
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36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 36. B £2007F12A31LFES

—
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NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the
accounting year ended 31 December 2007 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s

results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the following developments may result in new
or amended disclosures in the financial statements:

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements’
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11

Borrowing Costs'

Operating Segments'

HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share
Transactions?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Service Concession Arrangements?

Customer Loyalty Programmes*

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
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